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Key Dates EE HHA

EFPL4618

REEBERB &
EFE:(852) 2468 9272
{EE:(852) 2465 1008
E & : ir@vitasoy.com

Closure of Register of Members

LEWERMDBFES

- Annual General Meeting

BRRBAFRE

Record Date
Fo8% A HA

- Proposed Final Dividend
EERARERE

Record Date
o8k HHA

13th August 2020 (Thursday) to 18th August 2020 (Tuesday)

18th August 2020 (Tuesday)
—EZE2FNATNR (BHD)

26th August 2020 (Wednesday) to 28th August 2020 (Friday)
—EZEFENAZ+TARAE (BH=) 222 2EFENA=Z+NH (EHHAH)

28th August 2020 (Friday)
—E-EENBZ+N\R (EHRH)

Annual General Meeting

BRERBFRE

at 11:00 a.m., 18th August 2020 (Tuesday)

Chatham Room, Level 7, Conrad Hong Kong, Pacific Place,
88 Queensway, Hong Kong

REZZB-ZFNA+NB (EHZ) EF+—KIE
REEB£EESSHKEAHES  BEBBEE ERRE

Final Dividend Payable
TREREARR 2

9th September 2020 (Wednesday)
—ECEFAANA (BHZ)
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Financial Highlights
MERHE

Year Ended 31stMarch B@Z=A=+—HILFEE

Results
.
MR
2020 2019
—=%F —F-hF %
HK$ million HK$ million Change
BEEET BEEET ERalid-X)
Revenue PN 7,233 7,526 -4
Gross Profit ER 3,851 4,042 -5
EBITDA (Earnings Before Interest RETFIBWA ~ BB -
Income, Finance Costs, Income Tax, Frissi - ITE - i
Depreciation, Amortisation and BAKAMEEE LT
Share of Losses of Joint Venture) B8R &R
(TEBITDAJ) 1,097 1,228 -11
Profit Attributable to Equity RATRERFE A
Shareholders of the Company FEEER 536 696 -23
Basic Earnings per Share (HK cents) BRERZF GBAL) 50.4 65.6 -23
Total Dividends per BREBRAERE
Ordinary Share (HK cents) (BAL) 32.2 41.8 -23
Year Ended 31stMarch 8Z=B=+—HILFE HK$ million B HE T
Revenue Gross Profit
A EF
8,000 7E6 7,233 5,000
7,000 6,465 ' 4,042 3851
6,000 5552 5406 [ 4,000 3420 (] —
]
5,000 (] 3,000 2826 2873 (]
4,000
3,000 2,000
2,000 1,000
1,000
0 - 0 o
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
EBITDA Profit Attributable to Equity

Rt FIEWA - BEERA - FIBH - Shareholders of the Company
E BHEARFILEEQAREERIEN XATFRESEAEGRR

1,500 800 696
1,228 200 618 °7¢
1,200 1,083 1,063 o 1,097 586
e p— — 600 531 (] p 536
900 812 500 ]
400
600 300
300 200
100
0 - 0
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
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Financial Highlights
MBREE

Asat31stMarch R=A=+—8
Financial Position

B #EAR R
2020 2019

—g-%F —T-NE %
HK$ million HK$ million Change
BEEET BEEET ERalid-X)
Total Assets WEE 6,410 5,878 +9
Net Cash Balance REFEH 363 960 -62

Total Equity Attributable to Equity RAFRERFE A
Shareholders of the Company e LS E R 3,128 3,165 =4

Year Ended 31stMarch2020 BZE— 22— =H=1+—HILLEE

Sales Analysis by Location
HERES T (RHE)

2%
Singapore

#hng

(o)
7%
Australia and
New Zealand

BN K P e

62%

Mainland China
AR E A it

29%

Hong Kong Operation
(Hong Kong, Macau and Exports)
BREYK (8 BRMEREND)
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Chairman’s
Statement

FERE

Whilst Vitasoy Group has faced unprecedented
external challenges during FY2019/2020, we
remain confident about our long term prospects
based on our company strengths, and stay
committed to our mission to provide tasty and
nutritious plant-based food and beverages
and doing so by procuring the best practices in
sustainability production.

HADEER -/ —Z_ZHREFEERHA
FRARBH MRS - EREBEQARNEEE S - HH
HRENSDARBELS  MARETRSERERET
o UAFEEENS N MO ARRERUE
MDA RE BEXRNEELENRRAREAMR °




Chairman’s Statement
EE®RE

In FY2019/2020 the development of the Group has been
challenging against the backdrop of a number of events which
were not unique to our Group but impacted, and continue to
impact, the world as a whole. The most notable events are the
COVID-19 pandemic, ongoing social unrest in Hong Kong, the
prolonged drought in Australia and a continued strain on US-
Sino relations. As a result, on a constant currency basis, revenue
and profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
dropped by 1% and 20% respectively. In Hong Kong dollars
(HKD), the Group’s revenue dropped by 4% to HK$7,233 million,
while profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
dropped 23% to HK$536 million.

The Board will recommend a final dividend of HK28.4 cents per
ordinary share at the Annual General Meeting to be held on 18th
August 2020. Together with the interim dividend of HK3.8 cents
per ordinary share, this brings the total dividend for FY2019/2020
to HK32.2 cents per ordinary share (FY2018/2019 total dividend:
HK41.8 cents per ordinary share).

Unwavering vision and vigilant disciplined
execution during unique times

Throughout the Company’s 80-year history, we have stayed focus
onour vision, and have done so with increased vigilance and focus
ondiscipline, efficiency and pacing of our investments during hard
times. We are grateful to all our people for their commitment
during this temporary period of external change.

Whilst focus on efficiency and costs have enabled us to mitigate
the negative impacts, our safety guidelines have protected the
health of all of our employees and have secured progress. We
have grown market share in both Mainland China and Hong
Kong, where we have also completed infrastructure projects
to support our future growth. We have expanded our business
in other geographical regions. We have also made significant
progress along our Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG)
as separately reported in our sixth Sustainability Report for
FY2019/2020.

REZB-A/ZZ2-ZHHREFE  AEEZER
AZREHTE BREIRE  FESHE
REFELEE THEFEEE2N - EPEYH

BHR2019BRFESHERS - BESENLEE
B BMNBFANEXUARBFESRRNPEEE -
Hit - ZEEEZREEGHE » IWAREDTRE
BEABMEBR D BT B 1% & 20% © A&
& REBMWA T B 4% 288 7,233,000,000
7T MAD T RESE AEMERRITER23% 2
5 536,000,000 T °

EEEER-_ZE-EENATNBETHRRE
BEASIZFRERBEREERZTER 284
Bl - ERFHRESREBRKRISEN —F
—h/ ZE_EHHEEREBESEISRY
BR322BI (ZB—N/ZE2-NFREER
BBz GREER418EB) -

BERZAP  BFESR - BEHT

AARRENTFUR-BERTRES  EHHA
FHEMRESEE  ROIRBERATREAXK
R EANEEEAFRES K - MHHRBHIME
FE  RALT2ARSBCH  HHRMARL R
e

AEBHENEARE - BREBAUBKREEEHE
T BN BANZ2ESIRET2RESN
2 WARRTEBER - AREETEAH
REBNTSDEIBAEM - ZHERRIEE
BRERT  BUAXEFAREBER - RAITH
RTHMBENER HRE HERERS
o AEETHRSERER  #HEHREANHZ
BN/ CECZPHFENTHRRRREP
SITER -
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Chairman’s Statement
EE®RE

Broadening our impact

Despite the occurrence of COVID-19 outbreak in Wuhan, one of
our core regions, Mainland China sales grew 1% in local currency
terms, generating RMB4,025 million in revenue. Operating profit
dropped 24% in local currency compared to the previous year,
due to a combination of declining revenue growth and of the fact
that a significant portion of operating expenses have already
been incurred during Chinese New Year. We have grown market
share in all the regions where we compete, and have progressed
construction of our new Changping factory in Dongguan,
Guangdong province such that we can begin production in 2020.

Our Hong Kong Operation generated HK$2,108 million in
revenue, a decline of 7% as the social unrest and COVID-19
affected not only on-premise and on-the-go channels, but also our
Vitaland school tuckshop business due to school closures.

Australia and New Zealand continued their growth, with revenue
increasing by 3% in local currency terms. This was made possible
via the success of newly introduced product innovation offsetting
the impact of droughts, bushfires and, most recently, COVID-19.

Singapore grew 8% in local currency terms. The operation
maintained its leadership in the tofu category and made further
progress in imported beverages.

The Philippines joint venture with Universal Robina Corporation
achieved a major milestone in establishing and starting local
manufacturing. This will enable lower costs and higher flexibility
and customisation to expand our platforms in this exciting and
fast growing market.

Ready for return to our sustainable growth
trajectory

Whilst the current conditions present near term volatility, we
believe our mission is ever more relevant and our competence
and experience are ready to support a progressive return to
growth as COVID-19 conditions gradually subside. As there might
be a possible second wave returning, we will cautiously pace
our investments and exercise utmost vigilance on costs, whilst
selectively securingthat our core platformand relevantinnovation
is deployed with quality support to secure long term growth. With
the sustainable plant-based food and beverage trend becoming
more mainstream, Vitasoy Group is ideally positioned to continue
on the path to sustainable growth.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. ZE b 3B FR @ AR A 7
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PEIAMHEERE  HAETEN S —HRE
BE2019BRBESHER - AMAEHEET
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Chairman’s Statement
EE®RE

Appreciation

We hope that we will be able to celebrate our 80th Anniversary in
the later part of this year. Meanwhile | take this opportunity to say
a big thank you to our Board of Directors, the management team
and our staff. Their unwavering support, dedication and invaluable
contribution has been the foundation that secured our progress
for the past eight decades. | thank the utmost our shareholders,
customers, suppliers and business partners for their continued
support.

Winston Yau-lai LO
Executive Chairman
19th June 2020

B

REEFHEERAFEHER  BREMDRIZNT
BE - B AAEHEOESS - EEEBS
RERETHURHHAE - 2RATBEZEFR
EFABNXE  BTRBURNHESNER
BENTERMAFUBLS @A o AATELE
BRR - BFF - HEBREBBH BRI
B HRRHE -

BRE
BITERE
—E-EFXATAA
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Group Chief Executive
Officer’s Report/
Business Review

EEITHARBRE
> 7% [O] &

Following consistent growth throughout the
last decade, growth continued in the first half of
FY2019/2020, but the second half of the fiscal
year saw the COVID-19 pandemic exacerbating
numerous other disruptions across the Group's
operating units. In this context, our focus on
operational efficiencies and the protection of
our associates and assets have mitigated the
immediate impact on growth and profits, and
secured the conditions and internal readiness
to restart our growth trajectory when pandemic
restrictions subside.

_\

RN/ —ZE_FHREEL¥E > RMOLTE
BETENEBEER BERVBRFEFETHFIRE
2019 BMAESHEE  SAKERLZ FEBEER
ENEEMSELNE EE@AEZ2T  HMAE
BERIREENENREFETHERE  BIFET
BREEFNMZVENGEE YATEBRFIKE
BERIERIEEE T IRMRBEIFRIES -




Group Chief Executive Officer’s Report/ Business Review

SETHARRE HEEOE

FY2019/2020 saw an extraordinary series of events such as
droughts, bushfires, social unrest and the COVID-19 pandemic
whichaffectedbusinessacrossallouroperatingunits.Onaconstant
currency basis, our Group revenue and profit from operations
decreased by 1% and 25% respectively. In Hong Kong dollars
(HKD), since the Renminbi (RMB) and Australian dollar (AUD)
depreciated, our revenue and profit from operations dropped by
4% and 28% respectively. The Group’s core fundamentals and
infrastructure are in place for a return to sustained growth once
pandemic restrictions are gradually lifted.

As the Group’s biggest revenue contributor, Mainland China
is still in its early stages of its growth journey. Hong Kong has
continued to strengthen core market share despite ongoing
local social unrest and COVID-19 pandemic. While Australia
and New Zealand supply was held back by drought, bushfires
and COVID-19, these markets continue to show an ever growing
appetite for more plant-based products. We have continued
to expand our enterprise in South East Asia while having made
progress in both Singapore and the Philippines markets.

Encouragingly, this Fiscal Year has seen a significant advance
in our Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) progress.
Beyond the Group continuing to deliver its portfolio and energy
reduction trajectory, we have achieved steady improvement in
our ESG ratings, entered the Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability
Index which includes the Top 30 sustainable companies and also
became the only company in Hong Kong to enter the Top Global
100 Sustainable Companies index of Corporate Knights. To drive
our ESG agenda with dedicated Board-level oversight, we have set
up aBoard-level ESG Committee, which meets at least twice ayear
to help steer and coach the execution of Vitasoy’s Sustainability
Framework by executive management.

FY2019/2020 also marked the completion of several major capital
investment projects. Digital transformation and shared services
centralisation of the Mainland China operations, coupled with
our new Changping production plant in Dongguan, Guangdong
province will step change efficiency, agility and provide the
capacity to support our sustainable growth plan.

ZE-NZERCRHREE  AKENEED
BRBERDEBREN  BERL MK #
SEDME2019BREEHERS  FEFE
EEMSNER  REEEREEFE  F5H
B R AR R 2 Bl D 1% K 25% o LB HE
AE - ARARBRETRE  WAREEER
B2 BT Bk 4% K 28% o REBE M RO ERERE
BE#RRTE  SRERFIZHUT - BITE

REPEER -

ERFEEERMBARZWRERNETES » &
REBERNESHEER - BETBULIEDTE - M
L2019 BRHEBHRE - EEETEWHHHED
BEEER BRARNRFEMOHERR
2 AMAKKR2019BRFSHEMRSE - B
LY D RENERAEE LTS BREZE
0 o FRAPIFE RN I N SE R E T B M X E IS EG
R SUBERRREERE -

AMHRFERMERE HEREFTHREE
RER  SAESE AEEHEELCERASKE
REFEERBE  RRRFANERE HERER
FEEELH  TEEMAELEAFERRLE
B8 WES=+RKUBERRLTZY > [
IR B AZ Corporate Knights 21k 100 X Al #54&
BRATEENE-—BBAR - ATERE - &
SRERIFEIEESHANEREE » KM
ERLESERFINERE HERERZES
ZEEEFRLETMAEHE  BRUIEEEE
BEEEEESHITHEMPINAIFERREESR o

AEETR-F-N/—E-ZPBFEZTKS
BEZEARERE - PERNBEENBIHLE
BRAZRBEPL  MEERERETHEF
HEERBRER - B RIEMENREEE
o TRERHEEERDAFERFANTIHER
RatEl -
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Group Chief Executive Officer’s Report/ Business Review

SETHARRE HEEOE

With these core fundamentals in place and the favourable
market context for continued commitment to sustainable plant-
based nutrition, the Group will be ready to gradually restore its
trajectory via relentless focus on its winning vision and strategy.

Financial Highlights

The financial position of the Group remains healthy. Key financial
indicators including revenue, gross profit margin and return on
capital employed all reflect that the Company could still maintain
its solid business position. The following table presents the
Group’s key financial highlights for the year ended 31st March

LB BB R - M ETSBE RIS
EBURH R ELEN D BENTRERRY
ERERWERERN  BSERYRNE -

HBRREE

AEBNWMBERRREFER TEHKES (8
FWA ~ EFRRERBRE) 1P REARQ T
BEREFBEEEMRR - TREJXAEEBE_-Z
—EF=ZA=+—-HBRZE-NE=ZA=+—H
LTFEENFENERE

2020 and 31st March 2019:
Year ended 31st March
BE=A=+—HLEFE
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NEF
(HK$ million) (HK$ million) Change
(BEEET) (BEEET #E
Revenue A 7,233 7,526 -4%
Gross Profit EF 3,851 4,042 -5%
EBITDA (Earnings Before RETREWA ~ BERA
Interest Income, Finance TR - 78 - BEERAR
Costs, Income Tax, Frih &% AR EEAET
Depreciation, (TEBITDA)
Amortisation and Share of
Losses of Joint Venture) 1,097 1,228 -11%
Profit Attributable to RN FRFREEE A FELER
Equity Shareholders of the
Company 536 696 -23%
Basic Earnings per Share BREARZR GBL)
(HK cents) 50.4 65.6 -23%
Gearing ratio BB E 16% 1%  +15% points
B
ROCE (Return on capital = NEEES 31% 37% -6% points
employed) BoE

12 Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #th i EIFR EEEH R A 7



Group Chief Executive Officer’s Report/ Business Review

SETHARRE HEEOE

Revenue
Fortheyearended 31st March 2020, the Group’srevenue dropped
4% to HK$7,233 million (FY2018/2019: HK$7,526 million).

Mainland China: +1% in local currency (-3% in HKD)

Whilst the outbreak of COVID-19 during second half of this Fiscal
Year disrupted continued revenue growth, we have continued to
grow market share for both core brands VITASOY and VITAin our
core markets.

Hong Kong Operation (Hong Kong, Macau and Exports): -7%
Revenue dropped as a result of the exceptional circumstances
of extended social unrest and COVID-19. However, we have
continued to gain market share in our core soy and tea categories.

Australia and New Zealand: +3% in local currency (-4% in
HKD)

Revenue grew moderately during a year of major disruptions as
we drove fundamentals and innovation.

Singapore: +8% in local currency (+6% in HKD)

Revenue growth from a rise in export sales of our tofu products.
We continued to sustain leadership in tofu, and grow our beverage
business.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The Group'’s gross profit was HK$3,851 million (FY2018/2019:
HK$4,042 million), representing a decrease of 2% on a constant
currency basis and a 5% drop in Hong Kong dollar terms,
attributable mainly by a decrease in revenue.

Gross profit margin decreased slightly to 53% (FY2018/2019:
54%), mainly attributable to lower sales volume and higher
depreciation due to increases in capital expenditure, despite the
mitigating effect of favourable commodity prices, particularly
sugar and paper packaging.

WA
BEZZ-ZF=A=1+—HLLFE  £&EEW
WAR D 4% ZE ##7,233,000,0007T (=ZB—
“E-ABEREE : 8% 7,526,000,0007T) °

REIA M - LLE B AT E +1% (LB ET
&-3%)
HAEAMBEFEETFFRE2019BREZH
LHEWAE RAPE - BRI 20 M R
EEBTWENHSIEARNEERTER

BBEK (B8 BFIRHO) :-7%
HEFEDER209BTRBEESHEHHRERS
WATER » &7 RAEZR OB R Z R mEHE
BEMTBEEER -

BONR AR - LBt &5 +3% (L8
MatHE -4%)

BEREERERNED  EREERITEN—
Frh o WANEBNIER o

g - UAEH BT E +8% (LI B¥FIE
+6%)

IRERNEHOMEE LA/ TEWALER - &M
HERBFIBERENEE N - WINESKR
% o

ENREFNE
AEBWERHBE3851,0000007T (ZF—
“E-hBHREE B 4,042,0000007T) &
EEEREEFTERD 2% HBETTEARD
5% EEHRRIIARSD ©

ERRYBKESI% (ZE— N\ —E—NTBF
B :54%) FEHREETE  UREARLZH
EMEHITELN  BAREME (LEEERE
) ERFY SRR
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Group Chief Executive Officer’s Report/ Business Review

SETHARRE HEEOE

Operating Expenses
Total operating expenses increased 3% to HK$3,188 million
(FY2018/2019: HK$3,105 million), due to higher staff related
expenses, particularly in Mainland China, in a continued
competitive environment.

Marketing, selling and distribution expenses were maintained at
the same level, being HK$2,112 million (FY2018/2019: HK$2,105
million) through stringent cost management to offset increased
staff costs from the expansion of the sales team in Mainland China.

Administrative expenses increased 13% to HK$717 million
(FY2018/2019: HK$635 million), reflecting salary inflationary
adjustments for administrative staff members and strengthened
organisational capabilities.

Other operating expenses were HK$359 million, mainly including
staff cost for other supporting functions, warehouse expenses,
management fee charged by a related party and sundry tax in
Mainland China, versus HK$365 million for the previous year.

EBITDA (Earnings Before Interest Income, Finance
Costs, Income Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation
and Share of Losses of Joint Venture)

EBITDA for the year was HK$1,097 million (FY2018/2019:
HK$1,228 million), representing a decrease of 11% year-on-year,
mainly driven by lower gross profit.

The EBITDA to revenue margin for the year was 15%
(FY2018/2019: 16%).

Profit From Operations
Profit from operations decreased by 28% to HK$707 million
(FY2018/2019: HK$977 million).

Profit Before Taxation
Profit before taxation decreased by 29% to HK$679 million
(FY2018/2019: HK$956 million).

Taxation

Income tax charged for the year was HK$109 million
(FY2018/2019: HK$208 million) with an effective tax rate of 16%,
versus 22% last year, reflecting lower profits in Mainland China.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. ZE b 3B FR @ AR A 7
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HRETIHBEAEN LEEERBRER
BEHZNTE A  BEEERITIN3% 288
3,188,000,000t (= — N\ /= — LB F
B % 3105,000,000 7T) ©

HRBENRRZEFIRE THEAREREKX
HEEKMERNE TR AAR HEE - 8
ERDPHEERABSUEFEMRRKE DB
2,112,000,000t (=ZE— N/ =—Z— "B HF
£ : /8% 2,105,000,000T) °

RERREMAZRTREIHS  URNBASRE
RS o {THE N 13% £ /& ¥ 717,000,000
T(ZE-N/ZZE-NABHREFEE: B
635,000,000 7T) °

H b4 A 585 359,000,000t » ZE8A
7B 365,000,000 © EFEEEEHMTER
KWEBIRAE BEER BESWBNERE
X Al i A H AR IE o

REFFEWA - ERX - FIEH -
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EETHRARBRE £KOmE

Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the
Company

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company was
HK$536 million, representing a decrease of 23% compared to the
previous year (FY2018/2019: HK$696 million).

Financial Position

The Group finances its operations and capital expenditure
primarily through internally generated cash as well as banking
facilities provided by our principal bankers.

As at 31st March 2020, cash and bank deposits amounted to
HK$848 million (31st March 2019: HK$1,005 million). Of our cash
and bank deposits, 8%, 82% and 6% were denominated in HKD,
RMB and United States dollars (USD), respectively (31st March
2019: 45%, 47% and 4%). As of 31st March 2020, the Group had
a net cash balance of HK$363 million (31st March 2019: HK$960
million). Available banking facilities amounted to HK$699 million
(31st March 2019: HK$940 million) to facilitate future cash flow
needs.

The Group’s borrowings (including lease liabilities) amounted
to HK$485 million (31st March 2019: HK$45 million), of which
bank borrowings amounted to HK$241 million (31st March 2019:
HK$45 million) and lease liabilities amounted to HK$244 million
(31st March 2019: nil).

The gearing ratio (total borrowings/total equity attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company) increased to 16% (31st
March 2019: 1%). Excluding lease liabilities from total borrowings,
the gearing ratio increased to 8% (31st March 2019: 1%).

The Group’s return on capital employed (ROCE) (EBITDA/average
non-current debt and equity) for the year was 31% (FY2018/2019:
37%).

RATRESFE ARGRR
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SETHARRE HEEOE

Capital expenditure incurred during the year increased to
HK$1,061 million (FY2018/2019: HK$986 million), which was
mainly spent to fund the acquisition of production equipment
for the new Changping plant in Dongguan, installation of new
production lines in both Hong Kong and Mainland China and the
continuation of infrastructure investment program in Hong Kong.

There were no assets being pledged under loan and/or lease
arrangements.

Non-financial Key Performance Indicators

The Group publishes various non-financial KPIs in the
“Sustainability Report 2019/2020”, which will be released in July
2020 together with this Annual Report.

Financial Risk Management

The Group’s overall financial management policy focuses on
anticipating, controlling and managing risks, covering transactions
directly related to the underlying businesses of the Group. For
synergy, efficiency and control, the Group operates a central cash
and treasury management system for all subsidiaries. Borrowings
are normally taken out in local currencies by the operating
subsidiaries to fund their investments and partially mitigate
foreign currency risks.

Potential Risk and Uncertainties

During the year, the Group Internal Audit and Risk Management
Department implemented an all-round Risk Assessment Process
that enabled more stakeholders at the entity-level to participate
in the risk identification, mitigation and monitoring procedures.
Opportunities for two-way communications between the
Group and the local entities are also increased during the Risk
Assessment Process to ensure practicability of implementing
Group Risk Management initiatives in the local entities. The
parameters of Key Risk Indicators (a tool to monitor risk status)
are also reviewed and revised where necessary in order to achieve
more timely and accurate detection of change in risk status and
development of mitigation actions. Besides, additional support
was given to local entities in the form of trainings and workshops
to enhance their risk awareness and capability to complete the
risk management processes. Details of these risk management
processes are covered in the Risk Management section of the
Corporate Governance Report in this Annual Report.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. ZE b 3B FR @ AR A 7

FREFSNEARZ B INE B 1,061,000,000
T(ZE-N/ZZZE-NLUBREE: B
986,000,0007T) © EEARBE R E FHME
EHEERE REFBRTERMFEES
UREERBNERZEREEE -

BEEERBENRR REERHM T LUER -

FUMBRARKRER
FEEBR-E-BFLARERER—HAMHH
(=B N/ ZB_FFTHEABRKE ] PRR
SEFNBERRAISE -

R EE
AEBNEEUNKEERRAAFAIREZE
By RMEBHEAEBMNEBEREEERNRS -
AERHREME MEREENEN  XEEBE
FEMBRARBITHRREERVHEERLG - &
EEMBAR—RUEHEMETEE 5B
REEBREES RBRIMINERE

BrERERTHABREE

FR - AREARETRAREENER -2
HERFERESF  BEZEEBRT I ARANEND
Ere2HRERIIE  FEREZRER - BAF
R EREF R IBNAEE RS A E 2B
LREEKE  URKAASERBEENEEE
AR ARRE - RMNTSEHERRARE
2 (AREERBRMARNTE) HWBE - LEE
FEEEET » UREEBERE - BEEMER AR
RN EE R AFRITEIER © EIh - FAFILUE
IR TEHHER G TiEE RREILF - RS
N EREER TR EREERFHNED -8
HAREREERFNFRENAFRNEEEER
EHEBEE R o



Group Chief Executive Officer’s Report/ Business Review

SETHARRE HEEOE

Review of Operations ¥ DREE
Mainland China HR B A i
Continued leadership of soy category and market share RIFAZmBEERTHZREHN - BMATZ
growth of both soy and tea BRAEEGTSEEE
2020 2019
—EZEFE ZE-NF
(Rounded to the nearest
million) 2020 2019 % Change Group Contribution %
(MBREAZREREE) —EZEE ZE-NF BokeH EREEERBE ST
Revenue from external KEMEEREZ
customers WA
(HK$ million) (B¥HET) 4,504 4,628 -3 62 62
Profit from operations R
(HK$ million) (BEHETT) 523 720 -27 58 62
Revenue from external KEHEEEZ
customers KA
(RMB million) (AR®BER) 4,025 3,973 +1
Profit from operations R
(RMB million) (AR®BER) 468 618 -24

Vitasoy Chinagrew 1% year-on-year in local currency terms. Since
Chinese New Year, various measures were enforced in a number
of provinces and municipalities in Mainland China to curb the
spread of the COVID-19. These necessary measures were critical
to protect the population but in the short term materially affected
our manufacturing and commercial operations, particularly in
Wuhan, Hubei province and in the on-premise and on-the-go
channels where we have significant business. In this context, very
strong growth in the e-commerce channel and continued market
share growth have confirmed the appeal and resilience of our
brand franchises.

Profits decreased by 24% in local currency comparing to last
year, due to the combination of declining revenue growth and
of the fact that a significant portion of operating expenses have
already been incurred during Chinese New Year. During the year
we have progressed the digitisation of the operation and the set-
up of a shared service centre, streamlining our internal processes
for lower costs and higher accuracy and agility. The construction
of our new Changping production plant in Dongguan, Guangdong
province has progressed and is expected to commence production
in 2020.

Due to RMB depreciation, our revenue and profits decreased by
3% and 27% respectively in HKD terms.

HMDPBEAENERHERER 1% BREN
LR - PElA 2 EE R BT S
BRBIE2019BRBSHEOIRE - BRERME
ENRERBRAEDER - BRPMEHRE
MNRENRBEREBEELEALE  LERTH
LERER AR EMEBAENREBRERNE -
HEEFBZT  EBEHREEREY  mHLE
REELA  BRARMANRERERESEE
BRENALH HEEHRARS| T -

BEEFRL  BFUAERERTTERD 24% - R
AW REETFEN XD RREEHF
A HNEEBERMY - FRARMERRBR
LEEWR LK Z RO - BEXNBESF - #
M EKRALIRSEREREENE - ERERS
THEFHEERFER TERIER  BHR-ZF
—EERRE -

HAARBERE  RANBARER UBEHE
B RIRA 3% K& 27% °
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Hong Kong Operation (Hong Kong, Macau and
Exports)

Enhanced leadership position despite exceptional challenges

BERE (8 RFMXRHEA)

BEH T RIEEAD TAREZE 5 BE M

2020 2019
2020 2019 =R=FF IR
(Rounded to the nearest —E-EF ZE-hEF
million) HK$ million  HK$ million % Change Group Contribution %
(MEREAZREIEE) BEEERT ABY¥BEERT BoLEH HAEEERE A
Revenue from external REIMEEEZ WA
customers 2,108 2,264 -7 29 30
Profit from operations R R 290 339 -14 32 29

Our Hong Kong operation continued to grow market share in
its core categories but its revenue and profit declined 7% and
14% respectively versus last year due to ongoing social unrest
and COVID-19 affecting our distribution channels. Our school
tuck shops and sales to schools were halted as the Hong Kong
Government imposed school closures in November 2019 and
during the COVID-19 pandemic.

Market share of our core brands VITASOY and VITA grew as
we combined a strong focus on fundamentals for our Classic
equities with on-trend successful innovation with the launch
of new nutritional and no-sugar platforms. We will continue to
strengthen our infrastructure and efficiency, and drive quality in
our manufacturing and logistics operations to support a winning
strategy in core categories.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. ZE b 3B FR @ AR A 7
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Australia and New Zealand

Sustained plant-based portfolio growth amid market
challenges

(Rounded to the nearest

L&

BEM ST MEE - DEEFFAERUEYA
BRENEMES

2020 2019
—F-FF TR

million) 2020 2019 % Change Group Contribution %
(MEBEAZRELRE) —ECEF ZE-NEFE AoHE HREEERE AT
Revenue from external REINEBEEZWA

customers (B¥EHER)

(HK$ million) 502 522 -4 7 7
Profit from operation R

(HK$ million) (B¥EHETT) 77 93 -17 9 8
Revenue from external REINEREEZ WA

customers (BTHETT)

(AUD million) 95 92 +3
Profit from operation KRR

(AUD million) (BTEET) 14 16 -11

The extreme drought in Australia followed by destructive
bushfires reduced the local supply of soybeans, increasing
material costs, constraining production and inhibiting our ability
to supply customers. Nevertheless, our Australia and New
Zealand business grew revenue by 3% in local currency terms
due to continued innovation in the plant-based milk space.
Operating profit decreased by 11% in local currency terms due
to a temporary significant increase in input costs and operating
expenses supporting the newly launched innovation, which should
bear fruit next year.

Due to AUD depreciation, revenue and profit declined by 4% and
17% respectively in HKD terms.

BN BBERMAKRER IR R RRR
B EMASHERMTE SR L
e EEZRRY AFFREERNEITZE
S8 o M BMRHEREBNRAUEHE
BT ENER 3% REZTE R UEMK D
RENPEER - NEBEMWFTE - KEEFR
D11% - REDMBIERM S HERENR
BRABRARKEEER - B HERSR T —@
MIHEERSER
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Singapore s
Maintained number one position in tofu plus strong export HEFETEmEEREE N EHOEBRE
growth k)
2020 2019
—EZEFE ZE-NF
(Rounded to the nearest
million) 2020 2019 % Change Group Contribution %
(MEREAZRELEE) —EZEE —E-NF BokeH HAEEERE A
Revenue from external REIEER WA
customers (B¥EET)
(HK$ million) 119 112 +6 2 1
Profit from operation F
(HK$ million) (B¥EER) 5 1 +473 1 1
Revenue from external REINEER WA
customers (ETEEBT)
(SGD million) 21 19 +8
Profit from operation REINEREE WA
(SGD million) (BTEETT) 1 - +482

Our Singaporean unit grew revenue by 8% inlocal currency terms,
continuing our multi-vector growth strategy which comprises the
sustained leadership of the core tofu market, the expansion of our
tofu exports and the step change in awareness and penetration of

our beverage portfolio.

Operating profit grew significantly at 482% in local currency
terms over last year accordingly. This was due to a more profitable
category and channel mix combined with higher manufacturing
efficiencies, upon a relatively low profit base of the last year.

Due to Singapore dollars (SGD) depreciation, our revenue grew

6% and profit grew 473% in HKD terms.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. ZE b 3B FR @ AR A 7
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Business Outlook

Notwithstanding the continuing challenges posed by the
COVID-19 pandemic in particular, the long term outlook for
the Group remains very promising. Our objective is to broaden
our impact by expanding an innovative and relevant portfolio
of tasty and nutritious plant-based beverages, whilst at same
time continuing to be a role model for sustainability and ESG
performance.

The market, retail, and consumer trends remain favourable. Our
Company has the strong strategic vision, competitive advantages
and an ever stronger team to execute the strategy and deliver the
above vision.

Our Mainland China business is still in development mode, and
scalingitupwillcomplement our other solidinternational positions
in Australia, New Zealand, Singapore and the Philippines.

Mainland China
Mainland China is expected to gradually restore its growth
trajectory during the next year.

For the time being, we have been pacing our investments and
generating efficiency and productivity gains. We will stay focused
on extending our market leadership in the soy milk category in
the markets where we compete, complementing it with additional
growth of our tea portfolio.

Hong Kong Operation (Hong Kong, Macau and
Exports)

Our home base will stay focused on quality execution of our
Classic portfolio and the launch of selective and relevant on-trend
innovation. These will now be supported by our completed capital
investments updating our infrastructure for future growth, also
enabling cost efficiencies driven by higher core volumes.
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Australia and New Zealand

Since this operation’s main business of 1 litre long shelf life packs
satisfies the home consumption occasion, we experienced some
pantry loading during March as shoppers decided to increase
their stock. Whilst this will negatively affect the first quarter of
FY2020/2021, in the medium term we expect continued growth
in this market behind our market leadership position, innovation
and very strong consumer and retail interest towards plant-based
foods and beverages.

Singapore

Similar to Australia albeit for different reasons, shoppers in
Singapore increased their purchases of our UNICURD and
VITASOY tofu lines, since the closure of restaurants due to
COVID-19 lockdown enabled much more cooking at home.
Whilst this will negatively influence our sales in the first quarter
of FY2020/2021, we expect a normalisation of buying patterns
in the second half of the Fiscal Year. We will continue to grow
and integrate our local tofu business with the expansion of our
beverage portfolio to accelerate scale up of the operation.

The Philippines

This new operation will scale up via establishing expanded brand
and market presence. With the starting of local manufacturing, we
will be able to not only improve our cost structure, but gain the
ability to better tailor our portfolio to the needs of this exciting
and fast growing market.

Conclusion

While the short term external conditions have posed significant
temporary challenges, Vitasoy Group can build on its 80 years’
proven experience of successfully navigating external disruption.
We remain confident of the relevance of our purpose and the
capability of our team to continue to implement our growth
strategies, to be a role model for exemplary sustainability in doing
so, and look forward to continuing our growth journey.

| sincerely thank our Executive Chairman and our Board of
Directors for sharing their invaluable experience, insights and
guidance, our business partners for their continued confidence
and support, and all of our associates in the Company for their
selfless dedication and contribution.

Roberto Guidetti
Group Chief Executive Officer
19th June 2020
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Awards and Recognitions
BERRE

Major Awards of Vitasoy International HMNEREEESRATR-F
Holdings Limited from 1st April 2019 to —NWFHA—RE-_FT_-EF=
31st March 2020 A=+—RHLIFAEENEERIE

Corporateft#

Hong Kong
BE

Vitasoy International Holdings Limited
HAL MBI R E B R A F

2019 Best Corporate Governance Awards: winner of Sustainability and Social Responsibility Reporting Awards
- Non-Hang Seng Index (Large Market Capitalization Category) by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants
BERBETTMASEE [RECESAAE 2019 P [AHFEREROCELSEERER | GEEERDRK (KH
&) #3)

2020 Corporate Knights Global 100 by Corporate Knights - ranks 2nd in Food and Beverage Production
category along with McCormick & Company (#1) and Campbell Soup Company (#3)

% & Corporate Knights 2020 F 2B @1 ; REVHSREEARTHBEZ » BANRKITEAT  £EEAQ
AMuHIE=

The “10 years Plus Caring Company” Logo from Hong Kong Council of Social Services
BERBHESREEHEHEE [10FPlus R REBEIZE ] EF

The “5 years Plus Consumer Caring” Logo from GS1 Hong Kong
RESEERFEBHERER [5F+EOBE | 453

“Diamond Enterprise Winner” in the “Quality Food Traceability Scheme 2019” from GS1 Hong Kong for the
third consecutive year
BE=FREFEERFHHERER [EERRREEMETEI2019 ] N EADEE |

“Manpower Developer” in the “ERB Manpower Developer Award Scheme” from the Employees Retraining
Board
EEEBEEIIBEMNN TERBAA CEEZHFE | PEEZFAT AT BE]

Vitaland Services Limited and Hong Kong Gourmet Limited

BRBBREERAAREEZRERLF

The “Caring Company” Logo from Hong Kong Council of Social Services
RERBULSREHSER MmAREEE] &R
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BERRE

Corporateit#

Mainland China
] A B

One of th&“Top Graduate Employers” by 5£ob.corp
ESlob A RBEREREAFEARBELEEREE | K2

“Excellent Quality Award 2019" by Yangcheng Evening Newspaper Group
REFHBRBRREEEMEE [2019FESMmERE]

Vitasoy China was awarded Mawards Golden Awards by Meihua.info

2018 F B R SN TERMB L HAN R (ERPRTE) — R

Vitasoy China was awarded Best Partnership Awards by Shenzhen Media Group
HHPPEESR EESESYEREEEERESIERMHE

Vitasoy (Foshan) Company Limited
#hgd (FhL) BRAF

“Outstanding Water-saving Enterprise and Energy-saving Enterprise in China Beverage industry 2019” by
China Beverage Industry Association

BRI TEBENR 2019 FhESRBHTRAKES LERBREES X

Shenzhen Vitasoy (Guang Ming) Foods & Beverage Company Limited
YN #EAM (LER) RAECEIAIRAT

“Generous Donation Award 2018” and “Community Caring Award” by Shenzhen Guangming Community

Foundation
BRIINPEZEZSESEE (2018 FHOBIE | & [# 0 A5 BEEEE | ERS

“Shenzhen Good Corporate Credibility in Environmental Protection 2018” by Shenzhen Ecological

Epvirmlr_nent Bureau N N )
BRIIMERRERTA FYIT 2018 FEREEAFTERRREFLE ]

“Caring Enterprise 2019” by Community Work Office/Volunteer Association in Guangming Street, Guangming
District, Shenzhen " N R N "
BRYImARRLAHERETHERAE RIIMABBRLAHERIHSSTR[2019FEELLE]

» o«

National excellent enterprise with foreign investment 2018 - “Excellent Taxpayment and Turnover”, “Quality
Improvement Award”, “Harmonious Labour Relations Promotion Award” and “Safety and Environmental
Protection Encouragement Award” by China Association of Enterprises with Foreign Investment/Shenzhen
Association of Enterprises with Foreign Investment

ErESERERERS RIINBRECEHSHEE2018FELAEFIERELE — [EELEER] .

[MEESR]  [FBELBEEREER ] R [ R2RERSBE]

Vitasoy (Shanghai) Company Limited
g (L8) BRAF

Economic Quality Development Enterprise - “Economic Contribution Award” 2019 by Songjiang District
Committee of the Communist Party of China/Songjiang District People’ s Government of Shanghai

EhA LETIMNIREES LETRIBARBNEZ 2019 FENIBRESERRLE | KB HRE

Vitasoy (Wuhan) Company Limited
#an () BRAE

“Harmonious Enterprise of Xinzhou District” by Xinzhou District

BRETHMARBGTS [FNEME R

"Outstanding Foreign-invested Enterprises in Wuhan, 2018-2019" by Wuhan Association of Enterprises with
Foreign Investment

ERZIHRECEHETA[2018- 2019 FERETESIHREDE ]
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Awards and Recognitions
BERRE

Brand @&

VITASOY
Y

VITASOY was awarded 2019 Golden Mouse Digital Marketing Innovative Brand Awards by Wangyingtianxia Net
(WYTXW)
MMIPREERBR TREZ 2019 FeREHTEHRARFB RS

“Vitasoy Green Campaign” was awarded 2019 iResearch Marketing Best Creative Case Awards by iResearch Group

[AMERBRESRER | B HEEBER 2019 F S HEHRRERAITEHRMAR

“Baseline x XM Super Offer Campaign” was awarded 2019 Tiger Roar Bronze Awards by Hooxiao Media

[#Eftallh x ) oREBAR OFFERIEE | BRBEHR A 2019 FRBRES L HE — AR

“Baseline x <Delicacy Story> Program co-op” was awarded the most commercial value potential IP of 2019 Lemon
Awards by WYTXW
[MMPREREEE (LRIEE) | BRBR THRMEE 2019 KEREAHEEBEDIP

“Baseline x Meituan Meal Occasion Campaign” was awarded the 11th Golden Net Entertainment Marketing
Awards by China Internet Association & Network Marketing Working Committee

N x EE AT EN S F R ETE I A S E RS TFEE SRS MENE T — B RREE
tH—EIEARE

VITASOY WHOLE
#45 WHOLE

VITASOY Whole ™ series of Soy Vanilla Chai was awarded Silver Medal and VITASOY Whole™ Almond
Double Espresso was awarded Bronze Medal in Australian Food Awards by the Royal Agricultural Society of
Victoria

EHREZFENERBREREERNWRNRRED > B Whole™RIINBENERTPEMMRE | 152
U A g SR [ 822 |
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BERRE

Brand @ k&

VLT

HUERE

“VLT x Vsinger IMC Campaign” was awarded 2019 Golden Mouse Digital Marketing Bronze Awards by
WYTXW
[ #1525 x Vsinger BE & EHIER | BERA TRBR 2019 F B EHFHEBESE — IR

“VLT x Vsinger IMC Campaign” was awarded the 11th Golden Net Entertainment Marketing Bronze Awards
by China Internet Association & Network Marketing Working Committee
[HEMEEZ x Vsinger B & B | BPE EH AN SERREHE T FEESHSHRE+ B2 RRRL

“VLT x Douyin Campaign” was awarded 2019 Top Mobile Awards Short Video Campaign Silver Awards by
WYTXW
[MEER xR SREEERE | BB R TRAEE 2019 F TMA (45%) RRMAEHER —RE

“VLT Drink More IMC” was presented Silver Award in Interactive Experience Category of the 6th TMA Mobile
Marketing Awards by WYTXW
WPRATHEEASNETMA (X)) BEIEHAR — BERRERRE (HEER [ ENBTH ] 5EEH)

VNST ZIZAl Philosophy of Life IMC was presented Silver Award in Creative Category of the 6th TMA Mobile
Marketing Awards by WXTXW
MBATHREANETMAGE) BEZHEAR —AIZERE (MAEEXNATETE2HUER)

Named among “National New Domestic Products” in 2019 by Chinese Business Network (CBN)
BE-BEIA2019FEBRRFTRE

VITASOY Health Plus
1 475 02 I

“2018 Health+ Launch Campaign” was awarded 2019 Tiger Roar Awards by Hooxiao Media
[2018 FHfIBREIME L HIEE | BEREEEEN 2019 FRBRESEHE —EFR

“2018 Health+ Launch Campaign” was awarded 2019 SHIAF Media Effectiveness Integration Bronze Awards
by Shanghai International Advertising Festival (SHIAF)
[2018 F#fefhipf@EENE EhIEE | EEE 2019 F LSEIESHREMEEE — %

“2018 Health+ Launch Campaign” was awarded the 11th Golden Net Occasion Marketing Bronze Awards by
China Internet Association & Network Marketing Working Committee

[2018 Fiftip @B IE EHIER | BHE EMAG SERREHTFEESH O MEE T —ESRRERYE
i — fhE
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

Vitasoy International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is firmly
committed to a high level of corporate governance and adherence
to the governance principles and practices emphasising
transparency, independence, accountability, responsibility and
fairness. These principles and practices are regularly reviewed and
updated by the Board of Directors (the “Board”) or its delegated
Board Committees to reflect the ever changing regulatory
requirements and corporate governance development. The
Board believes that the high standards of corporate governance
is the essential core for sustaining Vitasoy Group’s long term
performance and value creation for our shareholders, the
investing public and the other stakeholders.

BOARD COMPOSITION
ESg4AR
- five of eleven directors are independent
non-executive directors
- T REFEPAARBIUIIFNTES
- two of eleven directors are female
- T—REFETMARKM
- the Board has diverse mix of knowledge, skills,
experience and expertise

-BEEEHASIUCOME - B EREER

BOARD AND GOVERNANCE PROCESS AND
CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
ESEREARFURSHEERRR

- five Board meetings and five Sub-board Committee meetings in

HMMEREEBRATE ([ARF]) BFaK
FHEEER  URAETIEAZEAE BY
H-BHE - BEEQAF2ERRRER - A2
AESE ([E52]) IHRECESEZREE
ERRNTERZERARER - URRTEE
SPHNEERERCXELRRR -ESSHE S
BRENTGREGHEMNERSELIRERRE
RERR ARREEREMEOEREEE
% DRI RERAEARTE

GOVERNANCE HIGHLIGHTS

BEREH

FY2019/2020

-SRI SR CTREERT T ANERF R SRR ARERS

BTERREH

= = Ak

- 99% attendance rate of meetings

- SEEEREI%N

- set up of a new Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG")

Committee

SRR B REREEY
- annual performance evaluation of the Board and Executive Chairman
-BRERTERIETFERRZ
- active participation into in-house training and plant/market visit; and
engagement with continuing professional development

- BERLENRRNIIENREE, T528

W2 EFFE R R
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TEERRE

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company has, throughout the year ended 31st March 2020,
complied with the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14

ERERER

AAARBE-B-BF=A=t+-ALEE
—ERYERRARBFERAABS LTFR
8 ([ETHRAL) Hogt mAR2 CREAT R

N RS 3 S, Bn o
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock (TERERTAL) 2 F AR

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The Company’s key corporate
governance related policies
and guidelines
BARZEELEER
HBEBE KR ESI

\%

Director
Nomination
Policy
BERABE

Corporate
Governance
Policy
BEERBE

Disclosure
Compliance
Policy
WEERBE

Group Business Grou
Ethics Policy P

s Dividend Policy
REBEAR EEREBE

Group
Environmental
Policy
SEBEIRBECR

Group Risk

Management Shareholders

. Communication
Policy

Policy
EEEREE ol
s IR ERIBER R

Board
Diversity Policy
EEERE
EH (A6

Group
| Whistleblowing
Policy
EEEBHE

Investor
Relations Policy |—

REEBREBE

30 Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 44t fBEIME &£ B 5 PR A
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TEERRE

Board of Directors

The general management of the Company’s business is vested
in the Board. The Board has established various committees to
carry out specified functions assigned by the Board of Directors
which require specialised areas of expertise. The Board has
delegated the day-to-day management power of the Company to
the Executive Directors and Senior Management of the Company.
However, full delegation is not allowed for some specific matters
under the Companies Ordinance, the Listing Rules, the CG Code
or other regulatory requirements, and the final decisions on those
specific matters are required to be taken by the whole Board. A
defined schedule of matters reserved for Board decisions has
been adopted by the Board as follows:

EEE
EESREANAER CREBEETFE  WEK
_LT\HZ§E§5EE THESEZRAFABE
EXAREBR B TERE ESERAEART
quil TEERSEEEASAEEEALNTRE
B o A RIB(ABRGI) - EHRA - b
ERTASAMREZERRATE - BoBFEBELS
AHEEETMARE  WEHZERESENE
HEFEHSERRE ESECHRAUTHEZS
HR - JHAFESESHFEHREZSEE

Corporate Governance Practices and Significant Geitean DOIiCieSFingzzzrate CoveEmiEE:
> Financial Transactions R I
TEERERRERBERS o
_J Significant merger, acquisition and
divestiture
EREBHBREE
Significant i t t and joint ventt
D Long-term Strategic Plan and Annual Budget fgnitican mvefso:nr:;i;: jolntventure
RUZRRKREFERE TERERRTAEDE
4 J
Notifiable and connected transactions
I BFAMIREERS
R A Provision of significant guarantee or
Matters reserved for > AEh N ——
the Board Decisions MBRE RREABRATERE
P = N J
BFESEEEAE
ZBIE
D Appointment of Directors and Company Secretary
ZREEERATAUE
J
D Appointment and Removal of External Auditor
EERE RN BN
J

The Board strives to achieve high standards of corporate
governance practices as well as the Company’s mission to creating
valuefor our shareholders. The Boardisresponsible for developing
the strategic directions for the Company and continuous
monitoring of the performance of the general management of
the Company. Strategic planning is one of the Board’s important
functions for aligning mission and vision and sustaining long term
business growth and lot of focus and attention have been devoted
to formulation and execution of the strategic planning.

Strategic planning horizons are currently set for five years. The
Board has approved a Five Year Strategic Plan for the fiscal
years up to 2024/2025 in September 2019 and has always been
taking a proactive role in reviewing and revising the Strategic
Plan periodically in response to changes in the macro economic,
competitive business environment and regulatory requirements.

ESEHNEUSHRENEEEREARBIAR
’Aﬁ%ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬂ?‘iﬁﬁz&ﬁ cEFEFREHEAE
NEZKBEMLE  WIHFEERAARAERREE
RE - HIITRBRBACHAESSERER N
SURERREXBERNERRE  EF2RH
ﬁ‘ﬁéF%E%ﬁIﬁﬁ%JaT&iﬂ TREEHRE -

REEBERREARFE -EEECHR=E—H
FhAMESZ-Z-N —S-_HHHREELL
ZEFRERE W —BERERBLE  SEX
BRENEERK2ED  BEEHRTTRIER]
REEHRE o
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EEERRE

Board Composition

EESAM

Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI

Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO
EREBEE

Executive Chairman

BT

£ s

Dr. the Hon. Sir

Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO

FEEELE David Kwok-po LI BRRLL
ZTEEHT
Executive Director and Group Chief Independent Non-executive Director Non-executive Director
Executive Officer (\ BUHHITEE (\ HBTEE (\
HITEFEE I THAER
J J
Mr. Eugene LYE Mr. Jan P.S.ERLUND Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO
Bl kst fE EEASE
Executive Director Independent Non-executive Director Non-executive Director
HITEF @ BUIBITEE @ HETEE @
J J
Mr. Anthony John Liddell Ms.May LO
NIGHTINGALE BHELZL
RERKE

Independent Non-executive Director

BUHBITESE

£ s

Non-executive Director

HBTEE

&)

Mr. Paul Jeremy BROUGH
K4

Independent Non-executive Director

BUFHITEE

LS

Dr. Roy Chi-ping CHUNG
SFEL

Independent Non-executive Director

BUHBITESE

£ s

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. ZE b 3B FR @ AR A 7
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TEERRE

The designation, position and brief biographical information of
each Director, together with the relationship amongst each other,
Senior Management or Substantial or Controlling Shareholder
are set out in the “Directors and Senior Management” section in
this Annual Report. In addition, a list containing the names of the
Directors and their roles and functions has been published on the
websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) and the Company at www.vitasoy.com.

Number of the Independent Non-executive Directors is near to
half of the total number of Board members which also exceeds
the Listing Rules requirement for Independent Non-executive
Directors to make up at least one third of the Board.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

27%

Executive
Directors

=RYITES

27%

Three Non-executive
Directors

=RFHITES

BFEEZBE  BUMBEARKRUERESE
EEAE TERRFERRR ZBEREIINAE
FHRIESRSEEEAE] —H - LI #HFI
ESpnERREzACRBRZIRCTIBNE
BEEXZMAMRATE ([BXA]) @ERAR

A U5 www.vitasoy.com ©

BUFHTESABNESSRAMEI- o2
— FERETRAMREB L FATESANL
ESEAHEL =2 —HER -

AABEWESBEIFNTESRE EHRAE
SIBFMASN 2B UMBRE 2 BFERIE - &
DRERREBUFATESERBELAL -

46%

Five Independent
Non-executive
Directors
AEBBIIEHIT
£=
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EEERRE

Gender ¥ 3

2

Female

x

Ethnicity Bk

4

Non-Chinese

JFEH

Directors, including the Independent Non-executive Directors
and Non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of
valuable business experience, knowledge and professionalism

Male

/

Chinese

2%

Age Group F# 4 B!

41 50

51 60

61 70

Tenure Office {EB8 & 5

1

11-20

3

Over 20
20 k£

to the Board for its efficient and effective delivery of the Board

BEEZMES Z{EHA
ESSBUBRERSRICEITEREE -

Over 70
7080

Ex (BREBIFITESNFHTES) 95
By~ AR EXEARE - &

functions.
Directors’ Core skills, expertise and experlence
EES>TEHA  SEABRER
Accounting,
Audit,
Finance, Risk Manufacturing
management and Project
General LB gt Management
Management it BBR Legal technolo Marketin *ERIER
Name ®E HEEE R b B R e g HE HE
Executive Chairman HITER
Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO BREEE v/
Independent Non-executive NEHITESE
Directors
Dr. the Hon. Sir David TEEEL v/ v/
Kwok-po LI
Mr.Jan P.S.ERLUND JanP.S.ERLUND 5t 4
Mr. Anthony John Liddell RERESE v/
NIGHTINGALE
Mr. Paul Jeremy BROUGH Paul Jeremy BROUGH v
it
Dr. Roy Chi-ping CHUNG FEEFEL v
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO BRRut v
Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO BIEREE v/
Ms. May LO BHXZL v
Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI BEEELE v v
Mr. Eugene LYE i v/

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. ZE b 3B FR @ AR A 7
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Board Diversity

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy to set out the
objectives and the factors to be considered for achieving the
diversity of the Board in June 2013. The Board Diversity Policy
has been published on the Company’s website.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. Board
appointment and renewal have been, and will continue to be,
made based on merit as well as complementing and expanding
the skills, knowledge and experience of the Board as a whole. The
Remuneration and Nomination Committee reviews the progress
on achieving measurable objectives for gender and age diversity
annually and reviews such objectives, whenever applicable to
ensure it leverages diversity to contribute to the achievement
of the Company’s strategic objectives. The Remuneration
and Nomination Committee has established the measurable
objectives for achieving age and gender diversity up to the year
of 2021/2022. As at the year ended 31st March 2020, progress in
achieving the objectives are:

EEEREZ L
EFEN-Z-ZF A ARMAESEHESZ T
X ERHIEZEREZ TIHBENURE
BN ZEBEER - EEEREZ TLEERD
FIZRARBA

AAAREAESFEREZ T z#E - LRK/T
EREEE o RRER - EECRERERBE
MBI EEBRIREN ZNEURESHE R
RESSERE K ARRERDEL o FH
RiREZEERESFRIUBEMIRFRS T
ItWA S EE R EETER RN ZERZR
LUERBURBER A 2 T i BV EBA D B 2 R
B - FHRREEESCHEBE-S=-—/
CECCFEERFREMBZ TN TTER
% REBE-Z-ZTHF=A=1+—-RLFER"

EYZSEBRZEENT

Gender

14 5

Female representation during the year of 2019/2020 was 18.2%
which has achieved the target of “not less than 18%” set up to the
year of 2021/2022.

—h,/=
18 2% , IELW%_ T_— /=
EFERT [ AR 18% 1 2B -

ZoREE > aMARED

T

Age

FiR

Average age of the Board members during the year of 2019/2020
was 65 which has achieved the target of “65-67” set up to the
year of 2021/2022.

—h/—BE_BFE EEEREN
%’-ﬁﬁ“% 65m  WEENB=—ZT=—— =
B CFEMEII 658675 2B -

The Company has arranged Directors’ and Officers’ Liability
Insurance for the Directors and Officers of the Company for the
period from 1st October 2019 to 30th September 2020.

$QTE%$@7§$&HMAEEE:; N

F+A-REZZ-EFNA=THLBENE
%&ﬁﬁkﬁ;&ﬁ%°
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Changes in Directors’ Information during the year ended 31st
March 2020 and up to the date of this Annual Report are set out
below:

REBE-Z-ZHFE=A=1T-RLEERBER
FHRAPIECEETEREHEIINT

Changes in Major Appointments and Other FTEZARHMESBE 22T
Directorships
Dr. the Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI ZHEHEHLT

- ceased to be chief executive and re-designated as executive
chairman of The Bank of East Asia, Limited with effect from
1st July 2019.

- ceased to be a director of Hong Kong Interbank Clearing
Limited with effect from 1st July 2019.

Mr. Anthony John Liddell NIGHTINGALE
- ceased to be a director of Schindler Holding Limited with
effect from 19th March 2020.

Mr. Paul Jeremy BROUGH

- has been appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Toshiba Corporation, a company listed on the
Tokyo Stock Exchange with effect from 26th June 2019.

- ceased to be chairman of Noble Group Holdings Limited with
effect from 2nd October 2019.

- has been appointed as a director of Run Hong Kong Limited
with effect from 30th March 2020.

Dr. Roy Chi-ping CHUNG

- was awarded an Honorary Doctor of Science by The
University of Warwick, United Kingdom on 24th July 2019.

- was awarded a Doctor of Business Administration honoris
causa by The University of Macau on 9th November 2019.

= ceased to be chairman of Vocational Training Council on 31st
December 2019.

- BHMERDRITBARDAZITHRAH - WE
ERARDRITAERARZHITERE » B=
E-hFtA-BBEXK-

- BMEEBRTEEREEARARAZES
BZZ-hFLtA-BEBEX -

REEXE
- BMEAEERERLARZES  A-FC
ZE=ZATNABBER -

Paul Jeremy BROUGH &4

- EBEZAEABHKASURE (—ERREZEF
REMLETZAR) 2BIFEHTES
B-ZE-NFERA-tTRABEM -

- BHENoble Group Holdings Limited 2 E J& *
B-E-NFt+A=-B%EX-

-  EZ{EHRunHongKong Limited 2 E % -
B-E_ZF=A=t+HBEN-

BEFEL

- REZE-NAFLASTHHEEREERK
EERKENEE LR -

- REZE-NAFT-BNBERMREER
HKETHERBLTEN -

- RIE-AFE+ZA=+-—HBBRHMEREI
REERF—B -

Changes in Directors’ Fees

ESHEEE

Basic directors’ fees have increased 2.5% for fiscal year of
2020/2021.

R-BEZT /—E_-BBREEEAEZEER
£#IMN2.5% °

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. ZE b 3B FR @ AR A 7
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Executive Chairman and Group Chief
Executive Officer

HBITEEREETHRAR

The roles and responsibilities of Executive Chairman and Group Chief Executive Officer
are clearly defined and separate

BITEEREBTRARZACKRBECFRAERESD

Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO, the Executive Chairman is mainly
responsible for:

>
>

chairing Board meetings and shareholders’ meetings;

ensuring the Company has an effective vision and mission,
strategy and set of values and monitoring implementation of
the strategies;

providing leadership and establishing guiding principles for
the Board and promoting a culture of openness;

encouraging all board members to make a full and active
contribution to the Board’s affairs;

acting as a resource person and advisor to various Board
committees;

ensuring the Board has efficient communication channels
regarding all material issues concerning the business;

ensuring all board members have sufficient resources for
the Board to run efficiently;

ensuring good corporate governance practices and
procedures are established;

ensuring shareholders are adequately informed with respect
to the Company’s affairs;

providing continuous guidance and mentoring to the Group
Chief Executive Officer;

building and maintaining stakeholders’ trust and confidence
in the Company;

promoting social responsibility goals and giving guidance and
advice to the Group Executive Sustainability Committee;
and

providing support and guidance for special corporate
projects.

BTEIRERRBALETERS

D IREZSERRBRRAS
D BMRARMEAROEIRELD - KR
BES  WERRBENER

D FEE=SUHEREEMFRA - REMK
#9321t

D BErRESERETEALEEHBESE
BEECEK

> ARESZESERMHEERER

D HREFEHR - UVEREBIEABER
NEMBERE

D BR2EEZSHEFEEXZRER ES
SRUBRER

D BREHERFLEXEARERARER

> BRRRZDTHARAREE

D HEESWFAKRETHRARNER ;

D BURABBOHEHAQNRZEERED

D ESHEEFERIMEEISERREY
TEEERHEERER R

D ZEFERILHXEBVATIEESR -
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Mr.

Roberto GUIDETTI, the Group Chief Executive

Officer is mainly responsible for:

>

>

formulating and executing the overall strategies of all the
Group’s operations;

ensuring business development and leading general
management of all the Group’s operations;

providing the Board with a monthly management update
to keep the Board apprised of the Group’s business and
financial performance, position and prospects;

taking the lead of strategic plan meeting;

taking the lead for the development and promotion of a
sound Enterprise Risk Management system, and ensuring
appropriate actions will be taken to eliminate or mitigate
key risks;

maintaining relationship with the institutional investors and
echoed their views to the Board; and

taking lead of the Group’s long term sustainability
development and giving strategic directions to the Group
Executive Sustainability Committee.

SETHARERSAEIRRE

HERATAEEELEEE 2 BEBR
B

ERAEEMELEEMN ZERERUR
BEH R |
BRANESERIRIZEEERS &
FESSEBUTHEAEB XX RBBR
B/ RRRAS

EERBRESE
HEBRRERETRE2ERABEER
S BRSENEEEEERIBEETE
=B

HBREBBREE ZBEF  XREFER
MAPINER - &
REXREECREVKERE UK TE
B ERRIITEESRBMESME -
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Board Proceedings

The Board met five times in FY2019/2020 to discuss and approve
the Group’s long term strategic plan; to review and monitor the
financial and business performance of the Group and each of
its operating units; to consider and approve annual budget, the
financial reports; to review and approve sustainability report and
various corporate governance and sustainability related policies
and practices; and to monitor and review the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management performance.

The Board and its Committees are supplied with full and timely
information in relation to the Company, which enables them to
discharge their responsibilities. There are established procedures
for Directors to seek independent professional advice for them to
discharge their duties and responsibilities, where appropriate, at
the Company’s expenses.

During the year, a new ESG (Environmental, Social and
Governance) Committee was set up with the main objectives to
provide vision, long term guidance and report to the Board on
the Company’s Group-level Sustainability goals, strategies and
priorities and to advise the Board on environmental and social
risks of strategic significance and to provide anticipatory and
mitigation plans.

Directors have made active participation in the Board meetings,

Board Committees meetings and the Annual General Meeting
during the year.

2019

P4 5 A ;| +A AY;| nLA +A +—A +=A
BM BM BM

RN AGM
AC
BM Board Meeting EEE 2}
RN Remuneration and Nomination Committee Meeting ¥R IR 2 EE & E;
AC Audit Committee Meeting B ZE 23

EEERERF

ESER 2N/ 2RI YURFERNEMAEA
REHE - mRAEAEE  REPKBRE &
AREEAEERTEESM 2 MBREH K
B ZENENFERERMBERE  FHM
BEAFERRRERECXERRTHERRN
BzSBRBERRER  TEERNFRASEER
EERB2BHM -

EFEREZESERESAQAMEHERAE
¥ BHERTHE -AQRCHARERFRE
EEBENRERT RETHBEREEMZS
BUEXEZER  BRABAADFEXM -

FR > RRBHAILRE  HEREREES
TERENRIAAREREERNAIFEERR
B KRRELAEESRDESSRMUEMS

HESIRER  RAEARKERZRERME
REiERESSREZR - KA REERR

sTE -

R ESUEBRSHEESEE TS
SERBRRBEAE -

EE%EE

AC AC

ESG ESG Committee Meeting 1% - HEREAREZELRE

AGM Annual General Meeting IREEFRE
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Attendance records of the Directors at the Board Meetings,

R=
s
ER=]

N/ ZE_THHREE  SEENRES
EA

Remuneration and Nomination Committee Meetings, Audit FRIRAZESEE  BEREEEY
Committee Meetings, ESG Committee Meeting and Annual Z RE HENETAZESSERBRRBEEX
General Meeting during FY2019/2020 are as follows: B2 HETERIINT
Meetings Attended/Held
HEREERRE
Remuneration
and ESG Annual
Nomination Committee General Overall
Committee Audit BiE - Meeting  Attendance
Board ¥F®ME  Committee HER RFEBE Rate
Name #E g REZES] ERZEE EHRZEES RE EEHESE
Independent Non-executive BIYFHTES
Directors
Dr. the Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI ZEHESE+ 5/5 1/10 3/3 N/A 1/1 100%
TEA
Mr.Jan P.S.ERLUND JanP.S.ERLUND 5t4 4/5M 1/1 3/3 N/A 1/1 90%
TEA
Mr. Anthony John Liddell REESE 5/5 1/1 3/3 1/1@ 1/1 100%
NIGHTINGALE
Mr. Paul Jeremy BROUGH Paul Jeremy BROUGH %4 5/5 1/1 3/3@ N/A 1/1 100%
TEA
Dr. Roy Chi-ping CHUNG BEFEL 5/5 N/A N/A N/A 1/1 100%
TEA TEA TEA
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO BRRLZL 5/5 1/1 N/A N/A 1/1 100%
TEA TEA
Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO BIEASLE 5/5 0/0% N/A N/A 1/1 100%
TEA TEA
Ms. May LO BHELZ+ 5/5 0/0® N/A 1/1 1/1 100%
TEA
Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO BRELE 5/5@ 1/1@ 3/3@ 1/1 1/1@ 100%
(Executive Chairman) (BITESE)
Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI FEEEE 5/5 1/1@ 3/3@ 1/1 1/1 100%
Mr. Eugene LYE L ASIp e 5/5 N/A N/A N/A 1/1 100%
TEA TEA TEA
Average Attendance of the Board EEERETVHHER 99%
Members
Group Chief Financial Officer EEEREVBEE
Mr. Chris Kin-shing LAU BIGERL K4 5/5 N/A 3/3@ N/A 1/16 N/A
TEA TEA TiE
Group Senior Director, Internal EEABREREREERES
Audit and Risk Management MaaEs
Mr. Terence Chiu-kit CHOW BB E N/A N/A 3/3@ N/A N/A N/A
TERA TEA TEA TER TiE A
Group Director, Sustainability and S£BEAFERREREEENR
Corporate Communications e
Mr. Simeon Sing Hymn CHENG BRERELE N/A N/A N/A 1/1@ N/A N/A
TEA TEA TEA TEA TiEH
External Auditors SMEERZ BT
KPMG EERSMEHAT N/A N/A 3/3@ N/A 1/1@ N/A
TiE A iE A iE A 3B
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a) Chairman of the Board
b)  Chairman of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee
) Chairman of the Audit Committee
d)  Chairman of the ESG Committee
) Chairman of the Annual General Meeting
f) Was appointed as Committee member on 1st December 2019
g)  Attended by invitation
h)  Was unable to attend a Board meeting due to illness

The Company acknowledges the Annual General Meeting is
one of the important forums to engage our shareholders. In
the 2019 Annual General Meeting, all Directors, including
Executive Chairman, the Chairman of the Board Committees
and the External Auditors attended the meeting and answered
shareholders’ questions.

During the year under review, the Executive Chairman met with
the Independent Non-executive Directors on various occasions
without the presence of other Directors and Senior Management.

Board Committees

The Board has established a Remuneration and Nomination
Committee, an Audit Committee, an Executive Committee and an
ESG Committee with specific terms of reference.

Board of Directors

Exg

\

MisE

() EEEIRE

(b) FHRREEZEEERE

() HBREEEXE

d BE HEREAZEETE

(e) MWRBFAEERE

(l RNZB-hE+-A-AEZETAZZEERE
(8) FEEHE

(h EERFETEMAEHESE

RRABERARREFASERAREBNEER
Bez— RIZB-NFRRBFKE 2RE=S
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Remuneration and Nomination Committee

Members

K&

\%

FHNIREEES

(

Mr. Peter Mr. Anthony Mr.JanP.S. Dr. the Hon. Sir
Tak-shing LO John Liddell ERLUND %4 David Kwok-po LI
BEASE NIGHTINGALE (Independent (Chairman)
(Non-executive Director) RERELE Non-executive Director) ZEHEHL
(FELTESE) (Independent (BUHBITESE) (E£5E)
Non-executive Director) (Independent
(BUHBITEE) Non-executive Director)
(BUHHTES)

(s

(s

£y

|

£ s

\

Mr. Paul Jeremy Ms. Yvonne Ms. May LO
BROUGH %4 Mo-ling LO BHEXZL
(Independent BRKRLL (Non-executive Director)
Non-executive Director) (Non-executive Director) (HBTESE)
(BUHHTEE) (HHTESE)

£ s

Ly

Ly

During the year, Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO and Ms. May LO, the Non-
executive Directors of the Company, have been appointed as the
new members of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee
and bring in new skills or attributes to develop a Remuneration
Policy to be sustainable and align with shareholders; and to assist
and advise the Board on matters relating to the remuneration of
the Board and Senior Management, in order to motivate and retain
executives and ensure that the Company is able to attract the best
talents in the market. Identification, selection and nomination of
candidates to be successors to new Board members, the Group
CEO and Senior Management and the development of Board
succession planwould also be further strengthened with the talent
expansion of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee.
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Major responsibilities

FERES

to consider and approve the remuneration packages of
Executive Directors and Senior Management of the Group,
including salaries, benefits in kind and bonuses; bonus schemes
and other long-term incentive schemes, including share option
and other plans;

to review the structure, size, composition and diversity
(including the skills, knowledge, experience, gender and age) of
the Board;

to review Director’s time commitment;

to review policies in relation to nomination of Director and
Board diversity;

to identify and determine the measurable objectives for
achieving board diversity and monitor any progress made in
achieving such measurable objectives; and

to recommend to the Board on appointment or reappointment
of and succession planning for Director and Group Chief
Executive Officer.
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Work done during and for FY2019/2020

REARB=ZT—N/=
,\tE&fﬁJEFWEZIVE

- reviewed, discussed and approved the remuneration package
of Senior Management including the Executive Directors and
key executives of the Group by reference to the individuals’ job
responsibilities and performances, industry benchmarks and
prevailing market conditions;

- approved the discretionary bonuses and the grant of share
options, having given due consideration to both the Group’s
financial performance and the individuals’ performances
during the year in accordance with the performance-based
compensation policy recommended by an independent
consultant;

- reviewed and recommended to the Board for approval
the letters of appointment of the Executive Chairman, one
Independent Non-executive Directors and one Executive
Director;

- reviewed the structure, size and composition (including the mix
of skills, knowledge, professional qualification and experience
of the Directors) of the Board;

- reviewed the Board Succession Plan and its Road Map;

- reviewed the measurable objectives for achieving Board
diversity;

- reviewed Director’s time commitment to perform his/her
duties;

- assessed and confirmed the independence of all Independent
Non-executive Directors; and

- made recommendation to the Board for Directors’ Fees for
FY2019/2020.
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Terms of reference of the Remuneration and Nomination
Committee have been published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. The Remuneration and Nomination
Committee is provided with sufficient resources, including
the advice of independent professional firms, if necessary, to
discharge its duties.

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee held one meeting

during FY2019/2020. Each member’s attendance record during
the year is shown on page 40 of this Annual Report.
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Audit Committee BREES
Members
BB
Dr. the Hon. Sir Mr. Paul Jeremy Mr.JanP.S. Mr. Anthony
David Kwok-po LI BROUGH %t4 ERLUND %4 John Liddell
ZHERT (Chairman) N (:nde,igndgqt o) NIGHTINGALE
(Independent > on-executive Director, 7
Non-executive Director) (In(dlegsznt (BYHHTEE) i‘ﬁ,ﬁiﬁgﬁ
(B HBITESE) Non-executive Director) Non-executive Director)
(BUHBITESE) (BUHHITESE)
& g & g & ) & g

Major responsibilities

EFERE

to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the External Auditors and
their audit fees;

to meet with the External Auditors to discuss the nature and
scope of the audit;

to review the interim financial report and annual financial
statements before they are submitted to the Board;

to discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim
review and final audit, and any other matters the External
Auditors may wish to discuss, and review the External
Auditors’ management letter and management’s response;

to review the internal audit programs and to ensure co-
ordination between the Internal and External Auditors, assess
the effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems which cover all material financial,
operational and compliance controls, and ensure that the
internal audit function is adequately resourced and has
appropriate standing within the Group;

to conduct an annual review of the adequacy of staffing of the
financial reporting functions;
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Major responsibilities

FERES

- to review arrangements the employees of the Company
can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about the possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters; and to ensure proper arrangements are in place for
fair and independent investigation of those matters and for
appropriate follow up action;

- to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the External Auditors;

- to oversee and review the adequacy and effectiveness of
relevant financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management procedures that have been in place;

- to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and making recommendations to
the Board;

- toreviewandmonitorthetrainingand continuous professional
development of Directors and Senior Management;

- to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

- to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to Directors and employees;
and

- to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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Work done during and for FY2019/2020

REARBR=-Z—N /B2
BEEREZTHE

- reviewed the 2019/2020 preliminary interim results
announcement; interim financial report; preliminary annual
results announcement and annual financial statements with
management and External Auditors, and recommended their
adoption by the Board;

- reviewed with the Internal Auditor the Company’s internal
control systems and the periodic audit reports prepared by
the Internal Auditor and approved the 2019/2020 audit plan;
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Work done during and for FY2019/2020

REARR=
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reviewed the Group Risk Report prepared by the Internal
Auditor;

reviewed and approved the amendments to Risk Management
Guideline and Procedure;

met with the External Auditors to discuss the nature and
scope of the audit and reporting obligations prior to the
commencement of the audit work;

reviewed and considered the terms of engagement of the
External Auditors;

reviewed and approved/preapproved the audit and non-audit
services provided by the External Auditors, together with
their respective fees;

reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of the staff of the Group’s accounting, financial
reporting, risk management and internal audit functions,
and their training programs and budget; effectiveness of the
Group’s internal audit function and compliance with the CG
Code;

reviewed the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and Senior Management;

reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;

reviewed the code of conduct and compliance manual
applicable to Directors and employees;

reviewed the status of compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report; and

held private session with External Auditors in the absence of
Executive Directors and Senior Management.
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The Board has approved a Whistleblowing Policy in March 2012
which has been revised in November 2017. The main objective
of the Policy is to provide employees and external parties an
open and unified reporting channel and procedures to report
any serious misconduct or malpractice involving the Company
and its employees. The Audit Committee has been delegated
with the overall responsibility for monitoring and reviewing the
effectiveness of the Whistleblowing Policy. During the year, no
incident involving serious fraud or misconduct have been received
from employees nor external parties which had or would have a
material impact on the Company’s financial position and overall
operations.

The Board has adopted a Corporate Governance Policy to provide
a basic framework for developing the Company’s policies and
practices to ensure alignment of interests and expectations from
our shareholders, the investing public and other stakeholders.
The Corporate Governance Policy has been published on the
Company’s website.

The Audit Committee reviews regularly the corporate governance
structure and practices within the Company and monitors
compliance fulfillment on an ongoing basis.

Terms of reference of the Audit Committee have been published
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The
Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources, including
independent professional advice, if necessary, to discharge its
duties.

The Audit Committee met three times in FY2019/2020. Each

member’s attendance record during the year is shown on page 40
of this Annual Report.
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Executive Committee

Members
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(

Mr. Roberto
GUIDETTI
BEEREE
(Executive Director and
Group Chief Executive
Officer)

(AITEEE
EETEARE)

£y

|

Mr. Winston
Yau-lai LO
ERERE

(Executive Chairman)

(BITEE)

2

\

Mr. Chris
Kin-shing LAU
Bl EE
(Group Chief Financial
Officer)

(EEEEHEAE)

£ s

Major responsibilities

EFERE

- to operate as a general management committee under the

direct authority of the Board; and

- to consider and approve any contract, transaction and

arrangement and exercise of powers and functions as

conferred by the Board in relation to day to day management

of the Company.
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ESG (Environmental, Social and Governance)

Committee

Members
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Mr. Roberto
GUIDETTI
(Executive Director)

(BUITEE)

e

J

|

Mr. Anthony
John Liddell
NIGHTINGALE
(Chairman)
REEESE
(X&)

(Independent
Non-executive Director)

(BYUHBITEE)

1

J

\

Mr. Winston Yau- Ms.May LO
laiLO EHELL
ERELEE (I Non—execufil/e Director)
(Executive Chairman) (FHTEE)
(BTEE)

£ S\
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During the vyear, the Company has further enhanced the
sustainability governance structure with the establishment
of a Board-level ESG Committee to oversee the Company’s
sustainability issues. Through the ESG Committee’s oversight, our
Board is now able to assess ESG risks and provide strategic long-

term guidance on sustainability performance, goals and priorities.

Major responsibilities
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FERS

to provide vision, long term guidance and report to the Board

on Group-level Sustainability goals, strategies and priorities;

- toassess environmental and social risks;

- to advise the Board on environmental and social risks of

strategic significance and provide anticipatory and mitigation

plans;

- to review the Company’s sustainability performance against

declared KPIs (Key Performance Indices) and goals;

- toreview the Company’s performance in sustainability indices

and the desirability of inclusion;

- to review and approve Group-level sustainability related

policies; and

- toreview the Company’s sustainability report.
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Work done during and for FY2019/2020
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- reviewed and approved an ESG Board Statement for
publishing in the Group’s 2019/2020 Sustainability Report;

- reviewed and approved medium to long term internal
strategic direction on sustainability;

- assessed a suite of sustainability indices and provided
direction of focus; and

- approved the Group’s Climate Change Policy and Product
Health and Nutrition Policy.

- FHRHBEFBRR=-ZT-—N —ZT=FF
IRHERRBET2RE HERERE
EX-—§- LI

- EHRMERBUFERR2TRAND
REEMET A ;

- AE-EUSARRERNREHMETEE
ZhE R

- HRAEEZ ARECREURERRE
REREE -

Terms of reference of the ESG Committee was adopted by the
Board on 21st January 2020 and have been published on the
Company’s website.

The inaugural ESG Committee meeting was held in February 2020
and has approved two new Group level policies in this meeting,
namely the Climate Change Policy and Product Health and
Nutrition Policy. The former supports the Group’s stance on its
effortinaddressingclimate change challengesincluding mitigation,
adaptation and resilience. The latter formalised our approach to
product innovation, development and communications.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of

Directors

The appointmentofanewDirectorismadeontherecommendation
by the Remuneration and Nomination Committee of the Company
or by shareholders in a general meeting. Shareholders may
propose a candidate for election as Director in accordance with
the Articles of Association of the Company and the Director
Nomination Policy. The nomination procedures by shareholders
have been published on the website of the Company. Any Director
who is appointed by the Board shall retire at the next General
Meeting.

Subject to the re-election requirement of the Company’s Articles
of Association and Code Provision A.4.2 of Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules, all the Non-executive (including Independent
Non-executive) Directors of the Company are appointed for
a specific term of not more than three years under their letters
of appointment. Pursuant to the Company’s current Articles
of Association and Code Provision, all Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation at least every three years and one-third (or
the number nearest to but not exceeding one-third) of Directors
shall retire from office every year at the Company’s Annual
General Meeting.
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Director Nomination Policy
TheBoardhasadoptedaDirector NominationPolicyinMarch2012
to set out the procedures and criteria for identifying and selecting
potential candidates for the appointment of new Director/s as well
as for considering the renewal of director appointment. The Board
has delegated to the Remuneration and Nomination Committee
the authority to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
board members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of, individuals nominated for directorship;
assess the independence of independent non-executive directors;
and make recommendations to the Board to the appointment or
re-appointment of directors.

The Director Nomination Policy is intended to guide the
Remuneration and Nomination Committee when recommending
new directors and when deciding whether to recommend that
current Directors be re-elected. The Committee will carefully
consider the qualifications, skills, experience, independence,
gender diversity, time commitments and contributions of
any currently sitting director before making a re-election
recommendationtothe Company’s shareholders. Any shareholder
of the Company who is qualified to be present and vote at the
general meeting, may nominate one or more persons for election
as a director of the Company at any general meeting if the
shareholder complies with the director nomination provisions,
including without limitation the notice, information and consent
provisions under the Company’s Articles of Association or the
Listing Rules.

The Director Nomination Policy has been published on the
Company’s website.

Induction and Continuous Professional
Development

Induction programs are arranged for any newly appointed
Directors for provision of information which would assist him or
her in understanding his or her role as adirector as well as building
an understanding of the nature of the Company, its business,
products and markets. On appointment, new Directors will also
be given an induction program kit outlining the responsibilities
and duties as Directors under various regulatory requirements.
The induction kit also contains the Board procedures, including
the Terms of Reference of the Board Committees. Directors
are provided with “A Guide on Directors’ Duties” issued by the
Companies Registry and “Guidelines for Directors” issued by The
Hong Kong Institute of Directors as guidelines on the general
principles of duties of directors and a “Code of Conduct for
Directors” to avoid any conflict of interest.
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The Company also arranges continuous professional development
program to Directors at the expense of the Company. The
Company Secretary provides regularly to Directors information
about the enrollment of external training courses and seminars as
well as legal alerts and articles which are relevant for Directors
to keep them up-to-date on any legislative, regulatory and
corporate governance requirements and also professional
practices in a dynamic business world. The program would help
refresh Directors’ knowledge and skills in performing their roles,
functions and duties of directors of a listed company.

In September 2019, the Company organised an annual in-
house training program for Directors in Hangzhou city of
Zhejiang Province, Mainland China. Directors paid a visit to the
headquarters office of one of the leading e-commerce, retail and
technology companies in the world. During the visit, Directors
attended a presentation made by management team of this
leading e-commerce company to understand how this company
has developed digital economy through its technology platforms
which connects and engages its retailers, consumers, services
providers and strategic alliance partners the latest development
of technology, e-commerce and its integration with online finance
and payment platform. Its “New Retail” e-commerce concept also
helps retailers and brand owners to develop an innovative product
development strategy to understand and meet consumers’
demand in very short time.
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During Hangzhou city visit, our Directors also visited several
different retail sales channels to understand the markets in which
we operate; our target customers and our competitiveness in the
market. Directors also met local management team to understand
more about the current business performance and challenges.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. ZE b 3B FR @ AR A 7

FFEMMNBE - EST2ETEATERE TH
BEMEEmAN™S  BEREFURTSHT
BEH - ERTEENMEEERSE  THESR
R RF R E



Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

The Board also acknowledges the importance of continuous
training and development to Senior Management, which enables
them to boost their skills and knowledge to re-evaluate their roles
with a newly informed perspective and in this highly competitive
consumer product market. Senior Management is encouraged
to participate in various continuous professional development
programs and other training courses at the expense of the
Company.

All Directors and Senior Management have provided to the
Company Secretary their training records for FY2019/2020
which have been reviewed by the Audit Committee. The average
training hours of the Directors were over 56 hours during the
year. The average training hours of Senior Management were
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over 66 hours.

Directors’ Training Records

Analysis of training attended by Directors in
FY2019/2020 - by topic

EEN-Z-N/"Z-ZHRRFESMZ
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and Governance
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Analysis of training attended by Directors in
FY2019/2020 - by type
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Senior Management'’s Training Records

Analysis of training attended by Senior Management in
FY2019/2020 - by topic
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Analysis of training attended by Senior Management
in FY2019/2020 - by type
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Responsibilities of Directors

Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company. Directors are not aware
of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. The Annual Financial Statements for
FY2019/2020 are prepared on a going-concern basis. All the new
accounting standards and policies adopted by the Company have
been thoroughly discussed and approved at the Audit Committee
before adoption by the Board.

The Group has adopted itsown Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors (the “Code”) on terms no less exacting than the required
standards set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Companies contained in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules. Specific enquiries were made of all Directors
and they have confirmed compliance with the required standard
set out in the Code for the year ended 31st March 2020. A similar
code has also been adopted by the Group for the specified group
of employees who may possess or have access to price sensitive
information.
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Confirmations have been received from all Directors that they
have provided sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Company during FY2019/2020. Directors have also disclosed to
the Company their interests as director and other office in other
public companies and organisation in a timely manner, and have
regularly reported to the Company Secretary on any subsequent
changes.

Evaluation of the Board and the Executive
Chairman

The Board believes that evaluation of the Board and the Executive
Chairman is an essential requirement of good corporate
governance and has already adopted the Recommended Best
Practice for regular Board Evaluation under the CG Code as early
inFY2011/2012.

The objective of the Board evaluation is to assist the Board in
identifying and addressing its strengths and weaknesses and
highlight the Board’s expectations for itself and areas for further
improvement. The Executive Chairman has also been evaluated
on whether he has adequately and effectively performed his roles
and fulfilled his responsibilities as the Chairman of the Board.
Board evaluation is usually conducted on an annual basis.

A formal evaluation of the Board and the Executive Chairman
was conducted for FY2019/2020. During the evaluation process,
guestionnaire with scoring was used for collecting scores as well
as opinions from all the Directors. The questionnaire included 20
statements for Board evaluation and 10 statements for Executive
Chairman evaluation. Completed evaluation forms were sent to
the Company Secretary on a confidential basis. The Company
Secretary then prepared a summary report of the aggregate
evaluation results for review and discussion in the Board meeting.
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D Board composition and effectiveness

EESHRRBERME
D Board behavior and culture
BEETARXL
D Board meeting procedures
EESEEER

Evaluation of
the Board

Strategic direction and planning
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EBIRHERR

D Risk management and internal control
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All Directors have actively participated in the whole evaluation
process. Responses from the Board members were overall very
positive, with six of the seven Board evaluation areas recorded
an average score of 8.5 or above (full score is 10). There was
particularly high scores for “Corporate Governance Practices”.

Evaluation
of Executive
Chairman

Personal attributes
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Overall weighted scores in seven evaluation areas
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The Executive Chairmanhas adequately and effectively performed
his roles and fulfilled his responsibilities as the Chairman of the
Board. No major areas of concerns were found in the evaluation
results.

Directors have proposed a few valuable and constructive
recommendations for continuous improvement of the Board’s
performance, mainly in the areas of board composition; board
meeting procedures; strategic direction and planning; conflict
of interest best practice; sustainability and business risk
management.

Executive Chairman as the leader of the evaluation process has
reviewed summaries of the aggregate evaluation results of the
Board and Executive Chairman. He then provided his responses
and proposed a few action plans to address the areas identified
from the evaluation results. Executive Chairman’s responses and
action plans have also been discussed amongst the Directors for
formal endorsement.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company and
has been appointed by the Board. The Company Secretary is
responsible for facilitating the procedures/activities of the
Board and the Board Committees as well as good communication
flow amongst the Board members, shareholders and Senior
Management.

The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is subject
to Board approval. The Company Secretary reports to both the
Executive Chairman and the Group Chief Executive Officer.
The Company Secretary is accountable to the Board for matters
relating to Directors’ duties, such as giving advice on corporate
governance developments and compliance and facilitating the
professional development programme and induction programme
of Directors. All members of the Board have access to the advice
and service of the Company Secretary.

During the year, the Company Secretary undertook over 17
hours of external CPD training courses to keep abreast of latest
regulatory changes and corporate governance practices and to
refresh her skills and knowledge.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

TheBoard acknowledgesits responsibility for therisk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness.
The systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. To achieve this, the Board ensures that
there is an effective framework of risk governance and ongoing
risk management process to promote the long-term success of the
Company.

TheBoardisentrustedwiththeoverallresponsibility onanongoing
basis for ensuring that appropriate and effective risk management
and internal controls are maintained to provide reasonable
assurance against material misstatement of information. Main
features of the risk management and internal control systems are
described in the sections below:

Internal Control

The Company has had in place an internal control system, which is
developed based on the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (COSO) components for internal
controls, to manage and mitigate rather than to eliminate business
risks. The key underlying components of effective internal control
system are illustrated as below:
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Set the tone at the top regarding

the importance of internal

control & risk management
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Environment
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to mitigate risks to the
achievement of the objectives
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Assessing risks and reviewing the effectiveness of internal
controls is a continuing process in the Company. Our internal

&“%”
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control system is designed to give reasonable assurance that:

° Assets are prudently safeguarded;

BEEESGHEERE

e  Businessactivities are conducted in an effective and efficient o  LBEMRSMzANETESLTE ;
manner;
e  Financial reporting is accurate, timely and complete; and o EHERE - EERTEZHMERS
e Lawsand regulations relevant to the business are complied. o BTEHEEMHEBIEAERER -
Under the Company’s internal control system, management is EARDNBZAEEZERZT > EBEBEERTR
FITRIBES RIS - ﬁ'ﬁ%%ﬁ’&%ﬁ?é )25

charged with the responsibility to design and implement the
internal controls while the Board and the Audit Committee
oversee the effectiveness of the internal control system that have

been putin place.
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Internal Audit

Group Internal Audit (a team under Group Internal Audit and Risk
Management Department) plays a critical role in monitoring the
internal governance of the Company.

The scope of services of the department is set out in the approved
Internal Audit Charter and includes:

° Unrestricted access to all the Company’s activities,
personnel, properties, and other information
sources required to carry out internal audits;

records,

° Review the effectiveness of internal control over
operational, compliance and financial reporting as well as

risk management function; and

° Specialreviewsof areas of concernidentified by management
or the Audit Committee.

Group Internal Audit, reporting to the Audit Committee, provides
independent assurance as to the existence and effectiveness of
risk management functions and controls in business operations.

Using risk assessment methodology and taking into account
the Company structure, management’s concern, nature and
complexity of operation, and operating environment, Group
Internal Audit prepares its annual audit plan which is reviewed
and approved by the Audit Committee. The risk assessment
methodology assists in identifying business risks and determining
audit frequencies. Based on the approved audit plan, Group
Internal Audit schedules its internal audit programs to conduct an
independent review of different financial, business and functional
operations and activities with resources focusing on areas with
higher risk.

During FY2019/2020, Group Internal Audit issued reports to
Senior Management covering various operational and financial
units of the Company and its subsidiaries. Group Internal Audit
also conducted reviews of major projects and areas of concern
identified by management.
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Risk Management Rk EE

Risk management framework with effective governance structure KA ERBEEER  EREXNRKRES
and management process are in place. Such framework enables EEREERER  BBERFAQTEHRIGE

the Company to adopt a proactive and structured approach to BRERGIZE L BERFEEBRES &5l
identify and manage risks across the Company with ongoing REBARQATFAERZER

monitoring and oversight.

Risk Management Framework
[ B AE 2R

e Audit Committee
Oversight &7 (On behalf of the Board)
EREEE (RREEY)
o Group Internal Audit
SEERIET

Enterprise Risk Management
Executive Committee
TERBREEHTEES
Entity CEOs

5 A RITBER

Group Risk Management
RERBRERE Anticipate
AR

e Department Heads &
Individual Employee

BHEERMERET

Respond
sl

Regulate
BLER
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Risk Governance Structure BB ERRE

The risk governance structure consists of three layers of roles and AEESEEEETI=(AREzACGKREE :
responsibilities as explained below:

Layer Roles and Responsibilities BE BERBEE
Oversight Audit Committee, acting on behalf of the Board EE [AXRESEERZEE
. Oversee the Company’s risk management and c BEEEXRARZAREERRA
internal control on an ongoing basis. EBEEHE o
. Oversee those risks that warrant the - EBZEEEERECRERR
Committee’s attention and supervise risk WEERBEERF  UREE
management process as part of good corporate R2hxER -
governance.
Group Internal Audit SEERIEST
. Conduct independent review on the - HRREERADEZRS 2K
effectiveness of risk management and internal METBIUER LTRNEZXZEE
control systems and provide risk assurance to SIRERBRE o
Audit Committee.
Risk Enterprise  Risk Management Executive B TERRBREEHTEEEREAA
Monitoring &  Committee & Entity CEOs BNk FITHEAR
Review . Design, implement and monitor the risk oL o EBERREREREERA

ok

management and internal control system. PEEIRZRARE o

- Provide assurance to the Audit Committee - ERZESRHEBERKER
on the effectiveness of risk management and RAZBEEIE R BRI Z R ©
internal control systems.

Group Risk Management, an independent SERREELAEERIIETRE

team under Group Internal Audit and Risk R EEIMET 2B LB

Management

. Support the Audit Committee and Enterprise  TEBERZEERCERRERE
Risk Management Executive Committee HITEEE -

. Develop and implement risk management c EIEMBARR I RIITRER
frameworks, policies, tools and methodologies EEER -BKR  TARFE-
with all subsidiaries

- Monitor status of risk and communicate with - BEERRRAARR  WERBITE
the Executive Committee and Audit Committee EERERZESHERR -

on an ongoing basis

Risk & Control Department Heads & Individual Employee B MEAFERERNET
i 2 il P =
Ownership . Ownership of managing risks, executing ;S;ZE - REEEEPEERAR  HTE
control activities and identifying new risks in = R B R R B FT RS o

daily operation.
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Risk Management Process

Our risk management process is embedded in our daily operations,
financial activities, compliance, strategy development & business
planning, investment decision and external factors. The processes
are as follows:

° Anticipate: Potential risks and threats that are related to
different business processes and relevant to the Company’s
objectives will be anticipated and identified by all individual
staff.Risks are groupedintosixclusters (including reputation,
strategy, market, liquidity, credit and operation) to facilitate
the assessment appropriately.

° Rate: Each identified risk is evaluated on the basis of
impact and likelihood consistent with the risk appetite set
by the Board. The risk impact and likelihood will be rated
according to the historical records, statistical analyses
and relevant experiences, specialist and expert judgments
by management. Group Risk Management facilitates the
evaluation process including the summary discussion in the
Enterprise Risk Management Executive Committee and
Audit Committee.

° Respond: A delegated management is assigned to each risk
as risk owner to fully respond on each risk. Risk management
strategies and corresponding control owners are identified
by risk owner to deploy appropriate control activities.

° Regulate: We take a close monitoring on the current status
of risk, which is being monitored through key risk indicators
with defined thresholds, occurrence of related incidents,
control effectiveness and audit results. Any change in
current status of risk to a worsened level will trigger a react
process through creation of a mitigation plan.

° React: When there is a change on the current status of risk,
the corresponding owner will coordinate mitigation plan
with action details, responsible person and timeline to
address the status.
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° Report: To support the oversight of the Board on the
effectiveness of Vitasoy’s risk management, risk reporting
requirement was approved by the Board of Directors under
risk management framework. Periodicrisk reportis provided
to the Enterprise Risk Management Executive Committee
summarizing the results of risk monitoring, mitigation plans
and the current risk management implementation progress.
Besides, since the launch of the Governance, Risk and
Compliance System (“GRC System”) in mid-2018, Enterprise
Risk Management Executive Committee and risk owners
are able to obtain real-time risk status through the relevant
system dashboards.

In the coming year, we will introduce additional risk monitoring
activities in order to enable proactive identification of risk alerts
in the business environment. This is achieved through the use of
data analytics and the monitoring of emerging situations from
external environment.

Risk Management Activities

° Enhanced Risk Assessment Process

To achieve a more all-rounded analysis on the risks that
would affect our business operations, we had adopted
an enhanced Risk Assessment Process in this year. This
enhanced Process enabled a broadened participation of
stakeholders at the entity-level to participate in the risk
identification, mitigation and monitoring process. Besides,
the enhanced Risk Assessment Process also emphasized on
a two-way communications process between the Group and
the local entities, which had helped to ensure practicability
of implementing Group Risk Management initiatives in the
local entities.

° Revamp of Key Risk Indicators (“KRIs”)
In Vitasoy, KRIs are used as one of the key tools to monitor
risk status. During this year, the definition and threshold of
the KRIs are being reviewed and revised where necessary.
This resulted in a more timely and accurate detection
of change in risk status, in order to develop appropriate
mitigation actions.

° Enhanced Facilitation Role in Risk Management Processes
This year, more support was given to local entities on
completion of the ERM Processes. Training and workshops
were organized by Group Risk Management to achieve
more effective completion of the Risk Assessment Process.
Besides, consultation sessions were arranged where
necessary to enhance risk awareness and risk mitigation
capabilities of our senior staffs in local entities. Lastly, the
publications of Vitasoy News were utilized ascommunication
channel with general staff to cultivate risk awareness.
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Review of Risk Management and Internal
Controls Effectiveness

Group Internal Audit has conducted annual review of the
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and internal
control system, including those of its operating companies. The
Audit Committee has reviewed the findings and impartial opinion
of Group Internal Audit on the effectiveness of the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems.

The Board, with confirmation from management, considered the
risk management and internal control systems are effective and
adequate for the year ended 31st March 2020. No significant
areas of concern that might affect the financial, operational
and compliance issues and risk management functions of the
Company were identified. The scope of this review also covered
the adequacy of resources, qualification and experience of staff of
the Company’s accounting, financial reporting and internal audit
functions and their training and budget.

Inside Information

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company is aware
of the requirements under the applicable Listing Rules and
Securities and Futures Ordinance and the overriding principle that
inside information should be announced as soon as reasonably
practicable after such information comes to our attention unless it
falls within any of the safe harbours provisions under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance. The Company has had a system in place
with established policies and procedures for complying with the
Inside Information disclosure requirements under the regulatory
regime. The Board has adopted a Disclosure Compliance Policy
on 27th November 2012 which has been revised with a few
housekeeping amendments on 30th March 2020. The Policy has
been formulated by reference to the “Guidelines on Disclosure
of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and Futures
Commission. The purpose of the Policy is to provide Directors
and employees with guidelines on assessing, reporting and
disseminating inside information, maintaining confidentiality and
abiding shares dealing restrictions. The Company has included
in its code of conduct and staff handbook a strict prohibition on
the unauthorised disclosure or use of confidential and inside
information.
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External Auditors

KPMG has been appointed as the External Auditors of the
Company by shareholders at the last Annual General Meeting. An
amount of HK$5.7 million (FY2018/2019: HK$5.6 million) was
charged for FY2019/2020 for statutory audits for the Company
and subsidiaries. The amount for the other non-audit services
provided by KPMG for the Company and subsidiaries during the
year was HK$3.8 million (FY2018/2019: HK$24.5 million). The
non-audit services mainly comprised design and execution of
digitisation project and tax advisory services. The non-audit fee
decreased versus the previous year due to substantial reduction
of consultancy services rendered by KPMG for digitisation during
the year.

The responsibilities of the External Auditors with respect to the
FY2019/2020 financial statements are set out in the section of
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 99 to 105.

Dividend Policy

The Board has adopted a Dividend Policy to provide guidance to
the Board and the management of the Company for distribution
of surplus funds to its shareholders.

In determining the level of dividend payment, the following
criteria and consideration must be taken:

- Sharing of success with shareholders

- Liquidity and capital requirement

- Historical trend of dividend payout

- Benchmarking with competitors within the industry
- Fulfilment of financial covenants

- Taxation impact

- Restrictions

- Other factors that may deem relevant

The Company intends to declare dividends to shareholders semi-
annually in an aggregate amount per year of approximately 60%
of the anticipated consolidated net annual profit attributable
to shareholders net of one-off event impact and may declare
special dividends from time to time in addition to interim or
final dividends. The determination to pay dividends and level of
dividend to be distributed will be subject to the discretion of the
Board from time to time.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Procedures for Shareholders to convene General
Meeting

Pursuant to section 566 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies
Ordinance”), shareholders representing at least 5% of the total
voting rights of all the shareholders having a right to vote at
general meetings are entitled to send a request to the Company to
convene a general meeting. Such request must state the general
nature of the business to be dealt with at the meeting and may
include the text of a resolution that may properly be moved and
is intended to be moved at the meeting. A request may be sent to
the Company Secretary at the Company’s registered office in hard
copy form or in electronic form to ir@vitasoy.com and must also
be authenticated by the person or persons making it.

Procedures for Shareholders to request circulation
of statement at General Meeting

Pursuant to section 580 of the Companies Ordinance,
shareholder/s representing at least 2.5% of the total voting
rights of all the shareholders or at least 50 shareholders, who
have a relevant right to vote, can request the Company in writing
to circulate to the shareholders a statement of not more than
1,000 words with respect to a matter mentioned in a proposed
resolution to be dealt with at that meeting or other business to be
dealt with at that meeting. A request may be sent to the Company
Secretary at the Company’s registered office in hard copy form
or in electronic form to ir@vitasoy.com and must identify the
statement to be circulated. It must be authenticated by the person
or persons making it and be received by the Company at least 7
days before such meeting.

Procedures for proposing a Person for Election as a
Director at General Meeting

Under the Articles of Association of the Company, if a shareholder
wishes to propose a person other than a retiring Director for
election as a Director at a general meeting, the shareholder should
deposit a written notice of nomination which shall be given to the
Company within the 7-day period commencing the day after the
despatch of the notice of the meeting (or such other period as may
be determined and announced by the Directors from time to time)
and in no event ending no later than seven days prior to the date
appointed for such meeting. The procedures for shareholders
to propose a person for election as a Director have also been
published on the Company’s website.
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Constitutional Document

During the year, there has been no change in the Company’s
Articles of Association. A copy of the latest consolidated version
of the Articles of Association of the Company has been published
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Communications with Shareholders and

Investors

We believe accountability and transparency are indispensable for
ensuring good corporate governance and, in this regard, timely
communication with our shareholders is crucial.

The Board has adopted a formal Shareholders Communication
Policy to ensure that shareholders are provided with ready, equal
and timely access to the Company’sinformation. The Shareholders
Communication Policy has been updated on 30th March 2020 and
been posted on the Company’s website.

We maintain a corporate website (www.vitasoy.com) to keep
our shareholders and the investing public posted of our share
price information, latest business developments, final and interim
results announcements, financial reports, public announcements,
corporate governance policies and practices and other relevant
shareholder information.

The Company views its Annual General Meeting as one of the
important platforms to communicate with its shareholders. All
Directors and Senior Management make an effort to attend the
Annual General Meeting. At the 2019 Annual General Meeting,
the Chairman of the Board briefed shareholders the business
review and the outlook of the Group and answered questions
raised by shareholders. The chairman of the Remuneration and
Nomination Committee and the chairman of the Audit Committee
were also present to answer questions raised by shareholders. The
Company’s External Auditors attended the 2019 Annual General
Meeting to address questions about the conduct of the audit, the
preparation and content of the auditors’ report, the accounting
policies and auditors’ independence.

Separate resolutions in respect of each substantial issue, including
the appointment and re-election of Directors were proposed by
the Chairman at the Annual General Meeting and were voted
on by poll. The detailed procedures of conducting a poll were
explained by the Chairman at the commencement of the Annual
General Meeting to ensure that shareholders were familiar with
such procedures. An independent scrutineer was appointed to
count the votes and the poll results were posted on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company on the same day following
the Annual General Meeting.
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We manage investor relations systematically as a key part
of our operations. We maintain regular bilateral, open and
regular communications with existing and potential investors
to ensure that the investment community has a balanced and
updated view of the performance of the Company and relevant
business development. As such, the Company developed and
adopted a formal Investor Relations Policy as the guidelines
for conducting investor relations activities. We have set up a
dedicated email account at ir@vitasoy.com for shareholders and
general investing public, fund managers, analysts and the media
for a two-way communication with the related stakeholders. We
keep our investors abreast of the Group’s latest developments
and strategies through direct communications including results
announcement events, group and individual face-to-face
meetings, telephone conferences and email with shareholders
and investors. All bilateral meetings have to be attended by at
least two designated representatives of the Company, while
always taking reference of applicable regulatory requirements
and internal guidelines for fair disclosure of information without
offering advantage to any particular investor or financial analyst.
We also leverage media platform to update our latest corporate
development. In addition, we are proactive in responding to
general enquiries raised by the investing public, individual and
institutional investors and analysts. In order to keep updated with
the latest market practices on investor relations, the delegated
persons engaged in investor relations activities often attend

industry seminars or training sessions on various topics.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Chairman

Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO (SBS, BSc, MSc), aged 79, is the
Executive Chairman of the Group. Mr. Lo was appointed
a Director of the Company in 1972. Mr. Lo graduated
from the University of lllinois with a Bachelor of Science
degree in Food Science and gained his Master of Science
degree in Food Science from Cornell University. Mr.
Lo is an Honorary Court Member of the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology and life member
of Cornell University Council. Mr. Lo is a director of Ping
Ping Investment Company Limited. He is also a director
of The Bank of East Asia, Limited, a company listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. He was a member of The
National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference. Save as disclosed, he has not
held any directorship in other listed public companies
in the last three years. He is the father of Ms. May Lo (a
Non-executive Director of the Company) and Ms. Joy
Cheung Lo (a substantial shareholder of the Company),
the brother of Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling Lo (a Non-executive
Director of the Company), Ms. Myrna Mo-ching Lo
and Ms. Irene Chan (the substantial shareholders of
the Company) and the relative of Mr. Peter Tak-shing
Lo (a Non-executive Director of the Company), Mr.
Eugene Lye (an Executive Director of the Company),
Mr. Christopher Lye, Ms. Keiko Aun Fukuda and Ms.
Alexandra Chan (the substantial shareholders of the
Company).

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. the Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI (GBM, GBS, OBE, JP,
MA Cantab. (Economics & Law), Hon. LLD (Cantab), Hon.
DSc. (Imperial), Hon. LLD (Warwick), Hon. DBA (Edinburgh
Napier), Hon. D.Hum.Litt. (Trinity, USA), Hon. LLD (Hong
Kong), Hon. DSocSc (Lingnan), Hon. DLitt (Macquarie), Hon.
DSocSc (CUHK), FCA, FCPA, FCPA (Aust.), FCIB, FHKIB,
FBCS, CITP, Officier de I'Ordre de la Couronne, Grand Officer
of the Order of the Star of Italian Solidarity, The Order of
the Rising Sun, Gold Rays with Neck Ribbon, Commandeur
dans I'Ordre National de la Légion d’Honneur), aged 81, was
appointed aDirector of the Company in 1994.Sir David is
the executive chairman of The Bank of East Asia, Limited,
a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. He
is a member of the Council of the Treasury Markets
Association. He is also an independent non-executive
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director of Guangdong Investment Limited, The Hong
Kong and China Gas Company Limited, The Hongkong
and Shanghai Hotels, Limited and San Miguel Brewery
Hong Kong Limited, all being companies listed in Hong
Kong. Sir David is founding chairman of The Friends of
Cambridge University in Hong Kong Limited, chairman
of the Advisory Board of The Salvation Army, Hong
Kong and Macau Command, chairman of the Executive
Committee of St. James’ Settlement and a fellow of the
Hong Kong Academy of Finance. He was a member of
the Executive Council of Hong Kong from 2005 to 2008
and the Legislative Council of Hong Kong from 1985 to
2012. He was an independent non-executive director of
PCCW Limited. Save as disclosed, he has not held any
directorship in other listed public companies in the last
three years.

Mr.Jan P.S. ERLUND, aged 81, was appointed a Director
of the Company in 2006. He graduated with a Master
degree in Law from the University of Aarhus and studied
at the Nordic Institute for Maritime Law, the University
of Oslo. Mr. Erlund was admitted to the Danish Bar in
1968 and was admitted to the Supreme Court in 1976.
Mr. Erlund is now a partner in Copenhagen Chambers
focusing on Danish and international arbitration. He was
apartner of Gorrissen Federspiel Kierkegaard, a law firm
in Copenhagen, Denmark. He was the president of the
Danish Bar and Law Association, president of the Danish
Maritime Law Association and chairman of the Maritime
and Transport Committee of the International Bar
Association. Mr. Erlund was the chairman of the board of
directors of The East Asiatic Company Ltd. A/S and Dansk
Skovselskab A/S, deputy chairman of ERRIA A/S and a
member of the board of directors of PSA International
Pte. Ltd., all being companies listed overseas. Save as
disclosed, he has not held any directorship in other listed
public companies in the last three years.
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Mr. Anthony John Liddell NIGHTINGALE (CMG, SBS,
JP), aged 72, was appointed a Director of the Company
in 2015. Mr. Nightingale graduated from Peterhouse
College, University of Cambridge with a degree in
Classics. Mr. Nightingale was Managing Director of
the Jardine Matheson Group (“Jardine Group”) from
2006 to 2012. He joined Jardine Group in 1969 and
was appointed a director in 1994. Mr. Nightingale is
currently a non-executive director of Jardine Matheson
Holdings Limited and of other Jardine Group companies.
Theseinclude Dairy Farm, Hongkong Land, Jardine Cycle
& Carriage, Jardine Strategic and Mandarin Oriental.
Jardine Matheson Holdings Limited has astandard listing
on the London Stock Exchange as its primary listing,
with secondary listings in Bermuda and Singapore. Mr.
Nightingale is also a non-executive director of Prudential
plc, a company with primary listings on stock exchanges
in London and Hong Kong and with secondary listings
on stock exchanges in Singapore and New York (ADRs).
He is also the non-executive director of Shui On Land
Limited, a company listed in Hong Kong. Mr. Nightingale
is a commissioner of PT Astra International Tbk. He is
a member of The Chief Executive’s Council of Advisors
on Innovation and Strategic Development, a member
of the HKUST Business School Advisory Council, the
chairperson of The Sailors Home and Missions to
Seafarers in Hong Kong and the chairman of the Friends
of Uppingham School Limited. Mr. Nightingale is the
former chairman of the Hong Kong General Chamber of
Commerce and was appointed as a Hong Kong, China’s
representative to the Asia Pacific Economic Cooperation
Business Advisory Council from 2005 to 2017 and a
Hong Kong representative to the APEC Vision Group
from 2018 to 2019. He was a non-executive director of
Schindler Holding Limited. Save as disclosed, he has not
held any directorship in other listed public companies in
the last three years.
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Mr. Paul Jeremy BROUGH, aged 63, was appointed
a Director of the Company in 2016. Mr. Brough
graduated from Nottingham Trent Business School
with a Bachelor’s degree (Honours) in Business Studies.
Mr. Brough is an associate of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, an associate of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
an associate of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment
Institute. Mr. Brough is an independent non-executive
director of GL Limited, acompany listed on the Singapore
Stock Exchange, an independent non-executive director
of Habib Bank Zurich (Hong Kong) Limited, a Hong Kong
restricted licence bank, an independent non-executive
director of Toshiba Corporation, a company listed on
the Tokyo Stock Exchange and an independent non-
executive director of The Executive Centre Limited. Mr.
Broughwas an executive director and chief restructuring
officer of China Fisheries Group Limited (listed on the
Singapore Stock Exchange) from January 2016 until
30th June 2016. Mr. Brough joined KPMG Hong Kongin
1983 and held appointments as its Head of Consulting
in 1995 and as Head of Financial Advisory Services in
1997. In 1999, he was appointed the Asia Pacific Head
of KPMG’s Financial Advisory Services business and a
member of its global advisory steering group. He held
the position of Regional Senior Partner of KPMG Hong
Kong from April 2009 before retiring in March 2012.
Mr. Brough also occupies the following positions in not-
for-profit entities: member of the General Committee
of The Hong Kong Club, director of the Hong Kong
Club Foundation Limited, director of Sailability Hong
Kong Limited and director of Run Hong Kong Limited.
Mr. Brough is also a director of Blue Willow Limited, a
private limited company. Mr. Brough was the executive
chairman of Noble Group Limited, a company listed
on the Singapore Stock Exchange, and its successor
company, Noble Group Holdings Limited from May 2017
to October 2019. Save as disclosed, he has not held any
directorship in other listed public companies in the last
three years.
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Dr. Roy Chi-ping CHUNG (GBS, BBS, JP), aged 67, was
appointed a Director of the Company in June 2017. Dr.
Chung holds a Doctor of Engineering Degree from the
University of Warwick, United Kingdom and Doctor of
Business Administration Degree from City University of
Macau.Hewasre-appointed as anIndustrial Professor by
the University of Warwick, United Kingdom in December
2015. He was awarded an Honorary Doctor of Business
Administration by the Lingnan University in 2015, an
Honorary Doctor of Business Administration by the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2007, an Honorary
Doctorate Degree by the University of Newcastle, New
South Wales, Australia in 2006, an Honorary Doctor of
Science by The University of Warwick, United Kingdom
in 2019 and a Doctor of Business Administration
honoris causa by The University of Macau in 2019. He
was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) Medal
and Gold Bauhinia Star (GBS) Medal by the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region Government on 1st
July 2011 and 1st July 2017 respectively. He was also
appointed as Justice of Peace by the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region Government on 1st July 2005
and won the Hong Kong Young Industrialists Award
in 1997. In November 2014, he was further awarded
the Industrialist of the Year. Dr. Chung has been highly
dedicated to the advancement of industry and had been
the Chairman of the Federation of Hong Kong Industries
until 5th July 2013. In addition, Dr. Chung has served on
various advisory committees of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region Government and is also an active
member of many social committees and associations. He
had been appointed as chairman of Vocational Training
Council from 1st January 2018 to 31st December 2019.
Dr. Chung is a co-founder and currently a non-executive
director of Techtronic Industries Company Limited. Dr.
Chung is also an independent non-executive director
of TK Group (Holdings) Limited and Fujikon Industrial
Holdings Limited, all being companies listed in Hong
Kong. Dr. Chung retired as independent non-executive
director of Kin Yat Holdings Limited and KFM Kingdom
Holdings Limited effective from 25th August 2014 and
27th August 2015 respectively. Save as disclosed, he has
not held any directorship inother listed public companies
in the last three years.
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Non-executive Directors

Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO, aged 72, was appointed a
Director of the Company in 1993. Ms. Lo received a
Bachelor of Arts degree from Oberlin College, Ohio
in the United States and undertook graduate studies
in Urban and Regional Planning at the University of
Toronto in Canada. Ms. Lo joined the Group in 1980
and was the President of Vitasoy USA Group until 2001.
Ms. Lo was the president of the Soyfoods Association of
North America which represents more than 30 soyfoods
companies covering the US and Canada. She does not
hold/has not held any directorship in other listed public
companies currently and in the past three years. She
is the mother of Ms. Keiko Aun Fukuda (a substantial
shareholder of the Company), the sister of Mr. Winston
Yau-lai Lo (an Executive Chairman of the Company), Ms.
Myrna Mo-ching Lo and Ms. Irene Chan (the substantial
shareholders of the Company) and the relative of Mr.
Peter Tak-shing Lo (a Non-executive Director of the
Company), Ms. May Lo (a Non-executive Directors of the
Company), Mr. Eugene Lye (an Executive Director of the
Company), Ms. Joy Cheung Lo, Mr. Christopher Lye and
Ms. Alexandra Chan (the substantial shareholders of the
Company).

Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO, aged 58, was appointed a
Director of the Company in June 2017, Mr. Lo holds a
Bachelor’s Degree in Electronic Engineering & Physics
from the Loughborough University of Technology, a
Master’s Degree in Medical Physics from the University
of Surrey, a Doctorate’s Degree in Medical Physics
from the University of London and an Honorary Fellow
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lo is
an executive director and the chief executive officer of
Cafe de Coral Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Mr. Lo is the chairman and a
trustee of Lo Kwee Seong Foundation (a charitable trust)
being a substantial shareholder of the Company within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO. Save as disclosed,
he has not held any directorship in other listed public
companies in the last three years. Mr. Lo is the relative
of Mr. Winston Yau-lai Lo (an Executive Chairman of
the Company), Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling Lo (a Non-executive
Director of the Company), Ms. May Lo (a Non-executive
Director of the Company), Mr. Eugene Lye (an Executive
Director of the Company), Ms. Irene Chan, Ms. Myrna
Mo-ching Lo, Ms. Joy Cheung Lo, Mr. Christopher Lye,
Ms. Keiko Aun Fukuda and Ms. Alexandra Chan (the
substantial shareholders of the Company).
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Ms. May LO, aged 45, was appointed a Director of the
Company in June 2017. Ms. Lo holds a Master’s degree
in Business Administration from MIT Sloan School
of Management and a Bachelor of Science degree
from Cornell University. She has worked in finance in
various roles, including, as a fund manager for a global
asset management company and has had experience
investing in publicly listed companies. She does not
hold/has not held any directorship in other listed public
companies currently and in the past three years. Ms. Lo
is the daughter of Mr. Winston Yau-lai Lo (the Executive
Chairman of the Company), the sister of Ms. Joy Cheung
Lo (a substantial shareholder of the Company), the
relative of Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling Lo (a Non-executive
Director of the Company), Mr. Peter Tak-shing Lo (a
Non-executive Director of the Company), Mr. Eugene
Lye (an Executive Director of the Company), Ms. Irene
Chan, Ms. Myrna Mo-ching Lo, Mr. Christopher Lye,
Ms. Keiko Aun Fukuda and Ms. Alexandra Chan (the
substantial shareholders of the Company).

Executive Directors

Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI, aged 57, was appointed as the
Executive Director of the Company on 1st April 2014.
Mr. Guidetti is currently the Group Chief Executive
Officer. Mr. Guidetti graduated with a Bachelor’s Degree
in Economics at the Bologna University in Bologna,
Italy in 1987 and further obtained a Master’s Degree
in Business Administration at Centro Universitario di
Organizzazione Aziendale in Altavilla Vicentina, Italy in
1988. Mr. Guidetti completed a Harvard Business School
Executive Education programme in July 2017. Mr.
Guidetti is responsible for the overall strategic planning,
business development and general management of all
the Group’s operations. Mr. Guidetti joined the Group
as the Group Chief Executive Officer on 1st April 2013
and has fully assumed the roles and responsibilities of
the former Group Chief Executive Officer on 1st August
2013. He has 31 years of proven track record in general
management, strategic/business planning, marketing/
commercial leadership, product innovation and new
business development. He has matured his professional
expertise in two of the largest global fast moving
consumer goods organisations and across local, regional
and global roles in Europe and Asia. He has spent the
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last 20 years in this field in Greater China. Mr. Guidetti
is a director of Ariston Thermo Group, a private limited
company incorporated in Italy. He does not hold/has not
held any directorship in other listed public companies
currently and in the last three years.

Mr. Eugene LYE, aged 50, was appointed a Director of
the Company in October 2017. Mr. Lye is currently the
President and Chief Executive Officer of Vitasoy USA
Inc. and Vitasoy North America Inc., the subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Lye holds a Bachelor’s Degree
in Economics from the University of Toronto and a
MBA from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr.
Lye is responsible for the general management and
development of the Group’s import business of the
Group’s products for sales in North America. He joined
the Group in 2002 and has been closely involved in all
aspects of the North American business for over 17
years. During his time at Vitasoy USA Inc., Mr. Lye has
held management positions in sales and marketing
in the Mainstream Channel, and has had oversight
responsibilities for both the research & development
and quality control departments as well as serving as
the Senior Vice President of the Asian Channel. He
does not hold/has not held any directorship in other
listed public companies currently and in the past three
years. Mr. Lye is the son of Ms. Myrna Mo-ching Lo (a
substantial shareholder of the Company), the brother
of Mr. Christopher Lye (a substantial shareholder of
the Company), the relative of Mr. Winston Yau-lai Lo
(an Executive Chairman of the Company), Ms. Yvonne
Mo-ling Lo, Mr. Peter Tak-shing Lo and Ms. May Lo (the
Non-executive Directors of the Company), Ms. Irene
Chan, Ms. Joy Cheung Lo, Ms. Keiko Aun Fukuda and
Ms. Alexandra Chan (the substantial shareholders of the
Company).
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Group Senior Directors

Mr. Chris Kin-shing LAU, aged 57, Group Chief Financial Officer.
Mr. Lau is responsible for the strategic planning, financial
management and control, accounting, corporate finance, investor
relations and corporate services of the Group. Mr. Lau joined the
Group in April 2016. He has 32 years of solid finance management
experience gained in multinationals in Asia Pacific, Greater China
and the US. He also brings a wealth of experience to this role
with managing start-ups, post-merger/acquisition integration,
business process improvement and Enterprise Resource Planning
system implementation in addition to Treasury, Tax and Credit
management. Mr. Lau holds a Bachelor Degree of Economics
from the Australian National University and a Graduate Diploma
in Computing Studies from the University of Canberra. He is an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a Fellow of CPA Australia.

Ms. Wendy Hui-san NG, aged 47, Group Chief Human Resources
Officer. Ms. Ngis responsible for all aspects of our people strategy
globally including leadership development, talent management,
capability building, organisational effectiveness, compensation
and benefits, as well as diversity and inclusion. She works closely
with our operation CEOs and senior leadership team to ensure
we continue to build a culture that attracts, retains and develops
a winning team. Prior to joining the Group in January 2019, she
has extensive HR experience in building diverse talent, culture
and organisational capabilities to enhance performance and
drive sustainable strategic and operational business results for
both large multinationals and start up organisations globally. Her
career included assignments in North America, Asia Pacific and
emerging markets.

Mr. Frank Changbo SI, aged 50, Group Senior Director,
Manufacturing and Project Management. Mr. Si is responsible for
the formulation of the Group’s manufacturing and project policy
and strategy as well as the management and support of plant
capital expenditure project and manufacturing performance. He
joined the Group in 2012. He has extensive experience in different
multi-national companies focus on quality, manufacturing and
project management.
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Dr. Joanna Shwu-Pyng Tzeng CHEN, aged 61, Group Chief
R&D and Quality Officer. Dr. Chen is responsible for developing,
leading and executing research and development and quality
strategies to meet the business needs of local and overseas
markets. She plays a strategic role in driving global product
direction and innovation while assuring compliance, safety,
sustainability and quality excellence. Dr. Chen joined the Groupin
2010. With advanced food science education training, she joined
company with diversified working experiences with prominent
multinational companies in the United States, Greater China and
Asia Pacific region. Her expertise covers technical management
and commercialisation in areas across food ingredient, food
product research and development/manufacturing, regulatory
compliance and quality assurance.

Mr. Terence Chiu-kit CHOW, aged 48, Group Senior Director,
Internal Audit and Risk Management. Mr. Chow is responsible for
developing and maintaining acomprehensive, risk-based financial,
operational and IT system audit framework for the Group as well
as managing group risk management function in achieving long
term growth and sustainable development. Mr. Chow joined
the Group in March 2014 and has over 20 years of extensive
experience in different multi-national companies focusing on
identification of financial, operational and compliance related
controlweaknesses and formulating recommendations toimprove
the control environment, while minimising risk. Mr. Chow holds
a Master’s degree in Business Administration. He is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the
American Institute of Certified Professional Accountants and
Chartered Global Management Accountant. He also holds a CISA
(Certified Information Systems Auditor) certification issued by
the Information Systems Audit and Control Association.

Ms. Christine Yi-mei HU, aged 46, Group General Counsel. Ms.
Hu is responsible for the development and implementation of the
Group’s legal strategy and policies, compliance and regulatory
initiatives. She joined the Group in April 2020 and has extensive
experience gained from various senior legal leadership roles in
multinational companies covering areas in legal, compliance,
regulatory, security and external affairs. Ms. Hu holds a Bachelor’s
degree in Japanese & Japanese Literature from Mainland China, a
Master’s degree in Business Administration from the USA and a
Juris Doctorate from William S. Boyd School of Law at University
of Nevada, the USA. She is a qualified lawyer in Nevada, the USA,
a qualified solicitor in Hong Kong, and has been qualified in law in
Mainland China.
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Mainland China

Mr. Eric Ting-yi ZHONG, aged 46, Chief Executive Officer,
Mainland China Operation. Mr. Zhong is responsible for the
general management and development of the Group’s operations
in Mainland China. He joined the Group in February 2018. Mr.
Zhong has over 20 years of full management experience covering
different roles across different fast moving consumer goods
(FMCG) categories, and has worked with many multinational
companies in Mainland China.

Hong Kong Operation (Hong Kong, Macau and Exports)

Ms. Dorcas Shing-suet LAU, aged 50, Chief Executive Officer,
Hong Kong Operation. Ms. Lau is responsible for the general
management and development of the Group’s operations in Hong
Kong, Macau and various export markets. She joined the Group in
March 2017 and has 27 years of proven track record in Customer
Development, Marketing, General Management, and Digital and
eCommerce in one of the largest global fast moving consumer
goods company across Hong Kong, Taiwan, Mainland China and
North Asia markets. In 2012, she was awarded Women To Watch
by Advertising Age’s in Mainland China.

Australia and New Zealand

Mr. David Bruce Charles TYACK, aged 49, Managing Director of
Vitasoy Australia Products Pty. Ltd.. Mr. Tyack is responsible for
general management and development of the Group’s operation
in Australia and New Zealand. He joined the Group in September
2019 and has extensive experience across the Asia-Pacific fast
moving consumer goods (FMCG) industry over the past 27 years.
Based in and a native of Melbourne, Mr. Tyack relocated back
to his home town after leading Canberra based, Capitol Chilled
Foods Pty Ltd. (a Joint Venture between Lion Dairy & Drinks and
Bega Cheese) for 4 years. He has a strong track record in Sales,
Marketing and General Management working for a few local and
global FMCG companies.

Singapore

Mr. Christopher Llioyd MARCHANT, aged 41, General Manager
of Vitasoy International Singapore Pte. Ltd., the Group’s
tofu manufacturing company in Singapore. Mr. Marchant is
responsible for the general management and development of
the Group’s operation in Singapore. He joined the Singapore
operation in September 2016 after spending 4 years heading up
the Vitasoy Australia and New Zealand Sales team. Mr. Marchant
has extensive experience across the fast moving consumer goods
(FMCG) industry in Asia Pacific, and is very familiar with the
Singapore market having spent 14 years in the city state, where
he both started his career and completed his secondary education.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements for the year ended
31st March 2020.

Principal Place of Business

Vitasoy International Holdings Limited (“the Company”) is a
company incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its
registered office and principal place of business at No. 1 Kin Wong
Street, Tuen Mun, New Territories, Hong Kong.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Company are the manufacture and
sale of food and beverages. The principal activities and other
particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in note 14 to the financial
statements.

The segment analysis of the operations of the Company and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) during the financial year is set out in
note 3 to the financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a
discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group
and an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s
business, can be found in the Group Chief Executive Officer’s
Report/Business Review set out on pages 10 to 22 of this Annual
Report. The environmental, employees, customers and suppliers
matters that have a significant impact on the Group, are provided
in the “Sustainability Report 2019/2020” to be posted on the
Company’s corporate website at www.vitasoy.com together with
this Annual Report. These discussions form part of this Report of
the Directors.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

For the year ended 31st March 2020, the percentage of sales
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers was less than
30%.

The information in respect of the Group’s purchases attributable
to the major suppliers during the financial year is as follows:

FEEFRMER
NEBE_S-_EF="A=+—RHLEE K&£EF
BAREFEREEZEEFHDN30% ©

UT AR RFETZEHEBIEAEERE
B2EH

Percentage of the Group’s total purchases

HAKERBEET DL
The largest supplier 25%
BRARELER
Five largest suppliers in aggregate 36%

BhAHEESE

At no time during the year have the Directors, their associates or
any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued shares)
had any interest in these major suppliers.

Recommended Dividend

An interim dividend of HK3.8 cents per ordinary share (2019:
an interim dividend of HK3.8 cents per ordinary share) was paid
on 19th December 2019. The Directors now recommend the
payment of a final dividend of HK28.4 cents per ordinary share
(2019: a final dividend of HK38.0 cents per ordinary share) in
respect of the year ended 31st March 2020.

Charitable Donations
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$2,723,000 (2019: HK$434,000).

Bank Loans
Particulars of bank loans of the Group, as at 31st March 2020 are
set out in note 20 to the financial statements.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 25(c) to the financial statements.
Shares were issued during the year on exercise of share options.

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company’s
listed securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during
the year.

Directors
The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
Annual Report are set out on page 2.

In accordance with Article 104 of the Company’s Articles of
Association and under Code Provision A.4.2 of Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules, Dr. Roy Chi-ping CHUNG, Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO,
Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO, Ms. May LO and Mr. Eugene LYE retire
from the board by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting has a service contract with the Company
orany of its subsidiaries whichis not determinable by the Company
or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of
compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.

Non-executive Directors are appointed under the same terms for
rotational retirement as other Directors, pursuant to the Articles
of Association of the Company.

Directors of Subsidiaries

A full list of the names of the directors of the Group’s subsidiaries
during the financial year and up to the date of this Annual Report
can be found in the Company’s website at www.vitasoy.com under
“Investor Relations/Corporate Governance/Board of Directors/
Directors of Subsidiaries”.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in

Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
The Directors of the Company who held office at 31st March
2020 had the following interests in the shares of the Company
and subsidiaries (within the meaning of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQ”)) at that date as recorded in the register of
Directors’ interests and short positions required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO:

(1) Interestsinissued shares

EERERS - HEARD R EER
ZHEmRAR

i (BERMEKH) F352HRTRE 2 ES
RERNABEREHHIH R-B-FF=F
St-REBZAADESRERREAATR
MEAR (ZHR (BEREEER)) >BHR
BT

(1) REBITRO2ER

Number of ordinary shares

ZRREE
* % of total
Personal Family Trustsand  Total number of issued shares
Name Note interests interests  similar interests sharesheld  *{HEBTRA
w& hE B AR RikfEm ERRkEEER R HEE BB
Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO (i), (iv) 61,583,800 28,702,500 72,678,300 162,964,600 15.32%
BERBEE
Dr. the Hon. Sir David 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000 0.94%
Kwok-po LI
SEBEET
Mr. Jan P.S.ERLUND 150,000 - - 150,000 0.01%
JanP.S.ERLUND &4
Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO (i), (iv) - - 92,476,750 92,476,750 8.69%
BERRUT
Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO (iii),(iv) 9,198,000 - 121,657,000 130,855,000 12.30%
BERLE
Ms.May LO 2,100,000 - - 2,100,000 0.20%
BHELL
Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI (v) 4,400,000 100,000 - 4,500,000 0.42%
MEEEEE
Mr. Eugene LYE 442313 - - 442,313 0.04%
Bl ik

The percentage has been compiled based on the total number of shares
of the Company in issue (i.e. 1,063,777,500 ordinary shares) as at 31st
March 2020.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
(Continued)

(1) Interestsinissued shares (Continued)
Notes:

(i) Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO is deemed to be interested in 28,702,500
shares through interests of his wife.

(ii) Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO is interested in 2,470,300 shares held by
Yvonne Lo Charitable Remainder Unitrust, 2,560,150 shares held by
Yvonne Lo Separate Property Trust and 14,768,000 shares held by Lo/
Higashida Joint Trust. Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO is a beneficiary of such
three trusts and is therefore deemed to be interested in such shares.

(iii)  Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO is interested in 48,978,700 shares held by two
discretionary family trusts. Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO is a beneficiary
of such two trusts and is therefore deemed to be interested in such
shares.

(iv)  Each of Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO, Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO and Mr. Peter
Tak-shing LO is interested in 72,678,300 shares held by The Bank of
East Asia (Nominees) Limited which holds such shares as a nominee
for the Lo Kwee Seong Foundation, a charitable trust. Each of them is a
trustee of the Lo Kwee Seong Foundation and is therefore deemed to
be interested in such shares.

(v)  The family interests of 100,000 shares are jointly held by Mr. Roberto
GUIDETTI and his wife.

(2) Interestsinunderlying shares

Certain Directors of the Company have been granted options
under the Company’s share option scheme, details of which are
set out in the section “Share Option Scheme” below.

All interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
are long positions.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the Directors of the Company
or any of their spouses or children under eighteen years of age
has interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or other
associated corporations, as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Companies.

EERRG - HEROREESE
ZRERRRE (&)

(1) RERITRIDZ2ERE (80
BEE -

() BRELEANREZZEES 28,702,500 BB @ 8
BEREEZSRMD 2 -

(ii) ZEE¥ 7+ %EAH Yvonne Lo Charitable Remainder
UnitrustiF& 2 2,470,3008% %19 + H Yvonne Lo
Separate Property Trust #7852 2,560,1508% i 13
% M Lo/Higashida Joint Trusti¥ & = 14,768,0000%
Bz  BRERLZTAZ=-AETESCSH
A BMBERBEEZERMD 2R

(i) BEALLEFEHMEZEIRRETESEAZ
48,978,700 R IR 17 2 3% - BEEESLERZMERE
RES2ZHA  HRERAEEZERMN 28

(v BREGE BERLUIRESAEEHEEAR
DRITZANEEROAURBAZBEABERE
& (BEES) $85272678300 R0 2 o
WENRBERESZITRA  BERBEEZSE
B D 2 #Es o

() EEMELE R EEEHERE 100000 BEH 2 K
W o

(2) HERERG ZERS
AATETEBRBERL T 2 BT 2T
BB - SEREEAT S (MR E | — 8 -

ARARGRABERG T2 2 BREIBY

o

m

BREXFIRBEN  ARNBDEESHKE 2EM
EfgAR T N\m2FZBBEERQT  BEF
MELRREMAREE 2R - HERONE
BETHEEEMNCRERB(EFRHAEHRH)
EI52FAREF2ETMERARE LHLARAE
BETESREZNEETZTHEART 2H#
BHKRE °
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

Equity-linked Agreements
Share option scheme

(1) Share option scheme approved on 4th September 2002

On 4th September 2002, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “2002 Share Option Scheme”) under which the
Directors might, at their discretion, grant options to employees
and Directors of the Company or any of its subsidiaries to
subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company. The 2002 Share
Option Scheme was valid for 10 years ended 3rd September 2012.
The purpose of this scheme was to provide incentives and rewards
to employees for their contribution to the Group. The principal
terms of this scheme were as follows:

- The exercise price of the options is the higher of (a) the
closing price of the shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the date of grant,
which must be a business day; and (b) the average of the
closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant.

- The options were exercisable for a period to be notified
by the Directors to each option holder, such period not to
exceed 10 years from the date of grant.

- There was no minimum period which an option must be held
before it could be exercised during the vesting period, but
the Directors were empowered to impose at their discretion
any such minimum period at the date of offer.

- The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted must not exceed 10% of
the shares in issue on the date of approval and adoption of
the scheme.

- The maximum aggregate number of shares over which
options could be granted to any one participant, when added
tothe number of shares issued or issuable to that participant
under the share option scheme must not exceed 25% of the
maximum aggregate number of shares for the time being
issued and issuable under the share option scheme.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

Equity-linked Agreements (continued)
Share option scheme (Continued)

(1) Share option scheme approved on 4th September 2002
(Continued)

- An offer of the grant of an option remained open for
acceptance by an eligible Director or employee for a period
of 28 days from the date of offer or such longer or shorter
period as the Directors might in their discretion determine.
An eligible Director or employee had to pay HK$10 on
acceptance of the option as a consideration.

- Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in a
general meeting, the total number of shares issued and which
may fall to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) to
any one participant in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the date
of grant.

The 2002 Share Option Scheme was terminated by shareholders
of the Company at the annual general meeting held on 28th
August 2012. Outstanding share options granted under the 2002
Share Option Scheme prior to such termination shall continue
to be valid, and subject to the vesting schedule, exercisable in
accordance with the 2002 Share Option Scheme. As at 31st March
2020, there were 4,562,000 outstanding options to be exercised
under the 2002 Share Option Scheme.

R EH = @

B ESTE @)
(1) REZBEFE-FHAAMAHEZBERES
2 (#)

- RERCZESYREETNENHHBE
THNEHRESHRERAEZRRIABIEY
BAEARLBRECEN - SERCE
EFEEANERBRERMBE 10T
ERHKE-

- BREXRIARRPRBRERS LHEN - R
BERLBHPLE2EFN+=EAHERA -
RITERTFEN-—RSHEEZBRE (B
BATE - CEERARITEZBRE) ME
TRAURATRTZROAE 7588
REEHBH 2B BITRND 1% -

TEETCFBERESEHAATRRRRZ
FNAZTNHRTZRRBFRG LKL - B
LRI RIRIBE - E T _FRRETEEREE
BARITEZBREDGEEEN  BRBERBER
}#‘HEJF_ T _FRBRETETUTE - R
TTF=ZA=+—A " E4562,000 13 1R 1%
“EECFERESEETEMRTENER
HE o

Annual Report 2019/2020 FE &

89



90

Report of the Directors
EEERE

Equity-linked Agreements (continued)
Share option scheme (Continued)

(2) Share option scheme approved on 28th August 2012

On 28th August 2012, the Company adopted a new share option
scheme (the “2012 Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of the
2012 Share Option Scheme is to recognise and acknowledge the
contributions which the Directors, executives and employees of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries (“Eligible Participants”)
have made or will make to the Group. It will provide the Eligible
Participants with an opportunity to have a personal stake in the
Company with a view to motivating the Eligible Participants to
excel in their performance and efficiency for the benefit of the
Group; and attracting and retaining or otherwise maintaining
an ongoing relationship with the Eligible Participants whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the long term growth
of the Group. The Board may at its discretion grant options
to any Director, executive or employee of the Company or its
subsidiaries.

The principal terms of the 2012 Share Option Scheme were as
follows:

- The exercise price of the options is the higher of (a) the
closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the date
of grant, which must be a business day; and (b) the average
of the closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant.

- The period within which the options must be exercised
would be specified by the Company at the time of grant. This
period must expire no later than 10 years from the relevant
date of grant.

- There was no minimum period for which an option must
be held nor a performance target which must be achieved
before it could be exercised during the vesting period, but
the Board may determine at its sole discretion any such
terms on the grant of an option.

- The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted must not exceed 10% of
the shares in issue on the date of approval and adoption of
the scheme.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

Equity-linked Agreements (continued)
Share option scheme (Continued)

(2) Share option scheme approved on 28th August 2012
(Continued)

- The overall limit on the number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the 2012 Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes for the time being of
the Company shall not, in aggregate, exceed such number of
shares as equals 30% of the shares in issue from time to time.

- An offer of the grant of an option remained open for
acceptance by an eligible participant for a period of 28 days
from the date of offer or such longer or shorter period as the
Directors might in their discretion determine. An eligible
participant had to pay HK$10 on acceptance of the option as
a consideration.

- Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in a
general meeting, the total number of shares issued and which
may fall to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) to
any one eligible participant in any 12-month period up to the
date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at
the date of grant.

During the year, 1,964,000 options were granted under the
2012 Share Option Scheme. The total number of ordinary shares
available for issue under the 2012 Share Option Scheme as at 31st
March 2020 was 72,808,950 shares, which represented 6.84% of
the ordinary shares of the Company in issue at 31st March 2020.

The 2012 Share Option Scheme will end on 27th August 2022.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

Equity-linked Agreements (continued)
Share option scheme (Continued)

(2) Share option scheme approved on 28th August 2012
(Continued)

At 31st March 2020, the Directors and employees of the Company
had the following interests in options to subscribe for ordinary
shares of the Company (market value per ordinary share at 31st
March 2020 was HK$23.50) in consideration of HK$10 for each
grant under the 2002 Share Option Scheme and 2012 Share
Option Scheme of the Company. As at 31st March 2020, the total
grant date fair value of unexercised vested options and unvested
options, measured in accordance with the accounting policy
set out in note 1(g)(iv) to the financial statements, amounted to
HK$31,295,000 and HK$32,715,000 respectively. The options
are unlisted. Once vested, each option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one ordinary share of the Company. Assuming that
all the options outstanding as at 31st March 2020 are exercised,
the Company will receive proceeds of HK$322,785,000.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or
any other body corporate.
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Report of the Directors

ESEHE

Equity-linked Agreements (continued)

Share option scheme (Continued)

The Directors of the Company individually and other employees
of the Group in aggregate had the following personal interests in
options under the 2002 Share Option Scheme and 2012 Share

R EH = @
B RERE @)

RAFERFER  ERAQXTDEERAKEZ

HittESERBE-TZT =

EERESEIR-F
—ZFBEREFIIRBALTDEBR 2 BRE

Option Scheme to subscribe for ordinary shares of the Company EHEBZBAEZNT ¢
during the year and at the end of the year:
Number of
options Number of *Market *Market
Price per outstanding Number of Number of Number of options value value
Period during shareon atthe options options options outstanding per share at per share.on
Date of which options exercise beginning of granted exercised forfeited attheend date of grant exercise
Participants grant areexercisable of options the year duringthe duringthe duringthe of the year of options of options
fkERE £ year year year Fip B il
KA BT ERRi2 Enfke Emighe BA{TEZ BlEZA BRERZ
S5 REAH BREARS ShRER BRESR BRERR BRiESA BIRiEHR BREHR ZEHmE BRHE
HKS HK$ HKS
Directors
£
Mr.Winston Yau-laiLO ~ 8/9/2011  8/9/2012t0% 7/9/2021 6.358 1,740,000 - - - 1,740,000 5470
BRERE 31/8/2012  31/8/2013t0 2 30/8/2022 6400 2822000 - - - 2,822,000 6.700
99/2013  9/9/2014t0 % 8/9/2023 9370 1,704,000 - - - 1,704,000 9950
10/9/2014  10/9/2015t0 % 9/9/2024 10080 1,792,000 - - - 1,792,000 989
14/9/2015 14/9/2016t0 % 13/9/2025 13600 1,588,000 - - - 1,588,000 11520
692016 6/9/2017t0% 5/9/2026 14792 14200000 - - - 1,420,000 15280
Mr.Roberto GUIDETTI 26/6/2015  26/6/2016t0 % 25/6/2025 13600 354,000 - (354,000 - - 13620 31147
BEERE 24162016 24/6/2017t0 % 23/6/2026 14792 880000 - (150,000 - 730000 13.960 37800
26/6/2017  26/6/2018t0 % 25/6/2027 1629 1,254000 - - - 1,254,000 16200 -
19/6/2018  19/6/2019t0 % 18/6/2028 25100 1,288,000 - - - 1,288,000 24000
21/6/2019  21/6/2020t0 % 20/6/2029 44810 866,000 - - 866,000 42550
Eligible employees 28/6/2013  28/6/2014t0 % 27/6/2023 9370 238,000 - (200000 - 38,000 9.180 39.100
working under 272014 27/201560 2 1/7/2024 10080 168,000 - 108,000) - 60,000 9.890 38615
employment contracts ~ 26/6/2015  26/6/2016t0 % 25/6/2025 13600 584,000 - 256,000 - 328,000 13620 38065
REERSHIE 24162016 24/6/2017t0 % 23/6/2026 14792 928,000 - 196,000) (70000 662,000 13960 36567
ZaEkEE 32017 23201910 % 1/3/2027 15440 326000 - (326,000 - - 15460 36850
26/6/2017  26/6/2018t0 % 25/6/2027 1629 1,586,000 - (382000) 207,000) 997,000 16200 37588
19/6/2018  19/6/2019t0 % 18/6/2028 25.100 1,750,000 - (224,000) 287,000) 1,239,000 24000 3114
28/1/2019  28/1/2020t0% 27/1/2029 30350 320000 - - - 320000 30000 -
21/6/2019  21/6/2020t0 % 20/6/2029 44810 1,098,000 - (152000 946,000 42550
20,742,000 1,964,000 (2,196,000) (716,000 19,794,000
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

Equity-linked Agreements (continued)
Share option scheme (Continued)

The options granted to the Directors are registered under the
names of the Directors who are also the beneficial owners.

* being the closing price or the weighted average closing price of the
Company’s ordinary shares immediately before the dates on which the
options were granted or exercised, as applicable.

# options granted to an eligible employee will be fully vested after two
years from the date of grant.

@ 50% of options will be vested after the first anniversary from the date
of grant and 50% of options will be vested after the second anniversary
from the date of grant.

All options except for options granted on 2nd March 2017
and 28th January 2019, are exercisable progressively and the
maximum percentage of the options which may be exercised is
determined in stages as follows:

R EH = @
B RERE @)

BIEEZBRRNAAREEEAZEE 2 S
BB -

* ENAQ R EERNEEBRER N SETER A
—REAZWHERIEFIRHE -

¢ BETARRERZBRERDER BN EES
BEE -

e 50% 2 BRERBRE MBS —AFRERBR
50% 2 BRER B RE A MBS MBS RERE -

AFTEZMEBRERE (BR-Z—tF=
AZBERZZE-NhF-A-+N\BERHUZBRE
SN THELSIEM - MBRERATEBREZED
tb ERREOTE :

Percentage of options granted

HEREREZBDTL

On or after 1st year anniversary of the date of grant

Kb R —BF AR

25%

On or after 2nd year anniversary of the date of grant

R AMETMBERAR

another % 25%

On or after 3rd year anniversary of the date of grant

RH BB = BFRHEE

another % 25%

On or after 4th year anniversary of the date of grant

Rt HHEE A FREE

another % 25%

Information on the accounting policy for share options granted
and the value per option is provided in note 1(qg)(iv) and note 23 to
the financial statements respectively.
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Report of the Directors

BEEERE

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other FTERRREMALTRARS KB
Persons’ Interests and Short Positions in RO CERRRE

Shares and Underlying Shares

The Company has been notified of the following interests in the R=F

—EF=RA=1+—H RRAGRCEHMET
Company’s issued shares at 31st March 2020 amounting to 5% FHEEBITEER 5% L2 KA TE 81T
or more of the ordinary shares in issue. These interests are in BRDERD ZERETER LN NECESE

addition to those disclosed above in respect of the Directors. m °

—

Number of ordinary shares

LERYE
Trusts and Total *% of total
Personal Family Corporate similar  number of shares issued
Substantial shareholders Note interests interests interests interests held shares
HEEBT
EER it
FERR s EARR FikER NFER Bhan FiERhEH LA
Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group, (i) - - 147,714,057 - 147,714,057 13.89%
Inc.
ZERBSRER
Ms. Irene CHAN (i) 23,514,700 - - 72,678,300 96,193,000 9.04%
RERELT
Ms. Myrna Mo-chingLO (i) (i) - - - 95,197,000 95,197,000 8.95%
BRALT
Ms. Joy Lo CHEUNG (iif) 2,766,250 - - 72,678,300 75,444,550 7.09%
REHSL T
Ms. Keiko Aun FUKUDA (i) 2,400,000 - - 72,678,300 75,078,300 7.06%
BEZat
Mr. Christopher LYE (i) 750,000 - - 72,678,300 73,428,300 6.90%
BRL%E
Ms. Alexandra CHAN (i) 610,000 - - 72,678,300 73,288,300 6.89%
RERL
Wasatch Advisors, Inc. (iv) - - 53,842,658 - 53,842,658 5.06%

* This percentage has been compiled based on the total number of shares * HEAEDRERQAAR=_E-_EF=A=+—H
of the Company in issue (i.e. 1,063,777,500 ordinary shares) as at 31st BT 2RMLEE (B)1,063,777,500 REBER) &
March 2020. o
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other
Persons’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares and Underlying Shares (continued)

Notes:

(i) These interests are held by Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group, Inc.
through its wholly-owned subsidiaries.

(ii) Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO is interested in 22,518,700 shares held by Lo
Myrna Trust. Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO is a beneficiary of such trust and
is therefore deemed to be interested in such shares.

(iii)  Each of Ms. Irene CHAN, Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO, Ms. Joy Lo
CHEUNG, Ms. Keiko Aun FUKUDA, Mr. Christopher LYE and Ms.
Alexandra CHAN is interested in 72,678,300 shares held by The Bank
of East Asia (Nominees) Limited which holds such shares as a nominee
for the Lo Kwee Seong Foundation, a charitable trust. Each of them is a
trustee of the Lo Kwee Seong Foundation and is therefore deemed to
be interested in such shares.

(iv)  These interests are held by Wasatch Advisors, Inc. in the capacity of
investment manager.

All interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
are long positions.

Apart from the foregoing, no other interests required to be
recorded in the register kept under section 336 of the SFO have
been notified to the Company.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at
the date of this annual report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,

Arrangements or Contracts

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a
Director of the Company had a material interest, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. ZE b 3B FR @ AR A 7
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

Remuneration for Senior Management SEEEAEZHE
The emoluments of the Senior Management by bands are as RERES v EEBEEAEZHMENT
follows:
Number of individuals
AE
Below HK$2,000,000 1
#% 2,000,000 ST T
HK$2,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 3
7B 2,000,001 jT £ %5 4,000,000 7T
HK$4,000,001 to HK$6,000,000 3
% 4,000,001 7T Z % 6,000,000 7T
HK$6,000,001 to HK$8,000,000 2
7B 6,000,001 jT £ 7E#5 8,000,000 7T
Employees and Human Resources Policy EBERADERBE

Details of the number and remuneration of employees, human
resources policy, development and learning of the Group’s
employees are set out in the “Sustainability Report 2019/2020” to
bepostedonthe Company’scorporatewebsiteatwww.vitasoy.com
together with this Annual Report.

Indemnity of Directors

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the Directors
of the Company is currently in force and was in force throughout
this year.

Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance was maintained during
the year.

Related Party Transactions

Details of material related party transactions entered into by the
Company in the normal course of business during the year ended
31st March 2020 are set out in note 28 to the financial statements.
In respect of each related party transaction disclosed in note 28,
the Company confirms that it has reviewed the transactions which
are complied with the relevant requirements under the Listing
Rules (if applicable).

AEEZEEHAREH - ANDERBKUKE
ERRERBIZHEBENIZE—N=E=F
FABERRERE ] ZREBERDRFRNAK
NEZ DB (www.vitasoy.com) Ef o

ESCRERE
BRADTESHRETBEREL (25
(AREH) 5
AN -

RER
4691%) RERERRARNFE—

EERTHRABZEERE
REER  AATEREEERITRASEER

4 o
AN

BEALRS
ARAREBEZ-_ZTF=-A=1t—HILEFESE
B-MREBBRITLZEXBBEALRZHER
E(\‘E!ﬁ%iﬁ%llﬁﬁzs o BLMIEE 28 P B 2 & IR R
BAERS F ARFEIACEHRS 0 MR
ZEE —rJ:m%EE!UIETZ?FEEE%EE (ZNERA) °
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

Employee Retirement Benefits
Particulars of employee retirement benefits of the Group are set
out in note 22 to the financial statements.

Five Year Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 252 to
254 of the Annual Report.

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting.

By Order of the Board
Winston Yau-lai LO
Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 19th June 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR S

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Vitasoy International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Vitasoy International Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 106 to 251, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31st March 2020, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31st March 2020 and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

BIYZHMBRE

BEMNEREERRARKE
(REBAMAILAERLE])

=

AREE (LT ERIERM]) SHEAIEARE
106 Z251 EW#EMDBEIBREEER AT (LT
EREIEQT]) REMBAR (UTHBIEE
Bl MEeMBHRE  LPBRREER=Z
“EFZ A=t -ANGEUBRRREREZ
RLEFENRERER FeBakAEMEERK
BR - GEEZEZBRIGERERER  UR
REMBRERWE  SEETESTHBRERYE -

EMNRS  ZEFEUBRROCREBTBETE
NEREPW(EBMBREER) EEMPHHE
kT BEER-ZF-ZFF=A=1-HHLKR
BYBRRE BEEEEEZALFENGSH
BREARGERERNE - USEREB (A FHF
BI) ZR5HE

RRNER
EMEREESESTMASHEAN(BBETE
BI) ETES - RMEZRSERTAENEAES
EARBE [ RBEATBFA S BEBRRAENE
FIBIREE-— S RESBEHMA
BEGN (BEEEEERETR)) (UATHEHBF
B BABYR S5KE - XCETTRIPH
HhBRBEEE - HABEE - RFIFMESHE
AARREARNEEHARMNETZSRRHEE
B o
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR E

BREEEIR

HARETFREREXMANEXRAE - ADHHE
HEENBRRNBABRDERZNSH - BLE
ERERMBABRGEUBRERBARRE
ETREN - BMNTSHELSHREHEBNE

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the

100

consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

B o

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Revenue recognition from sales to distributors and retailers

BRARE D HBENZERHENRA

Refer to note 3 and the accounting policies in note 1(u) to the consolidated financial statements.

FH2 B E PSRRI 3 R M EE 1(u) WEFTBUR -

The Key Audit Matter
ERETEIE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

B EST AR EZEE

The Group’s revenue is principally generated from
sales of food and beverages to a large number of

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of revenue
from sales to distributors and retailers included the

distributors and retailers. following:
BEEENBAZTERRORZ2HBNZERHEE RMABRTEEBREIREIHBNZEFHHENBRANE
EmEk#me FREFEEUATRIE

Revenue from sales to distributors and retailers is
recognised when the customer takes possession
of and accepts the Group’s food and beverage
products, which generally occurs when the products
are delivered to the location designated by the
customers.
REDHBNSZERHENBAETEFBERERE
¥ BEfENRGRUMERNGER  E—REE
MAREREFIEEMHREE -

There are a large number of individual sales
transactions each year which increase the risk of
errors arising in the recognition of revenue.
EEESFRERENERNHEERS  BEMTI
AFER HRERA A ©

- assessing the design, implementation and operating

effectiveness of management’s key internal controls
over revenue recognition;

- FMEEEERRWAEINERAIEF MR - Bit

RETERML

- inspecting sales contracts with distributors and retailers,

.

on a sample basis, to understand the trade terms agreed
with individual customers and assessing the Group’s
revenue recognition policies with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standards;
REAEERETH)HEBHNEZERRITNHEESRH » U
T REFERNEFNENRSRR  XBERTEFE
BIWRETE SEENRARREEE ;

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. ZE b 3B FR @ AR A 7



Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR E

Key audit matters (continued)

The Key Audit Matter
ERETEIE

FARETEE ;)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

B ES AR EZEE

We identified the recognition of revenue from sales
to distributors and retailers as a key audit matter
because the revenue generated therefrom accounts
for the majority of the Group’s revenue and
involves large number of individual sales contracts
and because revenue is one of the key performance
indicators of the Group which increases the risk of
misstatement of the timing and amount of revenue
recognised by management to achieve specific
performance targets or expectations.
KMEEIARBDHEENTEREENWATAE
BEGTEE RAHELENBRAML SSEERAN
BRI ESRAEMEFIHEESR » BREERI
A2 BESEEMHEAP-HERERIEE S8EMT
EEEABRISTXEEENRHMEREI B A
R A S BN RS o

- comparing, on a sample basis, sales transactions

recorded during the financial reporting period with the
corresponding goods delivery notes, which contained
evidence of acknowledgement of the customers’ receipt
of the goods, and assessing if the related revenue was
properly recognised in accordance with the trade terms
set out in the respective sales contracts;

- BEAREEBMBEREPBACENEERZ EEE

MBEE  2EESERTFERARIEMNER - 7
HAEBAREEREBEEERNHEESEPAENRZ S K

=) A .
R S

- assessing, on a sample basis, whether specific revenue

transactions recorded around the end of the financial
reporting period had been recognised in the appropriate
financial period by inspecting the trade terms agreed
with the individual customers and the delivery status of
the relevant products;

- BEAEEFBREEERTFAHE 2R ZHRRAR

HEERIARE - FHEETBREDERANRLE
WEERARZ ERCEEENMHHEAER |

- identifying significant credit notes issued and sales

returns from the sales ledger subsequent to the
financial reporting period and by making enquiries
of management and inspecting relevant underlying
documentation to assess if the related revenue had
been accounted for in the appropriate financial period
in accordance with the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards; and

- B BBREPRNEESRAFNICHAZERNETEN

HERE - WEBHAEEERE KRB I LG
HHEBVAREBERRBTETEANRENBEENY
BHAEER - R

- inspecting significant manual adjustments to revenue

during the reporting period, enquiring of management
about the reasons for such adjustments and comparing
details of the adjustments with relevant underlying
documentation.

- REPBREHNERARENERFHAR - OEE

BEAREARENIER N B SRR ST -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR E

Information other than the consolidated
financial statements and auditor’s report
thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
amaterial misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the

consolidated financial statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging

their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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e IR R R E A AT 3R A
INER

EEFUHHMERAE - HUEEFBTERNF
BRNWEHES  ETEBEFSUBHRRREM
MBI IRE o

BMYEEEYBRRNZRETREEMES
BMTTEHZEHMERRREAEANERE

A
Mg ©

FERMYEESUBBRRNET  HANWEER
BREHMER  FHBERT  ZEHAMEERE
EGRAMBHRRIARMERSBRETRTHNE
MEEBEARBBRE T FEERERRIMAE
e

EREMEHTHIHE  MREMAIABEMER
BFHEEAHEREML - RAFTEREZFE - EE
FHE - RAREEA®RS -

EERGRAMBRREAEXENE
(5
ESASERBEEESHAAGEAN (T
BHREEA) RES (DAEH) BEEETTS
MEAMBHRE  DHHRBAEFANBRE
HYBR B A7 2 R R F S8 S T BB O B A B3R
BB BEHEE -

ERBEHREMBHRRE  EEEETE E5E
FESENED  TEERBR THERERREL
SHENER  UREABESERSTTER
BRIFEZARN BEREBEIEFELEE 5

BHMBERNEATR -

EREEEHBESETEE SRENTKR
HBREMEE -



Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR E

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

BB ETES
MBI

RANEE  EHGRAMBRRERRETHE
MR R R E RN EA SRR AR
R LHABERPERORBFRS - R
RRBES (RAKH) FASHENRE - ED

B RS RANE

BRMERSE o RIS RAIMNIRE T ALE
HtbAE - ROIMTIRARENAE - HEAH
AT EEHEEERERE -

/—\IER% EEKFHRE  BRERERB(E

BB ETHEN AR -EXRERRIL
ﬁﬁﬂ%é@ﬁéﬁéiﬁ 8 SR BRI T LA FR BR R 8 SR B
£ MREEEHCMERFIELERTELE
ARE MR B R I ISR R FTE R
RE - BIBBNERBUA T IRREER -

ERE(EBETER) ETETNBES &
FIERTEXHE - RI5TERREREE - R
IR

. BRI AR RFFRERMERERS B
BRERGFEERERBAVER » B5T R
BITETEFUESELERR  URER
ZEFMBEENETERE  EREMERW
HEftc HRHFFIESREE - BRE B
B2ER BRI EBERABESZ
+ ERRERBEERFMERNE RE
SRER U B LB S AR BE B IR E SRR T B 5
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR E

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of

the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR E

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of

the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resultingin this independent
auditor’s report is Lau Tai Cheong.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

19th June 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
mEBmK

For the year ended 31st March 2020 BZ—Z_ZEF=A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB#EEHE)

2020 2019
SE L —g-h&
(Note)
(Fft&E)
Note HfizF $'000 F 7t $'000 F it
Revenue 3 7,232,641 7,526,495
L ON
Cost of sales (3,381,150) (3,484,665)
Gross profit 3,851,491 4,041,830
EF
Other income 4 43,780 40,144
Heg A
Marketing, selling and distribution expenses (2,112,457) (2,104,514)
HE HERIHER
Administrative expenses (716,880) (635,281)
THEHR
Other operating expenses 5(c) (358,501) (365,019)
HihR&E &R
Profit from operations 707,433 977,160
A
Finance costs 5(a) (10,932) (2,086)
Share of losses of joint venture (17,433) (19,236)
b & & N RIEE
Profit before taxation 5 679,068 955,838
MRBE AR A
Income tax 6(a) (109,477) (208,143)
FriSHL
Profit for the year 569,591 747,695
REEREF

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
LmEeEBEEX

For the year ended 31st March 2020 BZ—Z_ZEF=A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB#EEHE)

2020 2019
SE L —E-NE
(Note)
(B=E)
Note HfizF $'000 F 7t $000 Tt
Attributable to:
THALHE:
Equity shareholders of the Company 535,878 695,907
ARABREFEA
Non-controlling interests 33,713 51,788
IR S
Profit for the year 569,591 747,695
RFEEF
Earnings per share 10
BREF
Basic 50.4 Cents 65.6 Cents Al
B
Diluted 49.9 Cents{l 65.0 Cents{lli
#E
Note:

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1st April 2019 using the modified
retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative information is
not restated. See note 1(c).

The notes on pages 116 to 251 form part of these financial
statements.

Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in note
25(b).

Annual Report 2019/2020 FE &
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

mERERAEMEE ISR

For the year ended 31st March 2020 BZ—Z_ZEF=A=+—HIFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB#EEHE)

2020 2019
SE L —g-h&
(Note)
(Fft&E)
Note HfizF $'000 F 7t $000 Tt
Profit for the year 569,591 747,695
REEEF
Other comprehensive income for the year (after tax) 9
AEEHMEEWE (BRBE)
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
HETERENIEERBZEE ¢
Remeasurement of employee retirement
benefit liabilities (9,651) (5,141)
EERNBIEBEZEHNTE
Items that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss:
HETRERER P EEER2EE !
Exchange differences on translation of
financial statements of subsidiaries and
joint venture outside Hong Kong (189,549) (122,804)
RRrEEBUIMEHE R RREE AR 2 M HE®Rm
EEZERELRE
Cash flow hedge: net movement in the hedging reserve (289) (4,088)
REREHT « e T2
Total comprehensive income for the year 370,102 615,662
AEERHERGRAE
Attributable to:
TH AL :
Equity shareholders of the Company 367,448 580,823
AARREFEA
Non-controlling interests 2,654 34,839
IR ER
Total comprehensive income for the year 370,102 615,662

AEEZHEBGHEAE

Note:

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1st April 2019 using the modified
retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative information is

not restated. See note 1(c).

The notes on pages 116 to 251 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e BBEIRR K

At 31stMarch 2020 R=ZE=ZF=A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB#EEHE)

2020 2019
SE L —2-hE

(Note)

(HI5E)

Note &£ $'000 F 7T $'000 7T $'000 F 7T $'000 Tt

Non-current assets
FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment 11(a)
W% - BERREB
- Interests in leasehold land held for

own use under operating leases - 176,428
-REKEHERFEEAZ

HE T b
- Investment properties 3,502 3,628
-REYHE
- Right-of-use assets 385,580 -
-ERREEE
- Other property, plant and equipment 3,322,923 2,759,250
-HituE - RERRE

3,712,005 2,939,306

Deposits for the acquisition of
property, plant and equipment 11(f) 548 1,601
BEYX  BERREZITS
Intangible assets 12 3,810 3,417
EBEEE
Goodwill 13 17,251 18,375
5k
Interest in joint venture 15 62,026 59,290
BE QR R
Deferred tax assets 24(b) 97,653 81,169
EERIBEE
3,893,293 3,103,158
Current assets
REBEE
Inventories 16 593,559 748,284
7E
Trade and other receivables 17 1,008,871 984,008
JE Wi B ok % LAt FE LR
Current tax recoverable 24(a) 66,497 37,727
FE W IR BB 18
Cash and bank deposits 18(a) 848,275 1,005,032
RERBITER
2,517,202 2,775,051
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

REPBRR K

At 31stMarch 2020 R=ZE=ZF=A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB#EEHE)

Note FffzE

2020
—g-%f

$'000 F 7T $'000 Tt

2019
—E-NF
(Note)
(Fft&E)

$'000 F 7T $'000 Tt

Current liabilities
nREAE

Trade and other payables
FEAT RN HLAtb FE A X
Bank loans

IRITER

Lease liabilities

HERE

Current tax payable

RS BRBHE

Net current (liabilities)/assets

BRE (BF) EE

Total assets less current liabilities

REERRBRE

Non-current liabilities

FkRBEE
Lease liabilities

HEAE

Employee retirement benefit liabilities

EEENKEFERE
Deferred tax liabilities
EEFHEEE

NET ASSETS
FEE

19

20

21

24(a)

21

22(b)

24(b)

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7

2,357,839

241,424

89,957

13,776

2,702,996

(185,794)

3,707,499

153,617

34,313

101,465

289,395

3,418,104

2,213,401

44,508

29,135

2,287,044

488,007

3,591,165

22,624
98,981

121,605
3,469,560



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
LA EARRE

At 31stMarch 2020 R=ZE=ZF=A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB#EEHE)

2020 2019
SE L —2-hE

(Note)

(MI5E)

Note M=t $'000 F T

$'000 7T $'000 F 7T $'000 F T

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

BEARRHE

Share capital 25(c)

[N

Reserves

f&fH

Total equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company

ARARREFEABEEDZERE

Non-controlling interests

FERER

TOTAL EQUITY

939,328 898,961

2,189,062 2,266,451

3,128,390 3,165,412

289,714 304,148

3,418,104 3,469,560

Note:

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1st April 2019 using the modified
retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative information is
not restated. See note 1(c).

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
19th June 2020.

Winston Yau-lai LO
BERE

Director

EF

The notes on pages 116 to 251 form part of these financial
statements.

Fid

AEECER-Z-NFOA-BERERKEBUBRE
R F 1657 - REKAKBITNERE  LBRESLR
B3 o FHEHMNMIF 1(c) °

“ECIEFAATABRESSHELRER

o

£

Roberto GUIDETTI
FEEE
Director

EE

£ 116 £ 251 B2 MEETI AP Bz 2 —2B1D °
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEREER

For the year ended 31st March 2020 BZ—Z_ZEF=A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB#EEHE)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

RAARREEARE

Share-based

compensation Non-
Share Capital Surplus QOther General Hedging  Exchange reserve  Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reseve AR profits Total  interests equity
RE  ERdE  BHRE  HbEE  -REE  WMEE  EIRE  BERE RO Bt FERER ER4E
(note (note (note (note (note (note (note
25(0)) () 2s(d)i) 25l 50 250 25l
(W2l (WE2sld)  (HWaasid) (W& 2sld) (WaE2sld) (W25l (AE25(d) (Note)
(i) 0) (f) (i) (i) ) (vi) (W)

Notefit  $000F7%  §000F7%  §000Fxm  $000Fx  $000Fx  $000Fx  $000Fx  $000Fx  §000Fx  §000Fn  $000F:m  $000F7

Balance at {st April 2018 857,335 38,785 70429 (48622) 2261 4580 319 31873 1909987 2909757 259389 3169146
Wo2-NFDA-BEH

Changesin equity for the year:

REEVRREY:

Profit for the year - - - - - - - - 695907 695,907 51,788 747,695

REERA
Qther comprehensive income 9 - - - - - (4088 (105855) - (5141)  (115084) (16949)  (132083)
A2 EkE
Total comprehensive income - - - - - (4088)  (105855) - 690,766 580,823 34839 615,662

. U

Transfer from retained profits to
surplus reserve - - 15481 - - - - - (15481) - - -

BREGHERZRUARE

Transfer from capital reserve to

retained profits 25(d)i) - (3609) - - - - - - 3609 - - -
BEARHERZRER

Sharesisslied on exercise of share

options 25(c)i 41,626 - - - - -
STERREMEIRG

Equity settled share-based

transactions - - - - - -
HRBBATER RS

Final dividend approved in respect

of the previous year 25(b)(i) - - - - - - - - (333191 (333191 - (33319
HEBRL-EEZRERE

Interim dividend declared in

(7,180) = 34446 = 34446

13521 = 1352 = 13521

respect of the current year 25(b)() - - - - - - - - (40,324) (40,324) - (40,324)
EAEEZAHRE
Dividends paid to non-controlling

interests - - - - - - - - - - (26723) (26723
EFERERTERS

Partial disposal of equity interest in

asubsidiary toa non-controlling

interest 29 - - - 380 - - - - - 30 25038 25618
FERERLEDANELA

Capital contribution from a non-

controllinginterest - - - - - - - - - - 11405 11405
REFERER S
Balance at 315t March 2019 898,961 35176 85910 (4824) 2261 49 (62726) 3824 225366 3165412 304148 3469560

i

Note: MiEE -
The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1st April 2019 using the modified AEBER-Z-INFEE-—BEXER(EBUBERE

retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative information is HER) 2B 1655 o RIBIRALISTHENRL > LEBERILR
not restated. See note 1(c). B o BRI 1(c) °
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEREER

For the year ended 31st March 2020 BZ—Z_ZEF=A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB#EEHE)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
AAIRBREARE

Share-based

compensation Non-

Note i3t

Share
capital
kA&
(note
25(cli)
(B3 25(c)
)
$000 ¥

Capital
reserve
BARE
(note
25l
(it 25(d)
(i)

$000 ¥

Surplus
reserve
BhRE
(note
25(li)
(K3 25(0)
(i)

$000 ¥

Other
reserve
R
(note
25(c) i)
(i3E 25(d)
(i)
$000 F 7

General
reserve

R

$000 ¥ 7t

Hedging
reserve
Hingie
(note
25()iv)
(Ki3E2510)
(iv)
$000 F 10

Exchange
reserve
EilRE
(note
25(dv)
(K& 25(d)
)

$000 F7

reserve
Bhga
RERERE
(note
25(d)vi)
(& 25(d)
(vi)
$000 ¥ 7

Retained
profits
REEH

$000 ¥t

Total
&

$000 ¥t

controlling
interests

P30

$000 ¥t

Total
equity
ERAE

§000 ¥ 72

Balance at 31st March 2019 and

st April 2019
H-B-1F=AZ1-BR
ZR-NERA-RER

898,961

35,176

85910

(48,242)

261

49

(62,726)

38214

2215366

3165412

304,148

3469,560

Impact on initial application of
HKFRS16

BNER (BRufgLEa)
Fl65288

Adjusted balance at 1st April 2019

R-Z-nEMA-RERELR

Changes in equity for the year:

AEE REEY:
Profit for the year - - - - - -
REEEF
Qther comprehensive income
Efb2ENE

Total comprehensive income - - - R R

SHYELE

Transfer from retained profits to
surplusreserve - -
BRERHERZRHRE
Transfer from capital reserve to
retained profits
BEAREERERDE
Shares issuied on exercise of share
options
RITERRERRORG
Equity settled share-based
transactions - - - - -
WRBAHHER RS
Final dividend approved in respect
of the previous year
HEBRL-EE2RERE
Interim dividend declared in
respect of the current year

EREEEZTHRE

Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests - - - - - -

mFERERIERE

Capital contribution from a non-
controlling interest 29 - - - - - - -

REFERER LS
Balance at 31st March 2020
E@ZSEEEHE'I'-E%;&

)i - - - - - (5809) (5:809) (17) (5:826)

898961 35,176 85910 (48242) 2261 492 (62,726) /24 229557 3159608 304131 3463734

535878 335878 B3 369591

(535 (158.244) (9651)  (168430)  (31059)  (199489)

(535 (158,244) 526227 367448 26054 370102

B3 - 036 . . :

25(dl)

1219 - - 1218 : : :

25(e)i 40,367 - - - (7.109) 33258 33258

12,686 12,686 12,686

25(b)(i - - - - - (404181)  (404181) (404,181)

25(b)li - - - - - (40424)  (40424) (40,424)

(37.659)  (37.659)

20,588 20,588

939,328 33958 115219 (48.242) 2061 (43 (220970) 43791 2263008 3128390 289714 3418104

5116 £ 251 H 2 M I AR iRk 2 —3B1D ©

The notes on pages 116 to 251 form part of these financial
statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

GERTRER

For the year ended 31st March 2020 BZ—Z_ZEF=A=+—HIFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB#EEHE)

Note FffzE

2020
—g-%f

$'000 7T $'000 Tt

2019
—E-hE
(Note)
(Fft&E)

$'000 F 7T $'000 Tt

Operating activities

REED

Cash generated from operations

REXBMBRE

Tax paid:

EHBIE ¢

- Hong Kong Profits Tax paid

-EHEBAEH

- Tax paid outside Hong Kong

-BHEBUIMEERTIE

Net cash generated from operating
activities

REFDMEREFH

Investing activities

REEY

Payment for the purchase of property,
plant and equipment

BEYX - BERKZBHZR

Proceeds from sale of property, plant
and equipment

HEMZ - BERERFHEIIE

Proceeds from partial disposal of
equity interest in a subsidiary

S B L DR RE

Government grants received for
acquisition of plant and equipment

WEB R B & 31 2 2 IR B BY

New loan to joint venture

EEERREHZHTER

Interest received

EWFE

Payment for the acquisition of
pollution discharge right

BEH TR ZNIE

Net cash used in investing activities

REEB AR S FHE

18(b)

29

11(a)

1,428,707

(38,589)

(130,340)

1,259,778

(1,078,390)

4,333

22,071

(19,053)

10,919

(1,157)

(1,061,277)

1,464,896

(34,076)

(157,590)

1,273,230

(910,191)

6,545

25,618

431

(33,638)

13,581

(897,654)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
SGERERER

For the year ended 31st March 2020 BZ—Z_ZEF=A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LB#EEHE)

Note FffzF

2020
—g-%g

$'000 ¥t $'000 Tt

2019
—Z-hF
(Note)
(BF5E)

$'000 7T $'000 Tt

Financing activities

BMEEE

Capital element of lease rentals paid

2 HERE 2 ERH

Proceeds from new bank loans

TIBIRITE RS RIE

Repayment of bank loans

EERITER

Interest element of lease rentals paid

2fHEERS 2 FEEH

Interest paid

ERFIE

Proceeds from shares issued on
exercise of share options

AT R B AT 1D FTSFUE

Capital contribution from a non-
controlling interest

REFERERZEE

Dividends paid to equity shareholders
of the Company

EAATREREARERE
Dividends paid to
non-controlling interests

IR ERIRER S

Net cash used in financing activities

RETEMARSFE

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
cash equivalents

iﬁ%&ﬁﬁ%fﬁlﬁ B (Rd) /1gmg

Cash and cash equivalents at 1st April

RUA-—BZRERREEEERAR

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes

ERESH I XE

Cash and cash equivalents at 31st
March

REZA=+-—HZRALRAESEEEE

18(c)
18(c)
18(c)
18(c)

18(c)

25(c)(ii)

29

18(a)

(81,947)
279,981
(75,134)
(8,599)

(2,333)

33,258

20,588

(444,451)

(37,659)

(316,296)

(117,795)

1,004,538

(38,934)

847,809

(871)

19,977

(21)

(2,065)

34,446

11,405

(373,529)

(26,723)

(337,381)

38,195

985,185

(18,842)

1,004,538

Note:

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1st April 2019 using the modified
retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative information is
not restated. See note 1(c).

The notes on pages 116 to 251 form part of these financial
statements.

M

AEFBER=ZZ—

NEMA-BEREA(EBYBHRS

A B 1655 o RIBRAKETHENE - LEEFEELR
B5 o FHFENME 1(c) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B & SRR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRSEHRBAI » LUBEEHE)

1 Significant accounting policies

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective termincludes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing rules”). Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 1(c)
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st
March 2020 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “Group”) and the Group’s interest in a joint
venture.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]
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Notes to the Financial Statements
S py S EL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a going concern basis notwithstanding that the Group had net
current liabilities of $185,794,000 at the end of the reporting
period. In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the
Directors have given careful consideration to the current and
anticipated future liquidity of the Group. Taking into account, inter
alia, (i) cash and bank deposits of $848,275,000 at 31st March
2020, (ii) the unutilised loan facilities at the end of the reporting
period, and (iii) the expected net cash inflows generated from the
Group’s operations for the next twelve months, the Directors are
of the opinion that the Group will be able to meet its liabilities as
and when they fall due. Accordingly, the Directors consider that
the preparation of these consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis is appropriate.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except that derivative
financial instruments are stated at fair value as explained in the
accounting policies set out in note 1(t).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making
the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

1 FESHEE @
(b) BB EBmRZEEELE @)

BEASENREROESABEABTE
185,794,000 70 » NiRE M BBMERDIRIFELE
BEERR - NERZESRSVERERE  E50
EEEZEAEEZENRENRRNASHES -
Ltk (HPEFE) (\R=—F=-ZTF=A=+—H
2 HE N IRITER848,275,0007T ; (i) REHRE
ABACZEREE ) Ri)AEBAKR+=EA
REERMEE2HHRSRANFEE  E22
AAEEBERIESHRBNER - Bt E
ERARBEREEERRZEREVERERTD
BRE -

BREEE L) B S RRER ZITESR T AR
DREFEN  FRYBRREABLRAER

HERE

ERERATRANE (BBYBHMEEL) 28t
BREGFHELESTRRER  UREE -
B WARZHZHRESE 2 FE - A5t RR
R o WLEATTRAABERRERE AT ERMEE
EREERBAASSEZZHAMBE R L
HERBHEEERTELIRALARRERSE
HEERBBEZREESFIELHHE 2 E# - &
PR R T RE B BIR AT AR -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
S py S EL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs
that have significant effect on the financial statements and major
sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 2.

(c) Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a new HKFRS, HKFRS 16, Leases, and a
number of amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group.

Except for HKFRS 16, Leases, none of the amendments have had a
material effect on how the Group’s results and financial position
for the current or prior periods have been prepared or presented
in these financial statements. The Group has not applied any new
standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

HKFRS 16, Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17, Leases, and the related interpretations,
HK(IFRIC) 4, Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease,
HK(SIC) 15, Operating leases - incentives,and HK(SIC) 27, Evaluating
the substance of transactions involving the legal form of a lease. A
single accounting model now applies to lessees, which requires
a lessee to recognise a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for
all leases, except for leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less (“short-term leases”) and leases of low value assets. The
lessor accounting requirements are brought forward from HKAS
17 substantially unchanged.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]
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Notes to the Financial Statements
S py S EL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

HKFRS 16 also introduces additional qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements which aim to enable users of the financial
statements to assess the effect that leases have on the financial
position, financial performance and cash flows of an entity.

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 as at 1st April 2019. The
Group has elected to use the modified retrospective approach
and has therefore recognised the cumulative effect of initial
application as an adjustment to the opening balance of equity at
1st April 2019. Comparative information has not been restated
and continues to be reported under HKAS 17.

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to previous
accounting policies and the transition options applied are set out
below.

(i)  New definition of a lease

The change in the definition of a lease mainly relates to the
concept of control. HKFRS 16 defines a lease on the basis of
whether a customer controls the use of an identified asset for a
period of time, which may be determined by a defined amount of
use. Control is conveyed where the customer has both the right to
direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all
of the economic benefits from that use.

The Group has applied the new definition of a lease as defined in
HKFRS 16 only to contracts that were entered into or changed on
or after 1st April 2019. For contracts entered into before 1st April
2019, the Group has used the transitional practical expedient
to grandfather the previous assessment of which existing
arrangements are or contain leases. Accordingly, contracts that
were previously assessed as leases under HKAS 17 continue to be
accounted for as leases under HKFRS 16 and contracts previously
assessed as non-lease service arrangements continue to be
accounted for as executory contracts.

1 FESHBEK @
(c) BFHEzZ28 @)
(BHBMERERER) F16EF3IANBIZEY
REBRERT  SERNBHREEAETLZ
ZHEYW-—ASRHBRT HBERRES

Ny
REBEZEE -

FEEBR-Z-NFRNA-ACBRERA(ER
BB ELERD 165 - ARECEAKETE
Bk TRAMBERE A ZRAZE/ENZ
E-NEFONA-BEFNRRAHRHAE - LBE
B AREN BRERE (FBEHER) F175%
28 -

BRBAST RSB 2 MERFEURFTRA
HUEBE MR ZE - SHBEIIWT -

(i) HEZHES
HEEE2SBETRSREF 2B (FBY
BWELER) F 16X RIBEFFREN—REFR
EHERCEBEEMEREE  TEBRER
REEE EEFUARIETREACENEE -
TERRZAZESETHACSENZNER
T - RIS EE -

AEEES (BBMBRERER) 5 165K REN
HEFEREAR-Z-AFNA—-BH2EF]
VHBE2EN AREERR-ZT-NFNA
—HAIRT N NENERRER AR ZBIET
BERE BETRAZHER (RES) HE-
bt ERTRIE (BB EFHER) F 1757 ERHE
EZANBEFR(BBYBREER) F 1657
HT ZEEANR ARG R IFEERE 2
ZENABENRBBTEN -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
S py S EL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(i) Lessee accounting and transitional impact

HKFRS 16 eliminates the requirement for a lessee to classify
leases as either operating leases or finance leases, as was
previously required by HKAS 17. Instead, the Group is required
to capitalise all leases when it is the lessee, including leases
previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17, other
than those short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. As
far as the Group is concerned, these newly capitalised leases are
primarily in relation to property, plant and equipment as disclosed
in note 27(c). For an explanation of how the Group applies lease
accounting, see note 1(j)(i).

At the date of transition to HKFRS 16 (i.e. 1st April 2019), the
Group determined the length of the remaining lease terms and
measured the lease liabilities for the leases previously classified
as operating leases at the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted using the relevant incremental borrowing
rates at 1st April 2019. The weighted average of the incremental
borrowing rates used for determination of the present value of
the remaining lease payments was 3.34%.

To ease the transition to HKFRS 16, the Group applied the
following recognition exemption and practical expedients at the
date of initial application of HKFRS 16.

(a) the Group elected not to apply the requirements of HKFRS
16 in respect of the recognition of lease liabilities and right-
of-use assets to leases for which the remaining lease term
ends within 12 months from the date of initial application of
HKFRS 16, i.e. where the lease term ended on or before 31st
March 2020;

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]

1 FESHBEK @

(c) BFHEzZ28 @)

(i) BREANSHEERBESE
(BBUTIEMERER) 2 16 BRI A (BBEst
) E17ERTAEAREESEHELHE
SRMEEEZHRE - R EAEEBEEA -
HAKFEREEN  BELIRE(EES
HER) BI/ENEACLBESAE B2
ZEHEEREEEEERERI - RAEET
T REHENMAEEIERYE  BERSDE
BB GRIMEE27() FTRE) - B4 =@ fE A
AESTRIES L AR - B2 16)0) o

RBEZ(EBMBHREER) £ 1658EH (B
“E-AFRA-H) AEEEHRERSES
ReHEacHERRTHENRREEESHTHE
ENMRERGEBHEHERE  UEARZZ-N
FMA—RBZHEEERERFRYER - ARE
ERSHEHENRREZMEFIEEERNES
3.34% °

RIEABEE (BRMBREER]) E 1655 &
SERBEAER(ERBYBHREEL) F 16578
AERATIIRRRRR TITRERE -

() AEKEERERETEMA(EBYHREED) %
16 REERIBTHENRERERA(E
B BHREER) F 1657E Bist 1218 8
wiEm (BEERR -E-TF=A=1+—
AeizrlfEm) < HE2HEEEREMRE
BEZBE



Notes to the Financial Statements
S py S EL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1

(c)
(ii)
(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

Lessee accounting and transitional impact (Continued)
when measuring the lease liabilities at the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16, the Group applied a single
discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics (such as leases with a similar remaining
lease term for a similar class of underlying asset in a similar
economic environment);

when measuring the right-of-use assets at the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16, the Group relied on the previous
assessment for onerous contract provisions as at 31st March
2019 as an alternative to performing an impairment review;

the Group used hindsight based on facts and circumstances
as at date of initial application in determining the lease term
for the Group’s leases with extension or termination options;
and

the Group excluded the initial direct costs from the
measurement of the right-of-use assets at the date of initial
application.

(c)
(ii)
(b)

FESBER @)
SHBRZEE (@)
FAASHEERBESE (W)
RERER (BBIBHREER) 216358
BHEEEamEs AEECHRAEARE
BOUSHMZAEAS (IR ELEEEE
T ELAEEEER B RAERE) &
FIE—BEIRE ;

REXER (EBMBREER) £ 165
BfEfAEEER  AEEFBEAR
—E-NF=RA=T-—HEEEMEENZ
BBEE 25 UIBRETRIESER

FEERBREAEREHZEERENR

REREEASETHERIRILRER
ZHEEZHEY &

AEEREXRERBPTEEAEEER
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FESHBER @
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued) (c) StBERZEE @)
(i) Lessee accounting and transitional impact (Continued) (i) BREAESTEERBEZE (&)

The following table reconciles the operating lease commitments HAMIFE27() FIiRE  TRAR-ZE—IE=
as disclosed in note 27(c) as at 31st March 2019 to the opening B=1+—HzREREREER _T-hFNA
balance for lease liabilities recognised as at 1st April 2019: —HERZHEEEFIEHR R

1st April 2019

—E-hFHA—H
$'000 F 7t
Operating lease commitments at 31st March 2019 (Note 27(c)) 369,385
R-E-NF=ZA=+—H2LERERE (MFE27(c)
Less: commitments relating to lease exempt from capitalisation:
B BEREERMLZEERIE
- short-term lease and other leases with remaining lease term ending
on or before 31st March 2020 (40,073)
-RBHBAR B EF =A==+ Ay zriER 2 RPHEREMWAE
- leases of low-value assets (664)
- EEEEEHSE
- non-lease components (39,364)
- FEFEEEH
289,284
Less: total future interest expenses (30,025)
W RRFEBRELE
Total lease liabilities recognised at 1st April 2019 259,259

R-ZZ-NFENA-HRRIHEEEHRE

The right-of-use assets in relation to leases previously classified as BB EAREHECFAREECERRBR
operating leases have been recognised at an amount as if HKFRS RSB A BRE—HERA(EBUHRELERD
16 had always been applied since the commencement date of the F16EMEH 2 EERER ©

lease.

The Group presents right-of-use assets and lease liabilities AEBRMERARBLZIFAEEEREE
separately in the statement of financial position. =
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FESHBER @
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued) (c) StBERZEE @)
(i) Lessee accounting and transitional impact (Continued) (i) BREAESTEERBEZE (&)

The following table summarises the impacts of the adoption of TRBMERR (BB HEIREZER) 5 16 5E R
HKFRS 16 on the Group’s consolidated statement of financial SBFeMBEMRRR 2 FE
position:

Carrying Capitalisation of Carrying
amount at operating lease amount at
31st March 2019 contracts 1st April 2019
R-ZE-NF R-B—NE
=B=+-—H KEHEEYN mA—H
ZBREE Bt ZEREE
$'000 F 7t $'000 F T $'000 F 7t
Interests in leasehold land held for
own use under operating leases 176,428 (176,428) -
BREKEHEREFEAZHE D ER
Right-of-use assets - 421,601 421,601
FREEE
Total non-current assets 3,103,158 245,173 3,348,331
BERBDEE
Trade and other payables 2,213,401 (8,260) 2,205,141
FE(SRR AR H A FE (T 5R
Lease liabilities (current) - 71,627 71,627
HEBE (RE
Total current liabilities 2,287,044 63,367 2,350,411
BREBARS
Net current assets 488,007 (63,367) 424,640
FERBEE
Total assets less current liabilities 3,591,165 181,806 3,772,971
REERTBDEME
Lease liabilities (non-current) - 187,632 187,632
HEEE GERE)
Total non-current liabilities 121,605 187,632 309,237
BERBERE
Net assets 3,469,560 (5,826) 3,463,734
FEE
Total equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company 3,165,412 (5,809) 3,159,603
RARRIERSE AL ERERE
Non-controlling interests 304,148 (17) 304,131
IR RS
Total equity 3,469,560 (5,826) 3,463,734
R
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(i) Lessee accounting and transitional impact (Continued)
The analysis of the net book value of the Group’s right-of-use
assets by class of underlying asset at the end of the reporting
period and at the date of transition to HKFRS 16 is as follows:

1 FESHBEK @

(c) BFHEzZ28 @)

(i) BREANLHEERBEZE (&)
AEBFEAEESERBEHARBES (588
MIMEER) 1635 BIREHEEERES >
EEFESHMT :

At 31st March 2020 At 1st April 2019

R-B=E2F R-ZE—NF
=A=+-—H mA—AH
$'000 F 7T $'000 F 7T
Interests in leasehold land held for own use 167,575 183,380
BHEFERZHE T bR
Buildings held for own use 216,096 238,221
BEEERZETF
Factory machinery and equipment 1,909 -
T RRHEER a1
385,580 421,601
(iii) Impact on the financial results, segment results and (iii) BIEAEBEBKEE  7HEBEREAST

cash flows of the Group

After the initial recognition of right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities as at 1st April 2019, the Group as a lessee is required to
recognise interest expense accrued on the outstanding balance of
the lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset,
instead of the previous policy of recognising rental expenses
incurred under operating leases on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. This has resulted in a negative impact on the reported
profit before taxation in the Group’s consolidated statement of
profit or loss, as compared to the results if HKAS 17 had been
applied during the year.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]
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Notes to the Financial Statements
S py S EL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
(iii) Impact on the financial results, segment results and
cash flows of the Group (Continued)
In the consolidated cash flow statement, the Group as a lessee is
required to split rentals paid under capitalised leases into their
capitalelementandinterestelement. These elements are classified
as financing cash outflows, similar to how leases previously
classified as finance leases under HKAS 17 were treated, rather
than as operating cash outflows, as was the case for operating
leases under HKAS 17. Although total cash flows are unaffected,
the adoption of HKFRS 16 therefore results in a significant change
in presentation of cash flows within the consolidated cash flow
statement (see note 18(d)).

The following tables give an indication of the estimated impact of
adoption of HKFRS 16 on the Group’s financial results, segment
results and cash flows for the year ended 31st March 2020, by
adjusting the amounts reported under HKFRS 16 in these financial
statementsto compute estimates of the hypothetical amounts that
would have been recognised under HKAS 17 if this superseded
standard had continued to apply to FY2019/2020 instead of
HKFRS 16, and by comparing these hypothetical amounts for
FY2019/2020 with the actual FY2018/2019 corresponding
amounts which were prepared under HKAS 17.

Segment assets and segment liabilities at 31st March 2020
increased as a result of the change in accounting policy. The
following segments were increased/(decreased) by the change in
policy:

1 FESHBEK @

(c) BFHEzZ28 @)

(i) HFEBMYPBLE S BEEREST

BEZHE (W)

REARSRBRR  AEEERRBABLEE
AMEEETHZHEH BERBH R LS
B ZEBRHELBERSHE REBEHN
RIB(EBEIER) B/ EPELRERE>
BMESHAEE)  MECLBRSRE ((EEE
R H17RETHBESAEZRES ) o
BERSABREASYE  HRM(BBUHB
WEER) ZI6REHE AR ARBRIANESTR
B 2FHIBEABE (RHEE18(d) o

TRETEBERA(EBHHREER) B 165
HAKBEE_Z-ZF=-A=1+-HLEFEZ
BBEER P MERARBEEREZGHATE
ERARZEVBERRARB (BB BHRELE
B L1632/ - U EHAERE (F
BERERD) 8175 (RRZERRK (TR
BmEEL) F16RMAMERER - -1
—ECDYHFERM) R A RREE
BEZE-E-N/—E-ZURFERREEH
HERE(BBETEA) F17RBH2ER -2
N ZE- NP BRFEREESIETLER

RIBE-EF=A=1+—Hz2BEERIIE
BEESTHERSEMIEIM - LT o IEBEREE
g, Ged) -

Segment profit
before taxation Segment assets Segment liabilities
2 ERBADER PEWEE pan-i =R
$'000 F T $'000 F 7t $'000 Tt
Mainland China (192) 29,629 30,156
Bl A
Hong Kong Operation (3,815) 186,467 192,269
BB
Others (108) 8,294 11,049
HAth
Total (4,115) 224,390 233,474
AR
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(iii) Impact on the financial results, segment results and
cash flows of the Group (Continued)

1 FESHBEK @

(c) BFHEzZ28 @)

(i) HFEBMYPBLE S BEEREST
BEZHE (W)

2020 2019
b e 222 —E-NEF
Estimated

amount related

to operating Hypothetical Compared to
lease as if amounts for amounts
Amounts under 2020 as if reported
reported under HKAS 17 under under
HKFRS 16 (note (a) & (b)) HKAS 17 HKAS 17
R
(FAEFER)
BE(ER F175mEHZ BRERER ERAR YR
MgREER) KEHESHEE (FESHER) (FBSFHER)
F16HER & E F1U7HEMEBHZ F1I7H28W2
28 (ME@KEb) —Z2-2FEH SREAELE
(A) (B) (C=A+B)
$'000 F 7t $'000 F 7T $'000 F 7T $'000 F 7t
Line items in the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year ended 31st March
2020 impacted by the adoption of
HKFRS 16:
BE-_Z_ZF=A=+—HLFEZ
FERSREBRA BTN
(BBIBMELER) 5 1697
ML sER
Cash generated from operations 1,428,707 (90,546) 1,338,161 1,464,896
REXBRBERE
Net cash generated from operating activities 1,259,778 (90,546) 1,169,232 1,273,230
RETHASRESFE
Capital element of lease rentals paid (81,947) 81,947 - (871)
2 HEERE 2 ERH
Interest element of lease rentals paid (8,599) 8,599 - (21)
2 EERE 2 FEIH
Net cash used in financing activities (316,296) 90,546 (225,750) (337,381)

BMEEE AR S FE
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(iii) Impact on the financial results, segment results and
cash flows of the Group (Continued)

Note (a):

Note (b):

The “estimated amounts related to operating leases” is an
estimate of the amounts of the cash flows in 2020 that relate to
leases which would have been classified as operating leases, if
HKAS 17 had still applied in 2020. This estimate assumes that
there were no differences between rentals and cash flows and
that all of the new leases entered into in 2020 would have been
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17, if HKAS 17 had
still applied in 2020. Any potential net tax effect is ignored.

In this impact table these cash outflows are reclassified from
financing to operating in order to compute hypothetical amounts
of net cash generated from operating activities and net cash
used in financing activities as if HKAS 17 still applied.

1

FESBER @)

(c) BFHEZE2H @)
(iii) HFEBMEIBEE  FHLEREST
BoEE (&)

Mi=E (a):

it (b):

[REHEHBEGTSHE] DRR(E %ﬁ'“ffﬁ
B B1I7HR S ZFEHRBEAME AL S
AREHECHER T Ezfﬁﬁmuzégﬁ
e 2 ff5t o (EH BB MET - BRRESHERS
5ﬁ§2|§ﬁjtﬂ§§ C WRR(EBSETER >> %
7SR -_Z_Z2ENREAMAER=-2=%
FRIVZHEEDRE (BBETER) £175
PEARERE - TMETERBELEGZKT
gt

REFERR  ZERERLHRESHIEE
ge LI EKEEHMEREFERRNES
BARSREBREE  BO(EBERE
AIY #1735 NREA -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(iv) Lessor accounting

The Group leases out the properties as the lessor of operating
leases. The accounting policies applicable to the Group as a lessor
remain substantially unchanged from those under HKAS 17.

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

Aninvestmentinasubsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions
and cash flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
S py S EL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)
Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controllinginterests inthe results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling
interests and the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans
from holders of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as financial
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position in
accordance with notes 1(n) or (o) depending on the nature of the
liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions,
whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and
non-controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect
the change in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as
adisposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or joint venture (see note 1(e)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note

Lk)(ii)).

1 FESHEE @
(d) MBATKRFZRER &

FERBBERSMBRRR 2EEIRDR - &
ARTRRESEABGEZ ORI o SFZRE
B AEBRBERRETREBEERRGEEE
mRHEMEERERES - DERAFEZRG
NIBEREZE RS EENFERERERQF
REFBAZEZOR - FERERFBEAZE
REZERBACHMESNEENRZEREZ
MERBMHEE 1) (o) EREMBRRKREN B
TREE-

AEEFEHRAEHEZHBARDERZH TS
LI AR BRABBREGSERNZER
RFERESSHEURRBERERZE - 18

EREEEAEMBAR 2 ZHE  SiREEZ
MEBARIZFE#ERAR MAELEZRERE
WIER o MR RIEFIEE B HRE 2 ZATH
BARZERDEAABRR  MLSEEEA
VpEREeMEEZAAE X (WMEA) A
BRARBEEQATREE DA ZREZHAE (R
#E1(e) °

ERBZHBRREARRHBRAR ZRE =
BRANMERERERBERAR (RHEE 1K)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(e) Jointventure

Ajoint ventureis an arrangement whereby the Group or Company
and other parties contractually agree to share control of the
arrangement, and haverights to the net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method,
unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale). Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess
of the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the investment
(if any). The cost of the investment includes purchase price, other
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the investment,
and any direct investment into the joint venture that forms part
of the Group’s equity investment. Thereafter, the investment is
adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of
the investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment (see notes 1(f) and (k)(ii)). Any acquisition-date excess
over cost, the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax
results of the investees and any impairment losses for the year
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax items
of the investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the joint
venture, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and recognition of
further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the Group’s interest is
the carrying amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group’s long-term interests that in substance
form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the investee, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in
which case they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
S py S EL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(e) Joint venture (Continued)

If an investment in a joint venture becomes an investment in
an associate or vice versa, retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the
equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have joint control
over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
investee at the date when joint control is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset.

(f) Goodwill

Gooduwill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination and is
tested annually for impairment (see note 1(k)(ii)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
S py S EL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(g) Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned
or held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(j)) to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation. These include land held
for a currently undetermined future use and property that is being
constructed or developed for future use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated in the statement of financial
position at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 1(k)(ii)).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of investment
properties using the straight-line method over the shorter of the
unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful lives, being no
more than 50 years.

The useful life of investment properties is reviewed annually.

Rental income from investment properties is accounted for as
described in note 1(u)(iii).

(h) Other property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are stated
in the statement of financial position at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1(k)(ii)):

Freehold land and buildings;

- Interests in leasehold land and building where the Group is
the registered owner of the property interest (see note 1(j));

- Right-of-use assets arising from leases over freehold or
leasehold properties where the Group is not the registered
owner of the property interest; and

- Other items of plant and equipment including right-of-use

assets arising from leases of underlying plant and equipment
(see note 1(j)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
S py S EL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(h) Other property, plant and equipment (Continued)
The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the initial
estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and removing
the items and restoring the site on which they are located, and an
appropriate proportion of production overheads and borrowing
costs (see note 1(w)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item
of property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement
or disposal.

Depreciationis calculated to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any,
using the straight line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Freehold land is not depreciated.

- Buildings situated on freehold land are depreciated over
their estimated useful lives, being no more than 25 years.

- Leasehold land and buildings are depreciated over the
shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their estimated

useful lives, being no more than 50 years.

- Other plant and equipment:

Factory machinery and equipment 4 - 25 years
Fixtures, furniture and office equipment 3-12years
Motor vehicles 4 - 10years
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Notes to the Financial Statements
S py S EL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(h) Other property, plant and equipment (Continued)
No provision for depreciation is made for construction in progress
until such time when the assets are substantially completed and
ready for use.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.

(i) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful life is
finite) and impairment losses (see note 1(k)(ii)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is charged
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful lives. The following intangible assets with finite useful lives
are amortised from the date they are available for use and their
estimated useful lives are as follows:

- Brand name 20 years
- Customer list 7 years
- Pollution discharge right 5years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives are
assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful life of an
intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine
whether events and circumstances continue to support the
indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. If they do not,
the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite
is accounted for prospectively from the date of change and in
accordance with the policy for amortisation of intangible assets
with finite lives as set out above.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
S py S EL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(j) Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease
if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Control
is conveyed where the customer has both the right to direct the
use of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.

(i) Asalessee

(a) Policy applicable from 1st April 2019

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-
of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-term leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value
assets. When the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-
value asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise the lease on
a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments associated with those
leases which are not capitalised are recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments payable
over the lease term, discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, using a
relevant incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition, the
lease liability is measured at amortised cost and interest expense
is calculated using the effective interest method. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or rate are not included
in the measurement of the lease liability and hence are charged to
profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
S py S EL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(j) Leased assets (Continued)

(i)  Asalessee (Continued)

(a) Policy applicable from 1st April 2019 (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised is
initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs incurred. Where
applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets also includes an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or
to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located,
discounted to their present value, less any lease incentives
received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see notes 1(h)
and 1(k)(ii)).

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in future
lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, or there
is a change in the Group’s estimate of the amount expected
to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or there is a
change arising from the reassessment of whether the Group
will be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this
way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to
zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
separately in the statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
S py S EL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(j) Leased assets (Continued)

(i)  Asalessee (Continued)

(b)  Policy applicable prior to 1st April 2019

In the comparative period, as a lessee the Group classified leases
as finance leases if the leases transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group. Leases which did not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group were classified as operating leases, with the following
exceptions:

- property held under operating leases that would otherwise
meet the definition of an investment property was classified
as investment property on a property-by-property basis
and, if classified as investment property, was accounted for
as if held under a finance lease (see note 1(g)); and

- land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair value
of which could not be measured separately from the fair
value of a building situated thereon at the inception of the
lease, was accounted for as being held under a finance lease,
unless the building was also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of the lease was the
time that the lease was first entered into by the Group, or
taken over from the previous lessee.

Where the Group acquired the use of assets under finance leases,
the amounts representing the fair value of the leased asset, or, if
lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments, of such
assets were recognised as property, plant and equipment and the
corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges, were recorded as
obligations under finance leases. Depreciation was provided at
rates which wrote off the cost of the assets over the term of the
relevant lease or, over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease
and their estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 years, or
where it was likely the Group would obtain ownership of the asset,
the life of the asset, as set out in note 1(g) and 1(h). Impairment
losses were accounted for in accordance with the accounting
policy as set out in note 1(k)(ii). Finance charges implicit in the
lease payments were charged to profit or loss over the period of
the leases so as to produce an approximately constant periodic
rate of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for each
accounting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(j) Leased assets (Continued)

(i)  Asalessee (Continued)

(b)  Policy applicable prior to 1st April 2019 (Continued)

Where the Group had the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases were charged to profit
or loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative basis was more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased asset. Lease incentives received were recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals were charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they were incurred.

(i)  Asalessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception
whether each lease is a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease
is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an underlying
assets to the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is classified as
an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease components,
the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.

The rental income from operating leases is recognised in
accordance with note 1(u)(iii).

(k) Creditloss and impairment of assets

(i)  Credit loss from financial instruments

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs”) on financial assets measured at amortised cost (including
cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and loan to
joint venture).

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit
losses are measured as the present value of all expected cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
S py S EL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(k) Creditloss and impairment of assets (Continued)
(i)  Credit loss from financial instruments (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

Where the effect of discounting is material, the expected cash
shortfalls are discounted using the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition or an approximation thereof for
trade and other receivables.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account reasonable and
supportable information that is available without undue cost
or effort. This includes information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result
from possible default events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result
from all possible default events over the expected lives of
the items to which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowance for trade and other receivables is always measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. ECLs are estimated using
a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors
and an assessment of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the reporting date.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(k) Creditloss and impairment of assets (Continued)
(i)  Credit loss from financial instruments (Continued)
Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either
partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect
of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject
to the write-off.

(i) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill,
an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may
have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment, including right-of-use assets
and investment properties;

- intangible assets;
- goodwill;
- interest in joint venture; and

- investment in subsidiaries in the Company’s statement of
financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the recoverable amount
is estimated annually whether or not there is any indication of
impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1
(k)
(ii)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Credit loss and impairment of assets (Continued)
Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit
to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group of
units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the other
assetsinthe unit (or group of units) on a pro ratabasis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
or value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
S py S EL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(k) Creditloss and impairment of assets (Continued)
(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is required to prepare
an interim financial report in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim
financial reporting, in respect of the first six months of the financial
year. At the end of the interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would
at the end of the financial year (see notes 1(k)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of
goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case
even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been recognised had
the impairment been assessed only at the end of the financial year
to which the interim period relates.

() Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Costis calculated using thefirst-in, first-out method and comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which the
related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down
of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
S py S EL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(m) Receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration. A right to receive consideration
is unconditional if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses (see note 1(k)(i)).

(n) Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost with any difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings, together with any interest and fees
payable, using the effective interest method.

(o) Payables and contract liabilities

(i)  Payables

Payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

(i) Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue
(see note 1(u)). A contract liability would also be recognised if
the Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue. In such cases,
a corresponding receivable would also be recognised (see note
1(m)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
S py S EL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(p) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for ECL in accordance with the policy set out in note 1(k)

(i).

(q) Employee benefits

(i)  Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to

defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-

monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated

services are rendered by employees. Where payment or

settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these

amounts are stated at their present values.

(ii) Defined benefit retirement plan obligations

The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit retirement
plans is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their services in the current
and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine the
present value and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted. The
calculationis performed by a qualified actuary using the projected
unit credit method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
S py S EL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
() Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii) Defined benefit retirement plan obligations (Continued)
Service cost and net interest expense/(income) on the net
defined benefit liability/(asset) are recognised in profit and loss
and allocated by function as part of “cost of sales”, “marketing,
selling and distribution expenses”, “administrative expenses” or
“other operating expenses”. Current service cost is measured as
the increase in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
resulting from employee service in the current period. When
the benefits of a plan are changed, or when a plan is curtailed,
the portion of the changed benefit related to past service by
employees, or the gain or loss on curtailment, is recognised
as an expense in profit and loss at the earlier of when the plan
amendment or curtailment occurs and when related restructuring
costsorterminationbenefitsarerecognised.Netinterest expense/
(income) for the period is determined by applying the discount rate
used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of
the reporting period to the net defined benefit liability/(asset). The
discount rate is the yield at the end of the reporting period on high
quality corporate bonds that have maturity dates approximating
the terms of the Group’s obligations.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit retirement plans
are recognised in other comprehensive income and reflected
immediately in retained earnings. Remeasurements comprise
actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability/(asset)) and any change in the effect of the asset ceiling
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/(asset)).

1 FESHBEK @

() EEER @)

(i) REBFIEIK BIFE (&)
REBHNEE, (BE) FEIBERARAE
B (WA FERBRED  WIRDEERE
BISERA] [HE BERSBER] [T
HER| R HOSEER] = — 56 - BER
MR AR AES R FEL > REEAEL
BUE 2RI o 4382 BRI LB S Byt
B4R - BIEBIES UERE 2B 2 2 H
ARG BN EE L5 T R RS R
BREMEARARKILERE (UBREEB%E)
RIEXERBEEZ - BANBER/ (KA) F
BEREBSHEREHIRATENSTIFRRAY
FRZEANREEANEE  (&F) FEME
EoREABEATES (P ERAEEE
FEIZHRABE) RERA ZKHE -

REBAERANEELE 2EFFTERAEZEE
BRERILNEFAREBFARR - EXfTER
ERERD  FAEERE (TEETARER
Fas () BFHEZFS 32 REE
EREIBzEMNES (TREFARERFEER
J(BE) FRZANSFHR2EH)

Annual Report 2019/2020 FE &

145



146

Notes to the Financial Statements
S py S EL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
() Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii) Long service payments obligation

The Group’s net obligation in respect of lump sum long service
amounts payable on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance
is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in
return for their services in the current and prior periods; that
benefit is discounted to determine the present value and reduced
by entitlements accrued under the Group'’s retirement plans that
are attributable to contributions made by the Group. The discount
rate is the yield at the end of the reporting period on high quality
corporate bonds that have maturity dates approximating the
terms of the Group’s obligation. The obligation is calculated by a
qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.

(iv) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is recognised
as an employee cost with a corresponding increase in the share-
based compensation reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using the binomial lattice model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled to the
options, the total estimated fair value of the options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability that the
options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that
is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to
the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to the profit or loss for the year of the review, unless
the original employee expenses qualify for recognition as an
asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the share-based
compensation reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised
as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the share-based
compensation reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the
Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised in the share-
based compensation reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is included in the amount recognised in share capital
for the shares issued) or the option expires (when it is released
directly to retained profits).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
S py S EL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1

(r)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate toitems recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Currenttaxistheexpectedtaxpayableonthetaxableincome
for theyear, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
S py S EL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1
(r)
(iii)

(iv)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Income tax (Continued)

(Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
S py S EL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(r) Income tax (Continued)

(v) Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions
are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously;
or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

(s) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
S py S EL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(t) Cashflow hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a hedge
of the variability in cash flows of a recognised asset or liability or
a highly probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency
risk of a committed future transaction, the effective portion of
any gains or losses on re-measurement of the derivative financial
instrument to fair value is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the hedging
reserve. The ineffective portion of any gain or loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

If the hedginginstrument is anon-derivative monetary item, which
is permitted only for foreign currency risk, then the effective
portion of the foreign currency gains or losses on the hedging
instrument also are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the hedging reserve. The
ineffective portion of any foreign currency gains or losses are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in the
recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability, the
associated gain or loss reclassified from equity is to be included in
the initial cost or other carrying amount of the non-financial asset
or liability.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in the
recognition of afinancial asset or afinancial liability, the associated
gain or loss is reclassified from equity to profit or loss in the same
period or periods during which the asset acquired or liability
assumed affects profit or loss (such as when interest income or
expense is recognised).

For cash flow hedges, other than those covered by the preceding
two policy statements, the associated gain or loss is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss in the same period or periods during
which the hedged forecast transaction affects profit or loss.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated
or exercised, or the entity revokes designation of the hedge
relationship but the hedged forecast transaction is still expected
to occur, the cumulative gain or loss at that point remains in equity
until the transaction occurs and itis recognised in accordance with
the above policy. If the hedged transaction is no longer expected
to take place, the cumulative unrealised gain or loss is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss immediately.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
S py S EL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(u) Revenue recognition

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises from
the sale of goods, the provision of services or the use by others
of the Group’s assets under leases in the ordinary course of the
Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service is
transferred to the customer, or the lessee has the right to use the
asset, at the amount of promised consideration to which the Group
is expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i)  Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer takes possession of and
accepts the products. If the products are a partial fulfilment of a
contract covering other goods and/or services, then the amount
of revenue recognised is an appropriate proportion of the total
transaction price under the contract, allocated between all the
goods and services promised under the contract on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis.

(ii)  Service fees
Servicefeesarerecognisedwhentherelatedservicesare provided.
Service fees exclude value added tax or other sales taxes.

(iii) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered by
the lease term. Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as income in the accounting period
in which they are earned.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
S py S EL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(u) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iv) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method. For financial assets measured at amortised cost
that are not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is applied
to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit-impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied to the
amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) of
the asset (see note 1(Kk)(i)).

(v) Dividend income
Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when
the shareholder’s right to receive payment is established.

(vi) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement of financial
position initially when there is reasonable assurance that
they will be received and that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them. Grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss
on a systematic basis in the same periods in which the expenses
are incurred. Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of
an asset are deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised in profit or loss over the
useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.

(v) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss, except those non-derivative monetary items used
to hedge foreign currency risk which are recognised in other
comprehensive income (see note 1(t)).

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical costinaforeign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. The transaction
date is the date on which the Group initially recognises such non-
monetary assets or liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the
fair value was measured.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
S py S EL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(v) Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

The results of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items, including goodwill arising on
consolidation of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong, are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a subsidiary outside Hong Kong, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that subsidiary
outside Hong Kong is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from monetary items
that in substance form part of the net investment in an operation
outside Hong Kong, together with any related tax, are reclassified
to equity on consolidation.

(w) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing cost as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale
are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or
complete.

(x) Repair and maintenance expenditure
Repair and maintenance expenditure, including cost of overhaul,
is expensed as incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
S py S EL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1
(y) Related parties (y)
(@) Aperson,oraclose member of that person’s family, is related (a)

to the Group if that person:
(i)  hascontrol or joint control over the Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following (b)
conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(ii)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member).

(iii) Bothentities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

(vi) Theentityiscontrolled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
S py S EL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(z) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes, the
type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

2 Accounting judgements and estimates
Notes 13, 22 and 23 contain information about the assumptions
and their risk factors relating to goodwill impairment assessment,
defined benefit retirement liabilities and the fair value of share
options granted. Other key sources of estimation uncertainty are
as follows:
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Notes to the Financial Statements
S py S EL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

2 Accounting judgements and estimates

(Continued)

(a) Impairment of property, plant and equipment

If circumstances indicate that the carrying values of property,
plant and equipment may not be recoverable, the assets may be
considered “impaired”, and an impairment loss may be recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36, Impairment of assets. Under HKAS
36, these assets are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that their recorded carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. When such a decline has
occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the greater of its fair value less costs
of disposal and the value in use. In determining the value in use,
expected cash flows generated by the asset are discounted
to their present value, which requires significant judgement
relating to level of sales volume, selling prices and amount of
operating costs. The Group uses all readily available information
in determining an amount that is a reasonable approximation of
recoverable amount. However, actual sales volumes, selling prices
and operating costs may be different from assumptions which may
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets
affected. Details of the nature and carrying amounts of property,
plant and equipment are disclosed in note 11.

(b) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment (see note 11) are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, after taking
into account the estimated residual values, if any. The Group
reviews the estimated useful lives and the estimated residual
values, if any, of the assets at least annually in order to determine
the amount of depreciation expense to be recorded during any
reporting period. The useful lives and residual values are based
onthe Group’s historical experience with similar assets and taking
into account anticipated technological changes. The depreciation
expense for future periods is adjusted if there are significant
changes from previous estimates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
S py S EL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

2 Accounting judgements and estimates

(Continued)

(c) Write down of inventories

The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying amounts
of inventories as disclosed in note 16 with reference to
aged inventories analysis, expected future consumption and
management judgement. Based on these reviews, write down of
inventories will be made when the estimated net realisable value
of inventories decline below the carrying amount. However,
actual consumption may be different from estimation and profit
or loss could be affected by differences in this estimation.

(d) Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses and
temporary deductible differences. As those deferred tax assets
canonly be recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax
benefits can be utilised, management’s judgements is required
to assess the probability of future taxable profits. Management’s
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional deferred tax
assets are recognised if it becomes probable that future taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered. Details
of the nature and carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are
disclosed in note 24(b).

(e) Determiningthe lease term

As explained in policy note 1(j), the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments payable
over the lease term. In determining the lease term at the
commencement date for leases that include renewal options
exercisable by the Group, the Group evaluates the likelihood of
exercising the renewal options taking into account all relevant
facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for
the Group to exercise the option, including favourable terms,
leasehold improvements undertaken and the importance of that
underlying asset to the Group’s operation. The lease term is
reassessed when there is a significant event or significant change
in circumstance that is within the Group’s control. Any increase
or decrease in the lease term would affect the amount of lease
liabilities and right-of-use assets recognised in future years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
S py S EL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

3 Revenue and segment reporting

(a) Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and sale
of food and beverages.

Revenue represents the invoiced value of products sold, net of
returns, rebates and discounts.

No disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers is
presented as the entire revenue of the Group is derived from the
manufacture and sale of food and beverages, and is recognised at
pointin time.

(b) Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by entities, which are organised
by geography. In a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment, the Group has presented the
following four reportable segments. No operating segments have
been aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

- The Mainland China business mainly represents the
manufacture and sale of soya milk, tea, juice, etc. in Mainland
China;

- The Hong Kong Operation (Hong Kong, Macau and Exports)
mainly represents the manufacture and sale of soya milk,
tea, water, juice, tofu, etc. in Hong Kong, sale of beverages
in Macau, export of beverages from Hong Kong and the
operating of tuck shops and catering businesses;

- The Australia and New Zealand business mainly represents
the manufacture and sale of soya milk and other plant milk
products in Australia and sale of beverages in New Zealand;
and

- The Singapore business mainly represents the manufacture
and sale of soya related products in Singapore and sale of

soya related products in overseas.

All of the Group’s revenue is generated from the manufacture and
sale of food and beverages.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

3 Revenue and segment reporting (Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i)  Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s most senior
executive management monitors the results, assets and liabilities
attributable to each reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets, intangible assets and
current assets with the exception of interest in joint venture,
deferred tax assets, current tax recoverable, goodwill and
unallocated head office and corporate assets. Segment liabilities
include trade creditors and bills payable attributable to the
manufacture and sales activities of the individual segments, bank
loans and lease liabilities managed directly by the segments and
current liabilities with the exception of employee retirement
benefit liabilities, deferred tax liabilities, current tax payable and
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is “profit from
operations”. To arrive at “profit from operations”, the Group’s
profit is further adjusted for items not specifically attributed to
individual segments, such as finance costs, share of losses of joint
venture and unallocated head office and corporate expenses.
Income tax is not allocated to reporting segments. Inter-segment
sales are priced at cost plus a profit margin.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

3 Revenue and segment reporting (continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)
(i)  Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) (i) DE¥4E - BERERE (&)

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as
provided to the Group’s most senior executive management for
the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment

3 WARDHHRE @

(b) ZEPERE (&)

performance for the years ended 31st March 2020 and 2019 is T

set out below:

BE-_Z-ZFR-E-NF=ZRA=FT—HLF
B AROAEEERSETREEASRMHZE
REER D FRBEFT L2 ERE D HBEREIMN

Mainland China Hong Kong Operation ~ Australia and New Zealand Singapore Total
FERL ERER BNRAER EpilE @t
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
ZECEF CE-nF ZBCBF TN CZECRF CE-RF CEBCEF CE-F ZBDEE CENF
(Note) (Note) (Note) (Note) (Note)
(Bitzt) (Bitzt) (Rt (FtE) (Rt
$000Fx $000Fxw $000Fx $000Frm $000Fx $000Frx $000Fx $000Fx $000Fx  $000FT

Revenue from external customers 4503502 4628440 2,108,176 2,264,066 502,322 522468 118,641 111521 7232641 7526495
RESNEREE ZHA
Inter-segment revenue 113411 77,263 73,729 67,190 7,131 2092 4160 3136 198,431 149,681
AHERA
Reportable segment revenue 4616913 4705703 2181905 2331256 509,453 524,560 122,801 114657 7431072 7,676,176
BREDB WA
Reportable segment profit from

operations 523,390 720,303 289977 339,149 76,857 92,781 4969 867 895193 1,153,100
BREDR2LERA
Interest income from bank deposits 5931 3,751 4910 9,664 75 165 3 1 10,919 13,581
RAERZHMBMA
Finance costs (1,374) = (7,731) (60) (1,393) (2,026) (434) - (10,932) (2,086)
REMK
Depreciation and amortisation for

the year (209,606)  (162,844)  (169,160) (79,685) (19,246) (17,614) (4,575) (4501)  (402,587)  (264,644)
REEZREREH
Reportable segment assets 3954641 3291062 3606351 3425052 385,747 421,820 92,077 76846 8038816  7,214780
BREINCEER
Reportable segment liabilities 2377121 1769460 1,003,173 672,600 134,077 137,592 27437 17271 3541808 2596923
BREAWAE
Additions to non-current segment

assets during the year 890,443 765445 224,439 184,743 13721 33,195 2,350 2524 1130953 985,907

AEEMEZFRBNHEE

Note: Mis

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1st April 2019 using the modified EEER-_Z-NFHA-—AEXEA(EBUEREE
retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative information is BIY 1655 - RIBHALBITINERLE  KBEELKRE
not restated. See note 1(c). 5l o FEEERMIEE 1(c) ©
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(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

3 Revenue and segment reporting (continued) 3 H&)\&""‘Bﬁ% (4)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) ZEWE (&)
(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profitor (i) ZAIRED KA - Bz - EEREREZ

loss, assets and liabilities ¥R
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NEF
$'000 F 7T $'000 F 7T
Revenue
L ON
Reportable segment revenue 7,431,072 7,676,176
RIEDEZUWA
Elimination of inter-segment revenue (198,431) (149,681)
DEBEUA 2 Hif g
Consolidated revenue 7,232,641 7,526,495
FaWA
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
(Note)
(Hf¥E)
$'000 F 7T $'000 F 7T
Profit or loss
B
Reportable segment profit from operations 895,193 1,153,100
AR E DI 2 & EF
Finance costs (note 5(a)) (10,932) (2,086)
RE A (FfEE5(a))
Share of losses of joint venture (17,433) (19,236)
it & & R REEE
Unallocated head office and corporate expenses (187,760) (175,940)
RAOBMZBARREEER
Consolidated profit before taxation 679,068 955,838

EBRBADEF]
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

3 Revenue and segment reporting (Continued) 3 WARZHEE @

(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DEWE (&)
(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profitor (i) ZAIRED KA - Bz EEREREZ
loss, assets and liabilities (Continued) ¥1ER ()
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-hEF
(Note)
(F#=E)

$°000 F 7t $'000 F 7t
Assets
BE
Reportable segment assets 8,038,816 7,214,780
BAREDI2EE
Elimination of inter-segment receivables (1,877,449) (1,539,207)
7350 FE UK 2 i 85

6,161,367 5,675,573
Interest in joint venture 62,026 59,290
EE QT ZER
Deferred tax assets 97,653 81,169
ELHEAE
Current tax recoverable 66,497 37,727
FEWGR AR 18
Goodwill 17,251 18,375
GL
Unallocated head office and corporate assets 5,701 6,075
ROBMZBARIREEEE
Consolidated total assets 6,410,495 5,878,209
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

3 Revenue and segment reporting (Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(ii)  Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profit or
loss, assets and liabilities (Continued)

3 WARDHHRE @

(b) PEBHRE (@)

(i) AHREDTEBUA - B - EEREEZ
R ()

2020 2019
—B-EF =F-NF
(Note)
(F#=E)

$°000 F 7t $'000 F 7t
Liabilities
afE
Reportable segment liabilities 3,541,808 2,596,923
AMEDE2AE
Elimination of inter-segment payables (723,869) (363,957)
7 ERE A Rz 8

2,817,939 2,232,966
Employee retirement benefit liabilities 34,313 22,624
EERNEFERE
Deferred tax liabilities 101,465 98,981
BEREBEAE
Current tax payable 13,776 29,135
FEIREABIE
Unallocated head office and corporate liabilities 24,898 24,943
ROBZBARIREEERE
Consolidated total liabilities 2,992,391 2,408,649

RaRas

Note:

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1st April 2019 using the modified
retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative information is
not restated. See note 1(c).

P -
EEER-F—NENE— B ERRA (B BHBREE

BI) 1655 - RIBRAKEITNENE  LBERXERE
B o FEEMNMIEE 1(c) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

3 Revenue and segment reporting (continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(iii) Geographic information

The following table sets out information about the geographic
location of the Group’s property, plant and equipment, deposits
for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets, goodwill and interest in joint venture (“specified non-
current assets”). The geographic location of the specified non-
current assets is based on the physical location of the asset, in
the case of property, plant and equipment and deposits for the
acquisition of property, plant and equipment, and the location of
the operation to which they are allocated, in the case of intangible
assets and goodwill and the location of operations, in the case of
interest in joint venture.

3 WA&“%%%@)

(b) PEBRE (@)

(iii) HEER

T%ﬁﬂﬁ@$%l%¥ BERSEZHEY
CBEYY  BERREIIS BREE .

%ﬁﬁvééﬂﬁzgﬁuﬁi#mﬁéén

TER - RE BERRERBEVL  BE

REFCTEME  BEXRDEEZWELE

TREZEE S BRI BEE  RENEERE

EMSAEERRE Y SR RRAEA

B2 AT S QS A AT o

Specified non-current assets

HEFRBEE
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-hEF
(Note)
(Ff¥E)
$°000 F 7t $'000 F 7T
Mainland China 2,555,279 2,022,727
FEIR
Hong Kong Operation 919,497 642,081
BBER
Australia and New Zealand 203,971 244126
BN K2 5 75 BR
Singapore 54,867 53,765
N3
Other country 62,026 59,290
HAhE K
3,795,640 3,021,989
Note: MisE
The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1st April 2019 using the modified EEER-_Z-NFHA-—AEXEA(EBUEREE

retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative information is
not restated. See note 1(c).

The revenue from external customers and specified non-current
assets of the Group attributed to Hong Kong, the Group’s place
of domicile,amounted to $1,804,685,000 (2019: $1,961,417,000)
and $912,586,000 (2019: $635,381,000) respectively.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]

AI) 1655 - RIBERALETHE
B o FEBEEMMIE 1(c)

BE HBRESAEKRE

BB (REREFEH) G RERESNEREE 2 U
ARAKEEHEIFRBEED B 5 1,804,685000
T (ZF—NF © 1,961,417,0005T) K 912,586,000

7T (ZF—h%F : 635381,0007T) °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

4 Otherincome 4 HbmA
2020 2019
—T-FF =F-NF
$'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t
Government grants (Note) 13,254 8,692
BFRER (MIEE)
Interest income from bank deposits 10,919 13,581
IRITERZFEUWA
Interest income from loan to joint venture 1,644 471
A&ERARBHERZAEHA
Rental income 3,885 3,671
WA
Scrap sales 3,150 4,382
Reversal of long outstanding other payables 2,534 1,679
REREZEHE BN RKIEE
Sundry income 8,394 7,668
IR
43,780 40,144
Note: st

Government grants mainly relate to value-added tax refunded and other
financial assistance received from the government of the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC”). Other government grants received in relation to the
acquisition of property, plant and equipment were netted off against the cost
of the related assets (note 11(a)).

5 Profit before taxation

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

BREEEEPEARRANE ([PE]) BFREZIG
ERRREWRMEMmEEER REBEEVE BER
REWE z EMBFHBE RAEREEE 2 AR (M
11(a)) °

5 FER¥ANRF
BERTRRIE IR (GHA) :

2020 2019
—ERIERF —E-hEF
(Note)
(FftsE)
$'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t
(a) Finance costs:
REE R
Interest on bank loans (note 18(c)) 2,333 2,065
RITERZFIE (M 18(c)
Interest on lease liabilities (note 18(c)) 8,599 21
HEEBZFIE (M 18()
10,932 2,086

Note:

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 as at 1st April 2019 using the
modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative
information is not restated. See note 1(c).

MyEE
EEER-ZE-NFNA-ABRERA(ERIBEREE
BI) 1655 - RIBRAKEBTHENE  LBERALRE
B o FBEMNMIEE 1(c) °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

5 PBREBDER (@)
BRBADSRIENG  (SIA) © ()

5 Profit before taxation (Continued)

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):
(Continued)

166

2020 2019
—B-EF =F-NF
$'000 ¥t $'000 F 7t
(b)  Staff costs:
BT :
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans 92,819 93,748
REMFERMRET B2 MK
Net expenses recognised in respect of:
UTIEE 2 ERE T
- retirement gratuities (note 22(c)(v)) 3,486 3,497
-RIRE (FFEE22(c)(v)
- long service payments 373 431
-REBRES
Total retirement costs 96,678 97,676
BRI
Equity settled share-based payment expenses (note 23) 12,686 13,521
UM AARER 2 BER (Miz23)
Salaries, wages and other benefits 1,548,840 1,417,062
e TERHAMER
1,658,204 1,528,259
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
$'000 Tt $'000 F 7t
(c)  Other operating expenses:
HihR&EBR -
Staff costs 138,723 138,674
=%
Warehouse expenses 63,451 51,262
BEEEAH
Sundry tax in Mainland China 39,204 45,427
FP B Py 3t 9 E A B 18
Management fee charged by a related party 31,692 32,895
B AW EEE
Royalty withholding tax 19,186 17,676
SHRFEEABRENKR
Quality assurance and sampling expenses 13,047 19,622
BERFRELRER
Repair and maintenance expenses 5,916 6,954
HERREER
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (note 18(b)) 3,689 3,341
HEWE - BMERREZEEFEE (KT 18(b)
Others 43,593 49,168
HAt
358,501 365,019
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

5 Profit before taxation (Continued) 5 BRBAER @
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BRELADRFIS R (BT A) & (&)
(Continued)

2020 2019
—E_EHF —E-hE
$'000 F 7t $000 F it

(d) Otheritems:
Hibigg :

Amortisation of intangible assets 546 379
BEEE 2
Depreciation and amortisation
TEREHE
-Investment properties 126 460
-REYE
- Interests in leasehold land held for own use

under operating leases - 3,488
- RELEHEREFERZHE D iR
- Right-of-use assets* 90,998 -
-EREEE"
- Other assets 310,917 260,317
-HihEE
Recognition/(reversal) of impairment losses
w7 (@A) FEEE
- Trade and other receivables 977 316
- EUWARRR H A B
- Property, plant and equipment (2,409) 2,015
- - BEREE
Auditors’ remuneration
BZHE
- Audit services 5,699 5,592
- BEZRH
- Tax services 540 208
- ISR
- Other services 3,225 24,301
- HBARH
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

5 Profit before taxation (Continued)

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):
(Continued)

5 PBREBDER (@)
BRBADSRIENG  (SIA) © ()

2020 2019
=8 —E-hE
$'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t

(d) Otheritems: (Continued)
Hibigg : (&)
Total minimum lease payments for lease previously classified as
operating leases under HKAS 17* - 156,324
FRIRIE (BBSTER) F17 R0 BAKERE
ZEEAERTREEE"
Variable lease payments not included in the measurement
of lease liabilities 27,181 37,534
T AHEREFE ZTR#HEEMNR
Net foreign exchange loss 148 4,097
SN 518 R ER
Net gain on forward exchange contracts not designated
as hedging instruments - (101)
FIEERAEHPTAZRIIMNES N 2 F N
Cost of inventories (note 16(b)) 3,389,578 3,496,975

FERA (M 16(b)

* The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1st April
2019 to recognise right-of-use assets relating to leases which were
previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. After initial
recognition of right-of-use assets at 1st April 2019, the Group as a
lessee is required to recognise the depreciation of right-of-use assets,
instead of the previous policy of recognising rental expenses incurred
under operating leases on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Under this approach, the comparative information is not restated. See
note 1(c).

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

6

Income tax in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss

(a) Taxationin the consolidated statement of

profit or loss represents:

6 HEBEZRRZHMEHR

(a) HREBBRZBEMT :

2020 2019
=8 —E-NnE
$'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t

Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax
REABIE - BBAEB
Provision for the year 18,455 37,448
FRREB
Under-provision in respect of prior years 5 304
UEFEZBETE
18,460 37,752
Current tax - Outside HongKong
BHABIE - BEUMEE
Provision for the year 94,310 125,504
FRBREB
Under/(over)-provision in respect of prior years 9,607 (612)
UEFEZBERR (SREEE)
103,917 124,892
Deferredtax (12,9000 45499
BB IE
109,477 208,143
Notes: FfeE

(i)

(i)

(iii)

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2020 is calculated at
16.5% (2019: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year.

In accordance with the relevant PRC corporate income tax laws,
regulations and implementation guidance notes, the statutory income
tax rate applicable to the Company’s subsidiaries in Shenzhen, Foshan,
Shanghai, Wuhan, Dongguan and Nansha is 25%.

In addition, the Group is subject to withholding tax at the applicable
rate of 5% on distribution of profits generated after 31st December
2007 from the Group’s foreign-invested enterprises in the PRC.
Deferred tax liabilities have been provided for in this regard based on
the expected dividends to be distributed from the foreign-invested
enterprises in the PRC in the foreseeable future in respect of the
profits generated after 31st December 2007.

Taxation for subsidiaries outside Hong Kong and Mainland China
is charged at the appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the
relevant tax jurisdictions.

(i) TECTECEBRSHBERRFERNZMGTER
BURFILL16.5% (ZF—NEF © 16.5%) ZBETE °

(i)  REMBEATEEEMEHER  EZRKRERESIF
B EARARR R - B RE R
RREDME QB ZEEMEBES 25% °

o AEBARAEETRNEREUR-ER
tFE+ZAZ+-BEREEZEINELE 2 2RKE
5%EAB R BMENY - AEECHERES
HNELENARRRRETUR-ZZLF+A
=+ -HEEE RN IRZREFRIELERES

f&e

(i) FERPEAGIUIIMEHELR2BHBENERE
BREREERE2RITERRETE -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

6 Income tax in the consolidated 6 HmEBERRZABH @
statement of profit or loss (Continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) FIEXHEEFHEFR UERARE
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: FTEZER
2020 2019
—g-2f —2-h%E
$'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t

Profit before taxation 679,068 955,838
B A A
Notional tax on profit before taxation, calculated at the rates applicable

to profits in the tax jurisdictions concerned 136,188 209,756
REMBIERZERREAZFIEBH R ERBANGER 2 ERHE
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 6,211 7,607
AR 2 IR S &
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (3,750) (4,837)
FERBIUMA 2 BRIBRE
Withholding tax of the PRC subsidiaries 7,499 8,732
FEIME AR 2 FERBIE
Tax effect of recognition of tax loss and deductible temporary

differences not previously recognised (21,443) (110)
BRLCAAER R BEER TENERERE o BBEE
Net under/(over)-provision in respect of prior years 9,612 (308)
UEEEZBETR (BERHE) 8
Tax credit on PRC Corporate Income Tax paid (13,431) (11,959)
EHPEDEFER 2HIBER
Others (11,409) (738)
Hith
Actual tax expense 109,477 208,143
ERBIER N
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PA RS AR MY

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

7 Emoluments of Directors

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies

7 EEZME

RIBEE CRTRM) 5 383(1) 1R (AT (HE
EEFEER) RO F2BEBE2ESHE 0

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation T
are as follows:
2020
“3CEF
Salaries,
allowances Share-
and benefits Retirement hased
Directors’ inkind Discretionary scheme payments
fees  HeBER bonuses  contributions Sub-total WRfAE Total
ESHE BORN  BERHZEA  RIGHEER gt AR g
(Note)
(Hs)
$000 F 70 $000 F 7t $000 1t $000 F 7t $000 F 7t $000 F 7t $000 F7t
Executive Directors
Hi7EE
Mr. Winston Yau-laiLO 300 6,301 5051 369 12021 607 12,628
BRERE
Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI 150 7,362 4,955 382 12,849 5618 18467
EEELE
Mr. Eugene LYE 150 2075 1,001 30 3,256 - 3,256
Relzs
Non-executive Directors
FilfEE
Ms. Yvonne Mo-lingLO 17 - - - m - 1
BHERGT
Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO 157 - - - 157 - 157
BERLE
Ms.May LO 161 - - - 161 - 161
BHELT
Independent Non-executive Directors
BUHH{TEE
Dr. The Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI 465 - - - 465 - 465
SEERL
Mr. JanP.S.ERLUND 452 - - - 452 - 452
JanPS.ERLUND 4
Mr. Anthony John Liddell NIGHTINGALE 464 - - - 464 - 464
REERE
Mr. Paul Jeremy BROUGH 479 - - - 479 - 479
Paul Jeremy BROUGH %4
Dr. Roy Chi-ping CHUNG 354 - - - 354 - 354
3,303 15,738 11,007 781 30,829 6,225 37,054
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

7 Emoluments of Directors (continued) 7 EBEZME w

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the RIBEB CQARMEH) 55 383(N) 1R K (AT (HE
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies BEENRER) RO F2REBEESHE W
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation T (#)

are as follows: (Continued)

2019
Z2-NF
Salaries,
allowances Share-
and benefits Retirement hased
Directors’ inkind  Discretionary scheme payments
fees  H BHR bonuses  contributions Sub-total iRBE Total
EE20ks EUEA  BERRCEL  BGEHR NGt A &
(Note)
(i)
$000F $000F 7 $000F $000F $000F $000F & $000 1
Executive Directors
#7EF
Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO 249 5874 5,043 355 1152 1490 13011
BRERE
Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI 125 7057 4797 367 12,346 5031 17377
BEELE
Mr. Eugene LYE 125 2053 705 64 2947 - 2947
Rtk
Non-executive Directors
FHfEE
Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO 142 - - - 142 - 142
Rt
Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO 125 - - - 125 - 125
BEREE
Ms.May LO 125 - - - 125 - 125
BHELT

Independent Non-executive Directors

BUFHTEE

Dr. The Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI 446 = = = 446 = 446
SEERL

Mr. JanP.S.ERLUND 434 = = = 434 = 434
JanPS.ERLUND 4

Mr. Anthony John Liddell NIGHTINGALE 434 - - - 434 - 434
REERE

Mr. Paul Jeremy BROUGH 459 = = = 459 = 459
Paul Jeremy BROUGH £

Dr. Roy Chi-ping CHUNG 340 - - - 340 - 340

3,004 14,984 10,545 786 29319 6,521 35,840
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(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

7 Emoluments of Directors (continued)

Note: These represent the estimated value of share options granted to the
Directors under the Company’s share option scheme. The value of
these share options is measured according to the Group’s accounting
policies for share-based payment transactions as set out in note 1(q)
(iv) and, in accordance with that policy, includes adjustments to reverse
amounts accrued in previous years where grants of equity instruments
are forfeited prior to vesting.

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal terms and
number of options granted, are disclosed under the paragraph “Share
option scheme” in the directors’ report and note 23.

8 Individuals with highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2019:
two) are Directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other three (2019:
three) individuals are as follows:

7 BEEZHE @

Mz : AR AER 2 A RIERBAD T 2 BRETEIR
FESCBREZGTEE  WEBREZEEAD
RIBMEE 1q)(iv) IR EEFRURDASRER 2
REEACETBERMETE » MRBEZER B
HBTFERAMARHENRATEERBACH®
Rz BB & FEFTE 2 A% o

HEEYEN2FHE (BFCRECBREZTE
HRRRBE) RESERE [BREE] —BRRH
FE23 IR o

8 mEMEAL

ERERSHEALS WE (CB-NE W
£) BEE  HEZMORHETPRE - 28
=£ (SF-NE=8) ALZMEBENT

2020 2019
=8 —E-hE
$'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t

Salaries and other emoluments 12,743 13,050
FeRHEMME
Retirement scheme contributions 383 249
RIRET B
Discretionary bonuses 3,935 2,818
BBz B4
Share-based payments 3,135 2,901
LURM BERE 2R

20,196 19,018
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

8 Individuals with highest emoluments 8 EBEMEAL @
(Continued)
The emoluments of the three (2019: three) individuals with the SR (ZE-NEF =F) Bells ALz
highest emoluments are within the following bands: NFLUT AR
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hEF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A AE
$5,000,001 to $5,500,000 - 1
5,000,001 T £ 5,500,000 JT
$5,500,001 to $6,000,000 1 -
5,500,001 JT E 6,000,000 JT
$6,000,001 to $6,500,000 - 1
6,000,001 JT £ 6,500,000 JT
$6,500,001 to $7,000,000 1 -
6,500,001 JT £ 7,000,000 JT
$7,000,001 to $7,500,000 1 1
7,000,001 JTt £ 7,500,000 JT
9 Other comprehensive income 9 HfhZmEUW=
(a) Tax effects relating to each component of (a) FRAEHMEEKREEIM2HRK
other comprehensive income: -7
2020 2019
53 “E-nE
Before-tax Tax Net-of-tax Before-tax Tax Net-of-tax
amount credit amount amount credit amount

BHAIEE REER ARHEZE  HHAZE RBER IBRHESR
$000 Tt $000 ¥t $000 T 7t $000 ¥ 7 $000 ¥ $000 Tt

Exchange differences on translation of financial statements of

subsidiaries and joint venture outside Hong Kong (189,549) - (189,549) (122,804) - (122,804)
RREEBIMENBAARGE N A HBHRRMEENE
Cash flow hedge: net movement in the hedging reserve (445) 156 (289) (4,896) 808 (4,088)
BeRsth  HiETEs
Remeasurement of employee retirement benefit liabilities (11,523) 1872 (9,651) (6,142) 1,001 (5,141)
EERINEREECENIE
(201,517) 2,028 (199,489) (133,842) 1,809 (132,033)
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(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

9 Other comprehensive income (Continued)
(b) Components of other comprehensive income:

9 HttzxmWa=E @
(b) HftZmEWzE 25 -

2020 2019
—B-EHF —E-NF
$'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t
Cash flow hedges:
Benat
Effective portion of changes in fair value of hedging instruments
recognised during the year (11,706) (2,699)
FARIZETTAAAEEB 2 E R0
Amounts transferred to initial carrying amount of hedged items 11,261 (2,197)
BREWHEESYREEZEHE
Net deferred tax credited to other comprehensive income 156 808
REM2E KRR A 2 ELEB I FEE
Net movement in the hedging reserve during the year recognised in
other comprehensive income (289) (4,088)
FANEMEEREER P RHETEEE
10 Earnings per share 10 BREF

(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
$535,878,000 (2019: $695,907,000) and the weighted average
number of 1,063,203,000 ordinary shares (2019: 1,060,585,000
ordinary shares) in issue during the year, calculated as follows:

(a) BREXZR
BEREXABADREALDAREITE A
FE 15 % F1535,878,000T ( = & — A & :
695,907,000 7t) R FAC BITEBR 2 MEF
19 0% 01,063,203 000 R EBK (ZE—NF :
1,060,585,000 lREBAR) 5t 5 » HtEWT ¢

Weighted average number of ordinary shares EiBRZINEFISRE
2020 2019
t e 222 —E-hF
Number of shares Number of shares
BRHOE RO EE
'000 F A% '000 F %
Issued ordinary shares at 1st April 1,061,582 1,058,872
ROB—B2EBTEBER
Effect of share options exercised 1,621 1,713
BITEBRECTE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares at 31st March
(note 10(b)) 1,063,203 1,060,585

R=B=+—H2EBRZIEFIRE (FE 10(b))
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Notes to the Financial Statements
S py S EL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

10 Earnings per share (continued)

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
$535,878,000 (2019: $695,907,000) and the weighted average
number of 1,074,530,000 ordinary shares (2019: 1,071,436,000
ordinary shares) after adjusting for the effects of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares, calculated as follows:

10 SREF @)

(b) BREEZER
EREEBFREARQDARESEAENSR
535,878,000 7t (=& — AL F : 695,907,000 7T)
EKMFEABTEEERA ERR 2 FEMEL
FEE 2 EBRINFET IR E 1,074,530,000 %
ETER (ZZE—HF :1,071,436,000 REER)
& HItEWT

=114 il

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) ZBERZINEFGRE (#5)
2020 2019
i —E-hF
Number of shares Number of shares
BROSE R&HEE
'000 F A% '000 F %
Weighted average number of ordinary shares at 31st March
(note 10(a)) 1,063,203 1,060,585
REA=+—RAZEBRZMEFIRE (M 10(a))
Effect of deemed issue of ordinary shares under the Company’s share
option scheme for nil consideration 11,327 10,851
BRRABRBEAAR ZBREAEINEEF B TEERZTE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) at 31st March 1,074,530 1,071,436

R=ZB=+—-HZEBRZMEFIRE (#F)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PA RS AR MY

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

11 Property, plant and equipment

11 Y%  BERRE

(a) (a)
Interestsin
leasehold
Other property, plant and equipment land held
2fohE  BEREE for own use
under
Land and Factory Fixtures, operating
buildings ~ machinery furniture leases
held for and  andoffice it
ownuse  equipment  equipment Motor  Construction Investment ~ HERHIE
BEfBR.  IRESER 2B KR vehicles inprogress  Subfotal  properties  EIFiZEAE Total
THRET FE  BAERE RE RIE N REME IHER &t
$000Fx  $000Ffm  $000Fx  $000Fxm  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000Frm
Cost:
A
At 1st April 2018 1016621 2826617 345,900 145,882 168888 4,503,908 22698 80487 4,607,093
RZE-NEMA-A
Exchange adjustments (47.794) (126,284) (7,955) (3071) (11,218) (196,322) - (5,088) (201,410)
ERRE
Additions 6,355 295,327 60,832 12864 493498 8683876 - 116995 9853871
hE
Transfer 22460 190,095 15938 1456 (229,.949) - - - -
2
Disposals (626) (138,702) (20057) (11,245) - (170,630) - - (170,630)
HE
At 31stMarch 2019 997016 3047053 394,658 145,886 421219 5,005,832 22,698 192394 5220924
B 2 o =
Accumulated amortisation, depreciation and
impairment losses:
ZiTEY FERNESE:
At 1st April 2018 430128 1494537 219,884 81,706 - 2206255 18610 13353 2258218
RZE-NEMA-H
Exchange adjustments (15,841) (60,061) (3,560) (1,799) - (81,261) - (875) (82,136)
Charge for the year 33411 188,103 26,498 12,305 - 260317 460 3488 264,265
AEEEHRNE
Recognition of impairment losses = 818 1,197 = = 2015 - - 2015
BRESE
Written back on disposals (275) (130,834) (19.281) (10,354) - (160,744) - - (160,744)
HERRE
At 31stMarch 2019 447423 1492563 24738 81858 - 246582 19070 15966 2281618
B g o =
Net book value:
BERE:
At 315t March 2019 549593 1554490 169,920 64,028 21219 2759250 3628 176428 2,939,306
RZE-NE=B=1-A
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRSEHRBAI » LUBEEHE)

11 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 11 M% - BERSE (E&)
(a) (Continued) (a) (@)

Interests in
leasehold
Other property, plant and equipment [and held

Eﬁb%% ' Hgﬁﬁﬁﬁ for own use

under

Land and Factory Fixtures, operating

buildings ~ machinery furniture |eases

held for and  andoffice Rige

ownuse  equipment  equipment Motor ~ Construction Right-of-use  Investment ~ HEHEH
BEfFERZ  IRMER £B HAR vehicles inprogress  Sub-total assets  properties  EFZEE Total
THREF #E  BOERE RE  EEIR Nt FREEE REME LhEs a5t
$000Fx  $000Fxm  $000Fx  $000Fxm  $000Fx  $000Fm  §000Fm  $000Fm  §000Fm  $000 F&

Cost:
A

At 315t March 2019 997,016 3,047,053 394,658 145,886 421219 5,005,832 - 22,698 192394 5220924
RZE-NEZA=1-R
Impact on initial application of
HKFRS 16 (Note)
BRER (BAuBREEE)
£165 278 (W3t

- Recognition of operating

leases - - - - - - 245173 - - 245,173
-BRgenE
- Reclassification of leasehold

[and - - - - - - 192,394 - (192,394) -
-EFDEREIH
At 1st April 2019 997,016 3,047,053 394,658 145,886 421219 5005832 437,567 22,698 - 5466097
RZE-NEME-A
Exchange adjustments (57,418) (172,699) (8,933) (2.960) (40877) (282,887) (15,072) - - (297,959)
Additions 1,149 58,270 64,550 4470 932415 1,060,854 69,982 - - 113083
HE
Transfer 120,755 235,210 97,506 - (453471) - - - - -
34
Disposals - (43478) (29,238) (8,697) - (81,413) (1,620) - - (83,033)
HE
At 31st March 2020 1,061,502 3,124,356 518,543 138,699 859,286 57022386 490,857 22,698 - 621594

REB-EEZA=1-H
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

11 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 11 M% - BERSE (E&)
(a) (Continued) (a) (@)

[nterests in

leasehold
Other property, plant and equipment [and held

Eﬁb%% ' ﬁ%&%ﬁﬁ for own use

under

Land and Factory Fixtures, operating

buildings ~ machinery furniture |eases

held for and  andoffice Rige

ownuse  equipment  equipment Motor ~ Construction Right-of-use Investment ~ REREIE
BEfFERZ  IRMER £B HAR vehicles inprogress  Sub-total assets  properties  EFZEE Total
THREF #E  BOERE RE EIR Nt EREEE RENE THER a5t
$000Fx  $000Ffxm  $000Fx  $000Ffxm  $000Fx  $000Fm  §000Fx  $000Fm  §000Fm  $000 Fx

Accumulated amortisation,
depreciation and impairment
[osses:

Rirl#  FERAERR:

At 31stMarch 2019 447423 1492563 204738 81,858 - 2246582 - 19,070 15966  2281,618
RZB-NE=B=t1-A
Impact oninitial application of

HKFRS 16 (Note)
ERER (BRMEREEN)

F1652%8 (h3t)
- Reclassification of

leasehold land - - - - -

-BNARRELS
At 1st April 2019 447423 1492563 24738 81,858 - 2246582 15966 19,070 - 281618
R=E-nEMA-A

15,966 - (15966) -

Exchange adjustments (19,536) (76,487) (4.299) (1,939) - (102,261) (1,523) - - (103,784)

Erige

Charge for the year 31,782 225243 42,047 11,845 - 310,917 90998 126 - 402,041

AEERHERNE

Reversal of impairment losses - (1,011) (1,398) - - (2409) - - - (2,409)

BEREEE

Written back on disposals - (38,713) (27.924) (6,729) - (73,366) (164) - - (73,530)

HERRE

At 315t March 2020 459,669 1,601,595 233,164 85,035 - 2,379,463 105,277 19,196 - 2,503,936
SRR ol .

Net book value:

REFE:

At 31t March 2020 601833 1522761 285379 53,604 859,286 3322923 385,580 3,502 - 3712005
R-B-EE-A-1-H
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

11 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
(a) (Continued)

Government grants of $22,071,000 (2019: $431,000) were
received from the PRC government in relation to the acquisition
of plant and equipment and were netted off against the cost of the
related assets during the year.

11 Y% -  BEKRE @

(a) (@)

FRRPERFUEREBEBERERRENBF
# B 22,071,0007t (=& — S 5 : 431,000 7T)

ERAEREE 2 B ASHIBR o

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified

retrospective method and adjusted the opening balances at 1st April
2019 to recognise right-of-use assets relating to leases which were
previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. See note 1(c).

ME @ ARECRAKEITENEEER (FRUHKR
HEA) BIRRABRR-_Z-AEFNA—-R2Z
AR URRELARE (FBSTER) &
17 RAKEHE HERB 2 EAREE -
FEBERMIEE 1(c) ©

(b) Right-of-use assets
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by class of
underlying asset is as follows:

(b) EREEE

BEBEES B2 ERAREE ZREFHED W

T

31st March 2020

1st April 2019

i e 255 —E-NEF
=A=+-—H mA—AH
$'000 F 7T $'000 F T
Interests in leasehold land held for own use,
carried at depreciated cost, with remaining lease term of:
HEERAZHEE D R (RITERASIIR) Z6RTHE
- 50years or more 6,385 6,952
- 50U E
- between 10 and 50 years 161,190 176,428
-10Z50F 2
167,575 183,380
Other properties leased for own use, carried at depreciated cost 216,096 238,221
HEER B ZH MY% (RITERASIER)
Factory machinery and equipment, carried at depreciated cost 1,909 -
TRHERE Rt (RITERASIER)
385,580 421,601
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

11 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 11 M% - BERSZE @

(b) Right-of-use assets (Continued) (b) FEFAEEE @)

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised in HNEREREEREZEIERE AT !
profit or loss is as follows:

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-hEF
(Note)
(F#=E)
$°000 F 7t $'000 F 7t
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets by class of underlying asset:
REBREESB2ERREEZITEER :
- Ownership interests in leasehold land held for own use 3,872 -
-BEEERZHE T hEREER
- Other properties leased for own use 86,846 -
-HEFE R ZH MY
- Factory machinery and equipment 280 -
- TR KRR 1B
90,998 -
Interest on lease liabilities (note 5(a)) 8,599 21
HEEBZFE (MEE5()
Expense relating to short-term leases and other leases with remaining
lease term ending on or before 31st March 2020 59,678 -
BRTHIN - E-_EF=A=1+—-HHZAxEZEREREE
RHEMEEZHX
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets, excluding short-term
leases of low-value assets 2,526 -

FRREEEEHEZMAX (KEEEE ZEHEERM)
Total minimum lease payments for leases previously classified as

operating leases under HKAS 17 - 156,324
ERIRIE (BBETHER) F 17 R BELEHEHE

ZEEEENRERE
Variable lease payments not included in the measurement

of lease liabilities 27,181 37,534
At AHES G E 2 AISHEENR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

11 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(b) Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1st April
2019 to recognise right-of-use assets relating to leases which were
previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. After initial
recognition of right-of-use assets at 1st April 2019, the Group as a
lessee is required to recognise the depreciation of right-of-use assets,
instead of the previous policy of recognising rental expenses incurred
under operating leases on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Under this approach, the comparative information is not restated. See
note 1(c).

The Group leases various warehouses, offices, factory machinery
and equipment for its operations. The leases included in right-of-
use assets typically run for an initial period of more than one year
to five years. Some leases include an option to renew the lease for
an additional period after the end of the contract term. Where
practicable, the Group seeks to include such extension options
exercisable by the Group to provide operational flexibility.
The Group assesses at lease commencement date whether it
is reasonably certain to exercise the extension options. If the
Group is not reasonably certain to exercise the extension options,
the future lease payments during the extension periods are not
included in the measurement of lease liabilities.

In addition, the Group is the registered owner of several leasehold
land. Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire the
leased land.

Duringtheyear,additionstoright-of-useassetswere $69,982,000.
This amount primarily related to the capitalised lease payments

payable under new tenancy agreements.

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity analysis
of lease liabilities are set out in notes 18(d) and 21, respectively.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]

11 V¥  BERRE @

(b) FEAEEE @)

MizE: ZEBEHRALEITBNEIERER(EBYHR
LEB) FI6ERFABRR-S-NFENE—B2H
WEEeh > URRELARE(EESTER) F17
WoBAKEHE HENBoEAREE - 15
BRANRZE-NFNE-—B2FREEERZ L&
B (EAAEAN) BRIAEAEESENE  MFERE
SATBRERRAHAUNEGSEIRRALEHEBETE
HECHSER REBEURAZE  EBEBEXRETY -
BHEE1(c) °

FEERELERARZEAE BOE - THE
BREE TAEREEEZAE-—RILSHH
BE-—FERF - POHEETRENFHTHER
BRESHEFIME - ®UBATZERT A%
EAOREEREETTEZBRLERRE - IR
HELTEN - AEERNEERMK A BFERE
BEBSETELENEE - MAKERESESE
ITEERZEE - REMBBzZARBAEASRTE
sFAEaEZRE -

o AEBABHEE L ZERTFEA B
RAEH — XM EE L 1 -

TR AEEEHEEER69,982,000% T °
ZREAIRENAEHRETENMBEETRE

o
Ef

BEEEC RS RHBEREEaE 2o
2 RIS B MEE 18(d) )2 21 ©



Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

11 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(c) Property, plant and equipment leased out
under operating leases

The Group leases out investment properties under an operating

lease. The lease runs for an initial period of two years, with an

option to renew the lease after that date at which time all terms

are renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

The Group’s undiscounted lease payments under non-cancellable
operating lease are receivable as follows:

11 % - BERRE @

(c) REKLHEERL WX  BE
k&G

AEELCSRERLRENE - ZEREDS

BEME - I AERREENNEAED  BE

BRI TESEE - ZERELBOERR

e o

REERB T FR 2 EEHERWZ RBERA
ENRWT -

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NEF
$'000 Tt $'000 F 7t
Within one year 4,038 918
—FR
After one year but within two years 1,683 -
—FERERER
Total 5,721 918
e

(d) The fair value of investment properties

The fair value of investment properties at 31st March 2020 is
$62,500,000 (2019: $65,900,000) which is estimated at their
open market value by reference to recent market transactions in
comparable properties (2019: same basis of valuation adopted).
The valuationwas carried out by anindependent firm of surveyors,
Roma Appraisals Limited, who have among their staff members of
the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in
the location and category of the properties being valued.

d) REMEZRAAE

RENER-_ZS_ZTF=A=1+—HZ2REAR
62,500,000 7T ( =& — fL 5 : 65,900,0007T) °
WS EMLBYEZAPTERZRBIZAH
THEEETHT (Z2—NF  KEE—E
BE) o hEDHBLANEMTESEERIGEE
RATET  HBOHBEATBIEMEGE
& HEFfhENEZEREREGHEETRL

o

4

a
AR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

11 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
(d) The fair value of investment properties
(Continued)
The fair value measurement is categorised as a Level 3 valuation
under the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS
13, Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference to
observability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date;

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs
i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not available; and

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs.

The fair value of investment properties is determined by using
direct comparison approach with reference to the market price
of comparable properties and adjusted for building quality and
timing of the reference transaction. The significant unobservable
input in the fair value measurement is the property-specific
adjusting rate, which ranged from 0.95 to 1.05 (2019: 0.95 to
1.05). The fair value measurement is positively correlated to the
property-specific adjusting rate.

(e) Property, plant and equipment pledged against
bank loans

At the end of the reporting period, no property, plant and

equipment of the Group are pledged to secure bank loans or bank

facilities granted to the Group.

(f) Deposits for the acquisition of property, plant
and equipment

As at 31st March 2020, the Group paid deposits totalling $548,000

(2019: $1,601,000) to acquire property, plant and equipment.

The remaining amount of the consideration for the acquisition is

included in capital commitments (note 27(a)).

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]

11 Y% - BEKRRE @
(d) BEVEZAARE @)

N

AAEERB(EBHBREED) £ 1358
[AAENE | FIREZZRAABRBDERSE
ZRMEE - BEQOAEHESE2ERNESE
WMTAEREMABB 2 TEEERERZMEE
E

- B-RhE: EERFE-RBARE (R
ARERARBEEREENERME ZRE
AEWE) STEZDRE

- BIHMEE: RS -RWARE (BIREE
EXF-RUBERARME) BXKRER
ERTABEGAMBIEZORE £
TEEGARBERETSBIE 2B ARE
54

- BEZRME: ERAEXATTEEHARE

FFEBZDRE -

RENMEZARBENSEALBYEZTEFEA
BEELRELEE  INSERZZ2EFTEERE
BELAZ  AREHEZERTABEEHA
HEDENMERARE N F095F105(=F
—NF 1 095F1.05) c PREFTEEER Y
RAEE 2 ERIEGRER -

(e) BIBITERER X BER
&=

RERA - AEBETRETNE  BERR

f » UERAEEEE 2 RTERRRITEE -

(f) BEUX- BERKEZITE

R-ZZBZZRF=ZRA=1t—-H XEEEBEY
¥ BMEREREMmMXAFTEEH 5480007 (=
Z—NF 11,6010007T) - BERKEZRT R
FTABAEIE (FfRE27(a)) o



Notes to the Financial Statements
S py S EL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

12 Intangible assets 12 B EE
Brand name Customer list Total
Mg A BEFRE wEt
$'000 F 7Tt $'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t
Cost:
R
At 1st April 2018 7,844 10,958 18,802
RZZE—-NFWMA—H
Exchange adjustments (251) - (251)
RIS
At 31st March 2019 7,593 10,958 18,551

RZBE—-hhE=A=+—H

Accumulated amortisation:

RET#e -

At 1st April 2018 3,922 10,958 14,880
RZZ-N\FHA—H

Exchange adjustments (125) - (125)
[ 5 AR

Charge for the year 379 - 379
AEEHEE

At 31st March 2019 4,176 10,958 15,134

Net book value:

BREFE

At 31st March 2019 3417 = 3417
R=ZF-NF=ZA=1+—H
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

12 Intangible assets (continued) 12 BELEE @)
Pollution
Brand name Customer list  discharge right Total
b A EFEE HohE e
$'000 F T $'000 F 7t $'000 F T $'000 Tt
Cost:
A
At 1st April 2019 7,593 10,958 - 18,551
RZZE-NFMA—H
Addition - - 1,157 1,157
A=
Exchange adjustments (466) - (29) (495)
P 5 %
At 31st March 2020 7,127 10,958 1,128 19,213

REBEBESASTR

Accumulated amortisation:

REt#e

At 1st April 2019 4,176 10,958 - 15,134
R-ZZE-hFWNA—H

Exchange adjustments (272) - (5) (277)
P 5 %

Charge for the year 372 - 174 546
NEFE

At 31st March 2020 4,276 10,958 169 15,403
R-BZEF=F=+—H

Net book value:

ARENFE :

At 31st March 2020 2,851 - 959 3,810
R-ZE-ZEF=H=+—H

The amortisation charges of brand name and pollution mEERBRESECBEERAC SR AREE
discharge right are included in “other operating expenses” and mERz [HinKEEBR I R {THEAIR -
“administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss respectively.
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PA RS AR MY

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

13 Goodwill

13 BE

2020
—g-%f

—_—

$'000 F T

2019
—E-NEF
$000 F it

Cost:
B :

At 1st April
AOEA—H

Exchange adjustments
B 5 A EE

36,751

(2,250)

37,966

(1,215)

At 31st March
R=B=+—8

34,501

36,751

Accumulated impairment losses:

RETRERE -

At 1st April
AEA—H

Exchange adjustments
P 5 %

18,376

(1,126)

18,983

(607)

At 31st March
MR=ZB=+—H

17,250

18,376

Carrying amount:

ARMEE :

At 31st March
MR=B=+—H

17,251

18,375
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

13 Goodwill (Continued)
Impairment tests for cash-generating unit
containing goodwill

Goodwill arose from the acquisition of the entire share capital in
Vitasoy International Singapore Pte. Ltd. (“VIS”).

The recoverable amount of the VIS operation is determined based
on a value-in-use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period (2019: five-year period). Cash
flows beyond the five-year period (2019: five-year period) are
extrapolated using an annual growth rate of 3% (2019: 3%). The
growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate
for the business in which the VIS operation operate.

Key assumptions used for the value-in-use calculation:

13 & @)
BEREBZREELEENZRBERS

2 [& U B8 Vitasoy International Singapore Pte.
Ltd. (TVIS]) 2 2 ERRAMELE -

VISHH 2 U B S 8 T AR S E A A BT B
EeRHEERRERBHREZESN (=
—NEETH) HEEEBHIASKER
BoBEH(CB-NF BEH) UBZRS
HEAEM % (CF-NE  3%) LTREER
¥ o BERETRBVISEBEE RS2 R
FHRRE -

AEEREENRAZEERRAOT ¢

2020 2019
—E-FF —ZE-hF
- Gross margin 34.0% 36.1%
-ERE
- Average annual sales growth rate for the five-year period 9.4% 9.7%
- A FHFHEERE
- Pre-tax discount rate 8.8% 8.8%

- BRBLAT TR R

Management determined the budgeted gross margin and sales
growth rate based on past performance and its expectation
for market development. The discount rate used is pre-tax and
reflects specific risks relating to the relevant segment.

Management believes that any reasonably possible change in the

key assumptions on which the recoverable amount is based would
not cause the carrying amount to exceed its recoverable amount.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]
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PA RS AR MY

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

14 Subsidiaries

The following list contains the particulars of the subsidiaries of
the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise

stated.

All of these are controlled subsidiaries as defined under note 1(d)
and have been consolidated into the Group’s financial statements.

14 BT
TREEAEBENB AT ZHEBE - RBR AT
O REBFE 2R ENTAZER -

LE B8 A~ B39 B PIEE 1(d) PR R E 2 I FIM B
DR WEAKEZHBHRRAGETE

Place of Proportion of
incorporation/ ownership interest
establishment and Particulars of issued BERERLE
operation and paid-up capital  held by the held by a Principal
Name of company HEMRL BRTRAR Company subsidiary activities
ARERE RIREE S BAHE AOEEE KBLAAEE FEER
% %
Vitasoy USA Inc. United States of 100 shares - 100 Sale of soya
America 100 fR iR 12 related products
ENEERE HETEER
Vitasoy North America Inc. Canada 1,000 shares 100 - Sale of soya
nex 1,000 iR i1 related products
HEDRER
Shenzhen Vitasoy (Guang Ming) Foods and The PRC RMB80,000,000 85 - Manufacture and
Beverage Company Limited (note (i) FE] AR sale of beverages
Ty CEBR) RRERERAR (HEE () 80,000,000 7 EEREERR
Vitasoy (Dongguan) Company Limited ThePRC  RMB335,000,000 - 85  Manufacture and
(note (ii)) a8 AR sale of beverages
#fbh GR%) BRAR (FEE (i) 335,000,000 7T EEREENR
Vitasoy (Foshan) Company Limited (note (iii)) ThePRC  RMB200,000,000 - 85  Manufacture and
A (L) AR (MIEE (iii) HE AR sale of beverages
200,000,000 7t EEREENRR
Vitasoy (Shanghai) Company Limited The PRC HK$219,461,176 - 100  Manufacture and
(note (iv)) H B sale of beverages
#4in (L£8) ARAF (M (v) 219,461,176 ¢ EEREESRR
Vitasoy (Wuhan) Company Limited (note (v)) ThePRC  RMB170,000,000 - 100  Manufacture and
#oh (R0F) AR (HEE (V) ey AR sale of beverages
170,000,000 ¢ EEREENM
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Notes to the Financial Statements
S py S EL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

14 Subsidiaries (Continued)

14

Vi NGIRE )

Place of Proportion of
incorporation/ ownership interest
establishment and Particulars of issued REEERLE
operation  and paid-up capital held by the held by a Principal
Name of company HEMmARL BRTRAR Company subsidiary activities
ARER RIREE S BAF#E AQABE HWEBLARAEE FEER
% %

Vitasoy Company Limited (note (vi)) The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100  Sales/distribution
HAERA R (BEE (vi) FE ARY of beverages/food
1,000,000 7t and headquarter
management
service
(Mainland China)
HE/PHERE/
BEmRANERE
R (REIAH)
Vitasoy Australia Products Pty. Ltd. (“VAP”) Australia V class shares: - 51  Manufacture and
(TVAP]) M A$8,925,000 sale of beverages
N class shares: EEREERR

A$8,575,000

VER :

8,925,000 8 7

NERK

8,575,000 18 7
Vitasoja (Macau) Limitada Macau MOP100,000 100 - Distribution of
#fih ORM) BRAE ®FY RPI™E 100,000 T beverages
gak:<
Produtos De Soja Hong Kong (Macau) Macau MOP10,000 - 100 Dormant
Limitada ®F RPI% 10,000 7T TEe¥

EESH (RF) BRAF

Vitaland Services Limited Hong Kong 300,000 shares 100 - Operation of
Hf R RBEERD A 5B 300,000 B2 %43 tuck shops and
concessions
TEBRNRIR
PREN
Hong Kong Gourmet Limited Hong Kong 2shares - 100 Provision of
EBERERLT &b 2R catering services
RUEEHRE
The Hong Kong Soya Bean Products Company, Hong Kong 2 shares 100 - Property
Limited &8 2B investment
EEERBRAHE MERE

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]



Notes to the Financial Statements

PA RS AR MY

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

14 Subsidiaries (Continued)

14 MEB AT @)

Place of Proportion of
incorporation/ ownership interest
establishment and Particulars of issued REEERLE
operation  and paid-up capital  held by the held by a Principal
Name of company HEMmARL BRTRAR Company subsidiary activities
ARER BAREE S BAF#E AQABE HWEBLARAEE FEER
% %
Vitasoy (China) Holdings Limited Hong Kong 1share 100 - Investment holding
#An (hE) ERERAF &8 1RR D REER
Vitasoy Investment Holdings Limited Hong Kong 1share 100 - Investment holding
EPREEREBRATE &8 1RR %D REE
Vita International Holdings Limited Hong Kong 2shares 100 - Investment holding
EHEREEERA i 2B REE

Vitasoy International Investment Limited Hong Kong 1share 100 - Investment holding
EPERRERRAR &8 1RR % REER
Vitasoy (China) Investments Company Limited Hong Kong 2shares 100 - Investment holding
bl (PRl REBRAR BB 2B REER
Vitasoy Holdings (Malta) Limited Malta Ordinary shares: - 100  Sales of beverages
St HK$20,257 HERM

Deferred share:

HK$7

LRk B8

20,257 7t

EERD BB
Vitasoy Investment (Singapore) Pte. Limited Singapore $$10,000 - 100 Investment holding
EIE 10,0003 7 REER
Vitasoy International Singapore Pte. Ltd. (‘VIS”) Singapore $$79,800,000 - 100  Manufacture and
(Tvis]) EiipIE 79,800,000 3% 7t sale of soya related
products
EEREE
THER
Vitasoy Distributors (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. Singapore $$2,500,000 100 - Dormant
G 2,500,000 70 TEEx

191
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Notes to the Financial Statements
S py S EL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

14 Subsidiaries (Continued)

Notes:

(i

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

Shenzhen Vitasoy (Guang Ming) Foods and Beverage Company Limited
(“Shenzhen Vitasoy”) is a sino-foreign equity joint venture established
inthe PRC and is to be operated up to 2049.

Vitasoy (Dongguan) Company Limited (“Vitasoy Dongguan”) is a
sino-foreign equity joint venture established in the PRC and is to be
operated up to 2067. On 1st January 2019, the Group disposed of 15%
equity interest in Vitasoy Dongguan, decreasing the Group’s equity
interest in Vitasoy Dongguan from 100% to 85% (see note 29).

Vitasoy (Foshan) Company Limited (“Vitasoy Foshan”) is a sino-foreign
equity joint venture established in the PRC and is to be operated up to
2049.

Vitasoy (Shanghai) Company Limited is a wholly foreign owned
subsidiary established in the PRC and is to be operated up to 2045.

Vitasoy (Wuhan) Company Limited (“Vitasoy Wuhan”) is a wholly
foreign owned subsidiary established in the PRC and is to be operated
up to 2064.

Vitasoy Company Limited is a wholly foreign owned subsidiary
established in the PRC and is to be operated up to 2070.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]

14

FieE

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

Vi NGIRE )

RYIAEM (E8) BRRECEIARAR (DRI
1) BRFBERIIZFNEGEGEDNT  KEHE
ZEMAFIE -

M (Rx) BRAF ([REEMP]) BRF
BRI 2HIIEESERT  KEHE_TRtF
Lt -RZZB-—NF—A—B FEBHERZH#M
1315% 2 RARE R - AREMMN R HE A ) 2 R AR
7 100% 52 % 85% (R 29) °

M (FRl) BRAT ([EILAEMTE]) BRHE
BRI ZzHNEEGE AR KEHE_ZMAFLE -
#fgs (£)) BRABDA/NPERY 22 INEME
NE KEHME_TONRFLE -

# (ROF) BRAT ([EUEEMT]) BRHE

B ZZNENBRE  KEME_TARIFLE -

HEMEMARARNBRPBERL 22N ERB AT -
Rez—_2LZTFHIE -



Notes to the Financial Statements

PA RS AR MY

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

14 Subsidiaries (Continued)

The following table lists out the information relating to Shenzhen
Vitasoy, Vitasoy Foshan, VAP and Vitasoy Dongguan, the
subsidiaries of the Group which have material non-controlling
interests (“NCI”). The summarised financial information presented

14 MEB AT @)

below represents the amounts before any inter-company

elimination.

TREJEEEEEAFERER ([FERE
@) ZANEEME A BRI MEAMYS - F L4t
75~ VAP RREHAMITI 2B - TX 25287
BRI ERFEREA QR BMEAN 25

Shenzhen Vitasoy Vitasoy Foshan Vitasoy Dongguan
RN AN b)) REEMID
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
b33 “E-hE b33 “E-hE b33 “E-hE b 2:3 “E-hE
(Note) (Note) (Note) (Note)
(Bi3E) (Bi3E) (Bi3E) (Bf3E)
$000 ¥t $000 F 1t $000 ¥t $000 F 1t $000 ¥t $000 F 1t $000 ¥t $000 Tt
NCl percentage 15% 15% 15% 15% 49% 49% 15% 15%
FEREREDL
Current assets 131,157 187,935 270,429 302,782 186,118 185,624 222,744 61,830
nBERE
Non-current assets 150,739 171,904 505,854 563819 203,968 244126 763833 186,996
FRBEE
Current liabilities (46,670) (71,692) (213,194) (144,167) (132,305) (137,294) (305,036) (292)
nEEE
Non-current liabilities (4,4606) (911) (22,721) (116,425) (8,214) (11,605) (329,999) -
FRBaE
Net assets 230,760 287,236 540,368 606,009 249,567 280,851 351,542 248534
FEE
Carrying amount of NCI 34,376 41803 80,470 87478 122,137 137,587 52,731 37,280
FERER 2 RAE
Revenue 526,490 605,419 959,895 1,340,126 509,455 524,558 - -
KA
Profit/(loss) for the year 39,463 59,087 85,006 191,459 26,295 38,979 (10,678) (3,568)
rEERR/ (BB)
Total comprehensive income 39,463 59,087 85,006 191,459 28,232 40,066 (10,678) (3,568)
Exilenetl
Profit/(loss) allocated to NCI 6,963 7,580 15,589 25,294 12,763 19,069 (1,602) (155)
PEEFERES 2B/ (F8)
Dividend paid to NCI 11,784 7,568 16,844 9,489 9,031 9,666 - -
AFERERZTERE
Cash flows generated from/(used in)
operating activities 88,842 81,348 147,799 159,061 13,861 45,163 43491 (27,506)
gEBmE/ (R Reng
Cash flows used in investing activities (12,300) (27,932 (52,512) (98,519) (12,251) (31,412 (586,962) (187.418)
RETBRAEERZ
Cash flows (used in)/generated from
financing activities (76,176) (49,900) (95,469) (63,953) (2,176) (2,270) 619,589 249,802

HEES (i) (HERSHE
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Notes to the Financial Statements
S py S EL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

14 Subsidiaries (Continued)
Note:

The subsidiaries have initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balance at 1st April 2019 to
recognise additional right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of $3,148,000 and
$3,260,000 respectively relating to lease which were previously classified
as operating leases under HKAS 17 under this approach, the comparative
information is not restated.

15 Interest in joint venture

Details of the Group’s interest in the joint venture, which is
accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated
financial statements, are as follows:

14 MEB AT @)

MiEE

AEBE RALETBEERER <<§,%Eﬁ§$&¢ #ER| >>
BLOHERABRR-_ZS-NFENA—B2BHI&EH
BITERER L AIIRIE (BB EFHER) 5 175)%“*53%%«%#&
E-HEMEZEIMEAEERES 148000 tRAEAE
3,260,000 7¢ » RIEL T A » LEBE R ARET ©

15 REE QR zEHE
AEERAEAT2ME (RRBRDERGS
MBHEANR) BB

Proportion of ownership interest

BAERERLL R
Place of Particular of Group's
Form of incorporation issued and effective

Name of joint business and business  paid-up capital interest  Held by the Held by a Principal

venture structure AMRIE BERIRAZR FE@2 Company subsidiary activity

RENAEE EBEBRES B RAFE ERER ARREE  MELARE TEER

% % %

Vitasoy - URC, Incorporated  The Republic of Registered 50 - 50 Sale of
Inc. (“VUR") MM thePhilippines  capital of PHP beverages
(TVUR]) (“the Philippines”) 842,000,000 (note)

FEBHANE HEMRA HEHRM
([3EEE ) 842,000,000t % (i)
Note: VUR was established by the Company with a major branded consumer MizE : VORHAARE -—RFFETEREEBRRER

food and beverage company in the Philippines, the other investor to
this joint venture, for sales of the Group’s plant-based beverages in the
Philippines. VUR is mainly engaged in the sale of beverages.

VUR, the only joint venture in which the Group participates, is

an unlisted corporate entity whose quoted market price is not
available.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]

D] (%u.:. DRAZE—BREE) B RS
REHELAEBLUENES HEZRME - VUREE
HEERMBEE -

VUR(ZIK?,EIHE—%EEZQE*’ 8) -k L™



Notes to the Financial Statements
S py S EL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

15 Interest in joint venture (Continued)

Summarised financial information of VUR and a reconciliation to

15 REE QT ZER @)
VURZ BB SR BER Ra b BRE 2 RAE

the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements, are ZHRIFENT
disclosed below:
2020 2019
S5 —E-NE
$'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t
Gross amounts of VUR’s
VUR Z #4258
Current assets 76,372 101,061
REBEE
Non-current assets 125,057 79,713
FRBEE
Current liabilities (96,415) (62,196)
=R
Non-current liabilities (87,572) (67,275)
FRBEE
Equity 17,442 51,303
P
Included in the above assets and liabilities:
B2t ALEEREE
Cash and cash equivalents 25,136 66,889
ReERBEELEEER
Non-current financial liabilities (excluding trade and other payables) (87,572) (67,275)
FREETREE (TEEEMERRREMERNT)
Revenue 41,936 46,066
A
Loss from continuing operations (34,866) (38,472)
FEREEE
Reconciled to the Group’s interest in VUR
BEARE MM VUR 2 B R
Gross amounts of VUR'’s net assets 17,442 51,303
VURZ REERE
Group effective interest 50% 50%
TEEERER
Group’s share of VUR’s net assets 8,721 25,652
REBE L VURFEE
Group’s share of shareholders’ loan (note) 53,305 33,638
TEBEMEBRRER (M)
Carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements 62,026 59,290

REBER 2 IREE
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S py S EL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

15 Interest in joint venture (continued)
Note:

The loan to joint venture is unsecured, interest bearing at 4.75% per annum
and is expected to be repayable after one year from the end of the respective
reporting period. Further details on the loan to joint venture are set out in
note 28(a)(iv).

16 Inventories
(a) Inventoriesin the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise:

15 REE QT ZER @)

MiEE

BEEARMEHIERREER  BEFA475%5E 0 X
EHMANSERABH —FREE QEEQARRGHZE

2 — B BRI 28(a)(iv) ©

16 &
(a) #&E

BBRRERP2FERSE

2020 2019

—B-EF =F-NF

$'000 F 7T $'000 F 7T

Raw materials 344,309 376,283
=A%

Finished goods 249,250 372,001
B m

593,559 748,284

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories

(b) ERBEEARIBA/FI2FES

recognised as an expense and included in profit oMW :
or loss is as follows:
2020 2019
—EIERF —E-NF
$'000 F T $000 T T
Carrying amounts of inventories sold 3,380,522 3,465,937
EEFEZREE
Write down of inventories 9,056 31,038
WRFE
3,389,578 3,496,975

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]
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S py S EL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

17 Trade and other receivables

17 EWERFKRHE

b & WK

2020 2019
i —E-hF
$'000 F 7T $'000 F 7T
Trade debtors and bills receivable, net of loss allowance 707,687 716,425
FEWERA R BTG - HIBRE B RAE
Other debtors, deposits and prepayments 300,683 267,583
Hi KR - RERFANTIE
Derivative financial instruments 501 =
TSI A
1,008,871 984,008

The amount of the Group’s other debtors, deposits and
prepayments expected to be recovered or charged as expense
after more than one year is $34,648,000 (2019: $40,589,000).
All of the other trade and other receivables are expected to be
recovered or recognised as expense within one year.

(a) Ageinganalysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade
debtors and bills receivable (which are included in trade and other
receivables), based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance,
is as follows:

FEEFHNBE - FREBFHNBEAMIZE
WK ~ & RFANFRIRS 34,648,0007T (=
T — L% 1 40,589,0007T)  Fir B H B AR X
REMEBUHRERR - FRAREREZR/MS -

(a) HRiRD 4T

REHRA - BURAR KRR (ERERER
R E AN RREBAREHRER
BEZREANAT -

2020 2019

b et 222 —E-hEF

$’000 7t $'000 F 7t

Within three months 698,888 708,851

=EAR

Three to six months 7,897 7,416
=ZX~EA

Over six months 902 158
AEAMLE

707,687 716,425

Trade debtors and bills receivable are generally due within one
to three months from the date of billing. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances. Further details on the Group’s
credit policy and credit risk arising from trade debtors and bills
receivable are set out in note 26(a).

YRR ERRE RN BEZAHET—E=

ERREE - REBEWERLSEEHITEEMIR
Hm o BEAKEEEBRK BEBIRR R EW
EEMELECZEERR 2E—SHBHRHE
26(a) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements
S py S EL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

18 Cash and bank deposits
(a) Cash and bank deposits comprise:

18 RERBITER
(a) RERBITEFREIE

2020 2019
= —
$'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t

Cash at bank and in hand 776,855 529,918
RITEEREFRSE
Bank deposits maturing within three months when placed 70,954 474,620
FRER=(EA A ZRITEX
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated cash flow statement 847,809 1,004,538
FERERERAZRAERAELEEER
Bank deposits maturing after three months 466 494
FRHBB=EA ZRITEX
Cash and bank deposits in the consolidated statement

of financial position 848,275 1,005,032

e BN RN ZRERRITER

At 31st March 2020, certain Renminbi and United States dollars
(2019: Renminbi) bank balances totalling $81,729,000 (2019:
$51,331,000) were designated as a hedge against the foreign
currency risk on future purchase of raw materials and machineries.
The loss on re-translation of these bank balances at the exchange
rate ruling at the end of the reporting period was included in other
comprehensive income.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]

NoB-EF=ZA=+—H BTUARERE
T B (ZE—IF  UARBE) 2R1T48
F&$81,729,000 T (=Z— A %F : 51,331,000
7T) HIEEREE A BRBE R R #ES 25
EREE - ZEHRACERENREZERTET
ZEBEFARMEERE o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

18 Cash and bank deposits (Continued) 18 BERBITHER @)
(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b) BRBIANEFERKLEEKFIEES
generated from operations: ZHER
2020 2019
—EBCEF —E-NEF
(Note)
(Ft&E)
Note HfizF $'000 F 7t $'000 F it

Profit before taxation 679,068 955,838
FRE AR A
Adjustments for:
P
- Share of losses of joint venture 17,433 19,236
- BhEE AREE
- Depreciation of right-of-use assets 5(d) 90,998 -
-EREEEZTE
- Depreciation of investment properties 5(d) 126 460
-REVEZINE
- Depreciation of other property, plant and equipment 5(d) 310,917 260,317
-Ht¥% MERREBZITE
- Amortisation of interests in leasehold land held for

own use under operating leases 5(d) - 3,488
- BEKEHEREIEFRERZHE T s 2 #H
- Amortisation of intangible assets 5(d) 546 379
-BEEE M
- (Reversal)/recognition of impairment losses on

property, plant and equipment 5(d) (2,409) 2,015
- (BE) HEAVE  BERRMEZRHEESSE
- Interest on bank loans 5(a) 2,333 2,065
-RITERZAE
- Interest on lease liabilities 5(a) 8,599 21
-HEaEZRE
- Interest income from bank deposits 4 (10,919) (13,581)
- RITERZFNEUWA
- Interest income from loan to joint venture 4 (1,644) (471)

-AEEARAEHERZFERA
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

18 Cash and bank deposits (continued)
(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash
generated from operations: (Continued)

18 BERIIRITER @)
(b) BRBANEANELEX£ERBRESE
ZEER  (58)

2020 2019
i Sanp <5 —E-NEF
(Note)
(Fft&E)
Note HfizF $'000 F 7t $000 F 7T

- Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 5(c) 3,689 3,341
- HEYX - BERREBZEEFHE
- Net gain on forward exchange contracts not

designated as hedging instruments 5(d) - (101)
-EEEREHPTIAZERPMNESHN 2 FWE
- Equity settled share-based payment expenses 5(b) 12,686 13,521
- IR RARER 2EF
- Foreign exchange loss 722 256
- EREE
Changes in working capital:
EEESRE !
- Decrease/(increase) in inventories 110,844 (83,414)
-FERD (5)
- Increase in trade and other receivables (64,653) (57,722)
- FEWBR TR I HL At FE U SR 45 A
- Increase in trade and other payables 270,205 358,832
- B RRA R H AL A XI5 A0
- Increase in employee retirement benefit liabilities 166 416
- BERAREREEEM
Cash generated from operations 1,428,707 1,464,896

HEXBRERE

Note:

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective
approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1st April 2019 to recognise
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities relating to leases which were
previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. Previously,
cash payments under operating leases made by the Group as a lessee of
$156,324,000 were classified as operating activities in the consolidated cash
flow statement. Under HKFRS 16, except for short-term lease payments,
payments for leases of low value assets and variable lease payments not
included in the measurement of lease liabilities, all other rentals paid on
leases are now split into capital element and interest element (see note 18(c))
and classified as financing cash outflows. Under the modified retrospective
approach, the comparative information is not restated. Further details on the
impact of the transition to HKFRS 16 are set out in note 1(c).

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]

MfRE:

FEBCRAKBITBYEERER (BBUBREER)
BIHERABNR-ZE-—NAFNA— B 2HWEEER - LR
HEEAMRB(EBETEN F1U7N 0 BAKEHEZH
BENBEzEAREEREEAE - UE  AEE (FRE
BA) R 2 QEHEERT R E T 156,324,000 T#
TEAGERENBRZLLETED - RE(FBUBRSE
ER) E 165 KEBHENRIL  BEEEEREZN
RRTSEEMREESABESRZFHE - AARME
ECNESREIFARATESHBAIRFEEND (FEBEHRNK
F18(c) AN F|ARER SR - REKALEITHNEY
% KBRERARED - BEAEE (FBUBHREER)
5B 1652 B 2 E—SHBERMIE 1(c)



Notes to the Financial Statements
S py S EL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

18 Cash and bank deposits (Continued) 18 BERBITHER @)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from () MEITBEEEEYHIER
financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from TRFVNAEERETHELE2EBEY  EF
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. BERSRIESEH METBHTEELEZERE
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which EHREESREGNBARRREREBRAEBZ
cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the GERERERATEARETBZRERE °
Group’s consolidated cash flow statement as cash flows from

financing activities.

Bank loans Lease liabilities Total
BITER HESE #st
(Note 20) (Note 21)
(FzE 20) (P 21)
$'000 F T $'000 F it $'000 F 7T
At 31st March 2019 44,508 - 44,508
R-—B-h#=A=+-8
Impact on initial application of HKFRS 16
(Note) - 259,259 259,259
BREA(EBUBIREER) F165 22
(PyEE)
At 1st April 2019 44,508 259,259 303,767
R-ZZ-AFHNA—H
| Changesfrom financing cash flows:
RMERSTREHE :
Proceeds from new bank loans 279,981 - 279,981
FRIRITERRERE
Repayment of bank loans (75,134) - (75,134)
BEERTER
Capital element of lease rentals paid - (81,947) (81,947)
ENHEEHE 2 EREH
Interest paid (2,333) - (2,333)
ENFS
Interest element of lease rentals paid - (8,599) (8,599)
ENHEEHEEZREBHG
Total changes from financing cash flows 202,514 (90,546) 111,968
BMERSRELBEH
 Exchange adjustments 7931) (2239) (10,170)
XA
Other changes:
Hitt#g :
Increase in lease liabilities from entering into
new leases during the period - 69,982 69,982
HARAR LHEE 2 HESEIEM
Decrease in lease liabilities from lease
modification - (1,481) (1,481)
REHEEBT2HEEERD
Finance costs (note 5(a)) 2,333 8,599 10,932
RERA (I 5(a))
At 31st March 2020 241,424 243,574 484,998

RZB-EF=ZA=+—H
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18 Cash and bank deposits (continued) 18 BERBITHER @)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (c) METBEEEEHER @
financing activities (Continued)

Note: MisE

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective AEBEDHFARKETEWEBERER (BEAMBEHREER)
approach and adjusted the opening balance at 1st April 2019 to recognise F1I6HRAZEN_Z—hFHA—BzB4&Es%  UER
lease liabilities relating to leases which were previously classified as operating HERRB(ERETERN F17R I EALEHEZH

lease under HKAS 17. See notes 1(c) and 18(b). EEEZHEEE - RMEE 1(c) & 18(b) °
Bank loans Lease liabilities Total
RITER HEEE Fay
(Note 20) (Note 21)
(FfF&E 20) (FfE 21)
$'000 F 7T $'000 F 7t $’000 Tt
At 1st April 2018 27,085 921 28,006

R-BE-NEWMA—H

Changes from financing cash flows:
RMERERERE .
Proceeds from new bank loans 19,977 = 19,977
BIRITERIERIEA
Capital element of finance lease rentals paid - (871) (871)
ENREREREZERTH
Interest paid (2,065) - (2,065)
ENFE
Interest element of finance lease rentals paid - (21) (21)
S MEREREE RS 5
Total changes from financing cash flows 17,912 (892) 17,020
RERERESEEE

Exchangeadjustments | (2,554 00 (2,604)
EHAE
Other changes:
Hit 25 :
Finance costs (note 5(a)) 2,065 21 2,086
& A (FffEE 5(a))
At 31st March 2019 44,508 - 44,508
R=ZZB-NAF=B=+—H
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18 Cash and bank deposits (Continued) 18 BERBITHER @)
(d) Total cash outflow for leases (d) HERSARHHALE
Amounts included in the consolidated cash flow statement for MEEFAGEREERERZREGEUTIE
leases comprise the following: B
2020 2019
—B-EF =F-NF
(Note)
(FfF3E)
$'000 F 7t $'000 F 7T
Within operating cash flows 89,385 193,858
KEHSREN
Within investing cash flows - 116,995
REBSRENRN
Within financing cash flows 90,546 892
MERSRERN
179,931 311,745
Note: st

As explained in the note to note 18(b), the adoption of HKFRS 16 introduces SMANKTEE 18(b) Z MisTfERE - MM (T BB EAEL]) 5
a change in classification of cash flows of certain rentals paid on leases. The 16HEIAEBETHEEIHEZHERES EED - %

comparative amounts have not been restated. ZHBREHEAFES -
These amounts relate to the following: ZEFEEL T IE B 18R
2020 2019
—B-EF -
$'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t
Lease rentals paid 179,931 194,750
2fEEES
Purchase of leasehold property - 116,995
BEHEEWHE
179,931 311,745
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19 Trade and other payables 19 BHERARREMENK
2020 2019
—B-EF =F-NF
$'000 F T $000 Ft
Trade creditors and bills payable 555,000 660,898
EAERRRESERE
Accrued expenses and other payables 1,299,499 1,063,278
EstERAREMEMAR
Receipts in advance from customers 503,340 489,225
FEWE P RIE
2,357,839 2,213,401

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled
within one year, except for customer deposits amounting to
$23,957,000 (2019: $22,171,000) which are expected to be
settled after more than one year.

AEERBAERNRRRAEMENSKER
—FREE 123957000 (ZF—HLEF:
22,171,0007T) 2B FREFEHNBBE —F&
'z -

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade REIRHE » ENERARENEZEERBZZELHZE

204

creditors and bills payable, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

BT

2020 2019

—ECEF —E-NEF

$'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t

Within three months 553,029 659,796

=EARX

Three to six months 1,628 687
=Z=X@EA

Over six months 343 415
ANMEA ML

555,000 660,898

The Group’s general payment terms are one to two months from
the invoice date.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]
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by charges over property, plant and equipment (note 11(e)).

19 Trade and other payables (continued) 19 BREREMRREMEAR @&
Movements in receipts in advance from customers AREFF IEZ@EJJ

2020 2019
—EEF —E-hEF
$'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t

Balance at 1st April 489,225 363,442
ROOA— B 248k
Exchange adjustments (33,000) (23,370)
[ 5 EE
Decrease in receipts in advance from customers as a result of

recognising revenue during the year that was included in the

receipts in advance from customers at the beginning of the period (468,652) (338,310)
HERBEZABRA (B ABOZBAREFRERN) ERAREFRIE

W
Increase in receipts in advance from customers as a result of receiving

forward sales deposits during the year 4,133,295 4,535,518
REAN BRI SRS EHFRNE FRIEE M
Decrease in receipts in advance from customers as a result of

recognising revenue during the year that was included in the

forward sales deposits received during the year (3,617,528) (4,048,055)
AERNBEABRA (BEFAFRARRZESEERESR) ERRKREF

RIER A
Balance at 31st March 503,340 489,225
R=ZA=+—HZ&EER

20 Bank loans 20 iﬁﬁﬁfﬁ
At 31st March 2020, the bank loans were repayable as follows: R-EBE-_FEFE=A=+—8  RITEFENRTH
HARMEE :

2020 2019
== —E—NnE
$°000 F 7t $'000 F 7t

Within one year or on demand 241,424 44,508
—FRARRER
As of the end of the reporting period, no bank loans were secured RERB » MERITEFLYE  BERREE

RERER (M 12e) -
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20 Bank loans (continued)

Certain of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the
fulfilment of covenants relating to certain financial ratios, as
are commonly found in lending arrangements with financial
institutions. If the Group were to breach the covenants, the drawn
down facilities would become payable on demand. The Group
regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants. Further
details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in
note 26(b). As at 31st March 2020 and 2019, none of the covenants
relating to the drawn down facilities had been breached.

21 Lease liabilities

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of
the Group’s lease liabilities at the end of the current and previous
reporting periods and at the date of transition to HKFRS 16:

20 S|RITER @)
AEEETRTEEANSHE THMHELLEEEA
ZEE S WEBREBITIERZEEZER
RE - MEAEEERBEAZY  AAKRERE
BORIZEEE ASEEHEREETZE
ZENER - EEAEEEERBESAKR 2 #E
—SHEHAME26b) c RCB-EER =B
—NE=A=+—08 FEEHEERTAEER
REEEZHH% -

21 HEAE
TREIWAEEZHEESERENRBEIERA
FRBEZ(EBYBBRELEL) F16EERZ
BT SR :

31st March 2020 1st April 2019 31st March 2019
“B-EFZA=1-H “E2-hEMA-A —E-NE=R=1-H
Present Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments payments payments
REHE RERE RIEHE REHE REHE REHE
AHZRE IR8E (RBE 588 (ReBE 5%
(Note) (Note) (Note) (Note)
(M5 (&) (i) (BifE)
$'000 ¥t $'000 ¢ $000 Tt $000 Tt $000 Tt $000 Tt
Within one year 89,957 91,337 71,627 79,055 - -
s 1
After 1year but within 2 years 67,620 70,993 65,443 70,557 - -
—FEERER
After 2 years but within 5 years 79,004 87,433 112,761 118,873 - -
MERBRER
After 5years 6,993 19,052 9,428 20,799 - -
LE#
o 153617 177478 187632 20229 - -
243574 268,815 259,259 289,284 - -
Less: Total future interest expenses (25,241) (30,025) -
B RRFISERLE
Present value of lease liabilities 243574 259,259 -

HERERE
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21 Lease liabilities (continued)
Note:

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective
approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1st April 2019 to recognise
lease liabilities relating to leases which were previously classified as operating
leases under HKAS 17. These liabilities have been aggregated with the
brought forward balances relating to leases previously classified as finance
leases. Comparative information as at 31st March 2019 has not been restated
and relates solely to leases previously classified as finance leases. Further
details on the impact of the transition to HKFRS 16 are set out in note 1(c).

22 Employee retirement benefits

The Group operates and participates in a number of defined
contribution and defined benefit retirement plans in and outside
Hong Kong.

(a) Defined contribution retirement plans

(i)  The Group operates a defined contribution retirement plan,
Vitasoy International Holdings Limited Staff Provident
Fund, which is available for all eligible staff employed by the
Group in Hong Kong and Macau before 1st August 2000.
The plan is funded by contributions from employees and the
Group, both of which contribute sums representing 5% -
7.5% of basic salaries. Forfeited contributions are credited
to members’ accounts in accordance with the rules of the
plan. The plan is administered by trustees with the assets
held separately from those of the Group. The employees
are entitled to 100% of the employer’s contributions after
ten completed membership years, or at an increasing scale
of between 50% to 90% after completion of five to nine
membership years.

Staff employed by the Group in Hong Kong not joining
the defined contribution retirement plan are required to
join the Group’s Mandatory Provident Fund scheme (“the
MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contributionretirementplanadministeredbyanindependent
corporate trustee. Under the MPF scheme, the Group and
the employees are each required to make contributions to
the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to
a cap of monthly relevant income of $30,000. Contributions
to the MPF scheme vest immediately.

21 HESE mw

MiEE

FEBCRAKETBYEERER (FBUKRSER)
BI6HRARN-Z—NFOA— B 2HDEEER - UER
HEEMRBE(EBETEN F1U7R 0 BAKEHE A
BEHRAEESE ZEaECHARLAD BARER
BECHERNGEBREHERE - RoZE-NAF=A=1t—H
ZHBERNAREY  AERANSEARMEHEZHEE
1R - FRBEZE(EBUBREL) F16h2HE2
- S EHEENMEE 1) -

22 EEERKER
AEBEEBREBUIIMERIRZMZER
EHRAK A ERFENRETE -

(a) REMFERNKETE

(i) AEBRAMER-ZZZHFENR-—BZAH
EERERRMZBASEEAERETR
N —RRERFORAETE (HEMNEREE
BRARABERES) - ZEtEZETRA
BERAEEZHN - BHUARESEDE
FZ5%E7.5% RO REBFTE 2R
BIBAGTBINE 2fRF - ETEIRHER
AEE FRBEETEASEZEEDH
R E2HEFERTFE BETESR
REHEEHER MBEFBERTENFA
EHEZEREMFTBOLLARS0%ELEE
90% °

Z RN A E WIS 0 R E HRGR ARG
LEBET  LAREEE (BHMELE
EETEURAG)) 2 MAEE 2RI EEE
g (MastrEestall) - mettEs
AR —BREHRFRAEE - ABLE
EETAEE REBHEIEESTE
FEEREESBARESREEA (B
WA z8A EBR%A30,0007T) 2 5%@EtE
R e @AM AR B A 2 HKE
R ERE
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22 Employee retirement benefits (continued)

(a)

(ii)

(iii)

Defined contribution retirement plans
(Continued)

Employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of the
central pension scheme operated by the PRC government.
The Group is required to contribute a certain percentage
of employees’ remuneration to the central pension scheme
to fund the benefits. The only obligation for the Group with
respect to the central pension scheme is the associated
required contribution under the central pension scheme.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

For employees in Australia, contributions are made by the
Groupto aregistered superannuationfund for its employees,
at 9.5% of the employees’ salaries. The assets of the scheme
are held separately by an independent administered fund.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

(b) Defined benefit retirement plans
At 31st March 2020, the Group recognised employee retirement
benefit liabilities in respect of the following employee retirement

22 EERKERN @)

(a)

(ii)

(iii)

S

(b)

REMHRFRKETE @)

TEMB AR ZEEHIRPEBARYZ
PREARETEZKRE - AEEARES
e zETEI LB P RBAETTEH
R REANEHRES - AREFHREA
T EIFFRABT 2 E—BER D REA
ERTEMEL AT 2 BB o BIEH &I
Z RN ER S o

BNEESEH AKEEREEHEZ
9.5% B —AREEEMR 2EMRAES
MR FEEEHBUEE2ES DB
B o BT EXN 2 HRNEERE

REBAMEMNGE
Z_ZEF=ZA=1+—H T*EERTIEE

RAENERRERAENAS

benefits:
2020 2019
i —E-hF
$'000 Tt $000 Ft
Employee retirement benefit liabilities
EEENKENERE
- retirement gratuities (note 22(c)(i)) 27,878 18,682
Bk (BFEE22(0)())
- long service payments (note 22(d)) 6,435 3,942
REIBRS S (BiEE22(d))
34,313 22,624
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22 Employee retirement benefits (continued)
(c) Retirement gratuities

Employees of the Group in Hong Kong and Macau, who have
completed a prescribed minimum period of service and joined the
Group before a specific date, are entitled to retirement gratuities
upon retirement age. The gratuity is based on the employee’s last
month’s salary and the number of years of service.

A funded defined benefit retirement plan, Vitasoy International
Holdings Limited Defined Benefit Scheme (“the Plan”), was
established for the retirement gratuities. The Plan is administered
by an independent corporate trustee, with assets held separately
from those of the Group. The Plan is funded by contributions
from the Group in accordance with an independent actuary’s
recommendation.

The latest actuarial valuation of the Plan was at 31st March
2020 and was prepared by independent professionally qualified
actuaries at Willis Towers Watson, using the projected unit credit
method. The valuation indicates that the Group’s obligation under
this defined benefit retirement plan is 65% (2019: 77%) covered
by the plan assets held by the trustee.

(i)  The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position are as follows:

22 EERKERN @)

(c) BIKE

REEEEBRAMNZ EEEREESET B
e T BIEHR RN EE B8 2 AT A KER -
BB RERRKEREEIERS - EETE
SREFEAHRBBELTHE o

REBEDHRKE R —HEBRERFRKETE-
HDEREEERARRERMNTE ([Z3
21) - ZETEHBEEEEAEE HEEH
FEBZEEDRER - et BHARERREE
NREEEZZRELAR

ZE BB BEGEIR-ZE-2F=A
=+ -BHHERER B UEXSERBEMER
RESEMFEERET AREMAERREARER
BRSRERNRAT B ABIT2EEED 65%
NE 1 77%) RIEXAFAZFHEER

(==F—

=9

() RESHBRRREIT ZSEOT -

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NEF
$'000 F 7T $'000 F 7T
Present value of wholly funded obligations 79,797 80,091
TEHEPEEZRE
Fair value of plan assets (51,919) (61,409)
AEEEZAAE
Employee retirement benefit liabilities 27,878 18,682

BERKENEE

A portion of the above liabilities is expected to be settled after
more than one year. However, it is not practicable to segregate
this amount from the amounts payable in the next twelve months,
as the retirement benefit entitled by scheme members and future
contributions to the plan will also depend on staff turnover and
future changes in actuarial assumptions. The Group expects to
pay $2,744,000 in contributions to defined benefit retirement
plan during the year ending 31st March 2021 (2019: $2,810,000).

M EEEROENEBB - FREE - A
HRTEREREER ZRHABANR AR ZETE
HRTHEFEIRDEREBERRARZER
ME  BELRBEEARRT ZEARNFAEINTZ
CHETPHMBL AT  ARERIRBE-F
Tz A=t -RLFERRERFRAKTE
XAF#F2,744,000 T (ZF— A F : 2,810,000
JT) °
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22 Employee retirement benefits (continued) 22 EERKER (F)

(c) Retirement gratuities (Continued) (c) EBHRE ()
(i) Plan assets consist of the following: (i) FTEEEGETISE:
2020 2019
—g-%5 e
$000 F 7t $000 F it

Plan assets with quoted price in active market

RNERTEHREZTEHEE

Equities
RE
- Financial 9,681 13,976
- %%
- Consumer discretionary 4,172 5,261
- EMFHEM
- Industrials 3,687 3,778
— I%
- Consumer staples 2,665 2,839
- REHER
- Other 16,203 17,446
- Hits

36,408 43,300
Bonds
- Corporate bonds 6,167 3,165
- RAEES
- Government-related bonds 9,674 3,093
- B HERAES
- Treasury bonds - 10,571
-BEfE

15,841 16,829
Cash, current assets and current liabilities (330) 1,280
RE  RBEERRBERS
Total quoted plan assets 51,919 61,409
EREFEEERE
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22 Employee retirement benefits (continued)

(c) Retirement gratuities (Continued)

(i) Movements in the present value of the defined benefit
obligations are as follows:

22 RERKER ()

(c) ‘= ()
(i

i) REBMNEERELBNOT :

2020 2019
—B-EF =EF-NF
$'000 ¥ T $'000 F T
At 1st April 80,091 77,647
REA—H
Remeasurement:
EHHE
-Actuarial losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions 65 55
- BALSTHRER R BB ZREEE
-Actuarial losses arising from changes in financial assumptions 3,182 3,408
- I B RR AR B BEEE
Benefits paid by the Plan (7,781) (5,669)
ZEtBIE S EF
Current service cost 3,143 3,197
BBERBHA
Interest cost 1,097 1,453
B A
At 31st March 79,797 80,091
R=B=+—H

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is
8 years (2019: 8 years).

(iv) Movements in fair value of plan assets are as follows:

REBNEFEZMEFIHRANE (ZF-N

FNF) e

(iv) FHBIEEZAAREZBWT

2020 2019
—B-EF —E-NEF
$'000 ¥ $'000 F 7t
At 1st April 61,409 65,042
RMUA—H
Contributions paid to the Plan 2,843 2,980
A st B 2 iR
Benefits paid by the Plan (7,781) (5,669)
ZETEIE A EF
Administrative expenses paid from plan assets (100) (88)
BB EER N 2THER
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income (5,3006) (2,097)
FFEIEED®R - TEEFSWRA
Interest income 854 1,241
FIEUA
At 31st March 51,919 61,409
R=B=+—H
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22 Employee retirement benefits (continued)
(c) Retirement gratuities (Continued)
(v) Net expenses recognised in the consolidated statement

22 RERKER ()

(c) ‘= ()

(v) RESERRAMEEKRRER AT

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income are as N -
follows:

2020 2019
= —
$'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t

Current service cost 3,143 3,197
BERBEHRA

Administrative expenses paid from plan assets 100 88
R 8 EER N ZTHRER

Net interest on net defined benefit liability 243 212
RAERANEEFEIFANE

Total amounts recognised in profit or loss 3,486 3,497
PIERTER 2B

Actuarial losses 3,247 3,463
RBEEE

Return on plan assets, excluding interest income 5,306 2,097
SFEIEEDER - TEEFNSWA

Total amounts recognised in other comprehensive income 8,553 5,560
REMEE R R 285

Total defined benefit expense 12,039 9,057

SUERAAR X

The current service cost and the net interest on net defined
benefit liability are recognised in the following line items in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss:

RER
FEBRERPETHZEER

BANEEFHEZRERERA AL FNEER

2020 2019
—EBCEF —E-NEF
$'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t
Cost of sales 688 622
Marketing, selling and distribution expenses 896 892
HE  HERDHER
Administrative expenses 1,510 1,525
THER
Other operating expenses 392 458
Hit e & A
3,486 3,497
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22 Employee retirement benefits (continued)

(c) Retirement gratuities (Continued)

(vi) Significant actuarial assumptions and sensitivity analysis are
as follows:

22 EERKEF ()
(c) ‘= ()
Vi) BABHERREBIESFAOT :

2020 2019
=BSRF =F-NF
Discount rate 0.70% 1.40%

PR =
Future salary increases

R & 1R 0E

3.5% per annum

HF3.5%

4.0% per annum
BF4.0%

The below analysis shows how the defined benefit obligations
would have increased/(decreased) as a result of 0.5% change in
the significant actuarial assumptions:

UT a2 ERRERNEEEERNBERKR0.5%
gmLA (T :

2020 2019
—z-f —2-hE
Increase in Decrease in Increase in Decrease in
EH T EFH Tk
0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5%
$'000 ¥t $'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t
Discount rate (2,966) 3,140 (3,147) 3,342
FR=E
Future salary increases 3,160 (3,016) 3,358 (3,193)
RRFFE IR

The above sensitivity analysis is based on the assumption that
changes in actuarial assumptions are not correlated and therefore
it does not take into account the correlations between the
actuarial assumptions.

(d) Longservice payments

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is
obliged to make lump sum payments on cessation of employmentin
certain circumstances to certain employees who have completed
at least five years of service with the Group. The amount payableis
dependent on the employees’ final salary and years of service, and
is reduced by entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement
plans that are attributable to contributions made by the Group.
The Group does not set aside any assets to fund any remaining
obligations.

BRI ABRBERR 2B 228
BEEBRAEE  ARIEFABEMRRZHE
ZEERR -

(d RERBE

REEE (BRIEH)  AEEATETERTR
IHERARERAEERBEEZEDAF 2RBERFER
EXN—FBFR - FAXNZERETRER
BIEHFERBRBFEME - LHHAEERK
SETRBERAKEFEHRRZETER - A%
B3 AR EEMEEURETEARGEERMY
FiEzES -
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22 Employee retirement benefits (continued)
(d) Longservice payments (Continued)

An actuarial valuation of long service payments was also carried
out at 31st March 2020, by independent professionally qualified
actuaries at Willis Towers Watson, using the projected unit credit
method.

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position are as follows:

22 EERKEF ()

(d) REBR%E (8)
ESBBE TN -F-BF=A=+—AMER
BB ERARR AN RA RS RS
BT -

RFEMBRRREZ ZEEMNT ¢

2020 2019
=8 —E-hE
$000 F 7t $000 F it

Present value of unfunded obligations 6,435 3,942

BEPEMERE

A portion of the above liabilities is expected to be settled after
more than one year. However, it is not practical to segregate this
amount from the amounts payable in the next twelve months, as
the retirement benefit payable will also depend on staff turnover
and future changes in actuarial assumptions.

23 Equity settled share-based transactions
The Company adopted a share option scheme on 4th September
2002 (the “2002 Share Option Scheme”) whereby the Directors
of the Company are authorised, at their discretion, to invite
employees of the Group, including Directors of any company in
the Group, to take up options to subscribe for ordinary shares in
the Company. At the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 28th August 2012, ordinary resolutions were passed for the
adoption of a new share option scheme (the “2012 Share Option
Scheme”) and the termination of the 2002 Share Option Scheme.
Subject to their respective exercisable periods, all outstanding
options granted under the 2002 Share Option Scheme will still
be valid and exercisable after the expiration of the 2002 Share
Option Scheme.

The exercise price of the options is determined by the Directors
of the Company and is the higher of (i) the closing price of the
shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on the date of grant, which must be a business day;
and (ii) the average of the closing prices of the shares on the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]
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23 DR BNARER 2 S
RRABR-BEZFN AN BERRK—IRERET

g ([Z=2-FBERESE]) it X2F
ZESERERNBABAEEZEES (BEAE
BETEAQARZES) ERBREUZBEARD
AEBER R-ZE--FNAZFTN\BRETZR
NERFEBEFREL  BBTHERERMTERE
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HIRR - BRI - ST - FBRET SR E 2K
THEBRER-_ZZ-FERETEMRERR
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AEBBMARZMAERLIE ([BXFF]) 252
WHE K (i) ROREER L AR A EEXA
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

23 Equity settled share-based transactions

(Continued)
The options are exercisable for a period not to exceed 10 years
from the date of grant. Each option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one share in the Company.

(@) The terms and conditions of the unexpired and unexercised
share options at the end of the reporting period are as

23 URDANRER TS @)

W IR 1T TSR B R 2+ o
SERBEZBEAYEERE—RAQ DR

7 e

(a) RERB 2 RE®R KT EEREZHER
RARHEWT - FREBRESDURG 2B

follows, whereby all options are settled by physical delivery RREE -
of shares:
2020 2019
—B-%F —E-NF
Contractual
life of Remaining Remaining
options Exercise contractual Number contractual Number
Dateofgrant  Exercise period BREZ price life of options life of options
RE B T BNEH THE HHEHNFY BREZEE HHENTH BREZZE
$ '000 T A% $'000 T
8/9/2011 8/9/2012to £7/9/2021 10years F 6.358 1 year F 1,740 2years 1,740
31/8/2012 31/8/2013 to £ 30/8/2022 10 years 6.400 2yearsE 2,822 3yearsF 2,822
28/6/2013 28/6/2014 to & 27/6/2023 10years F 9.370 3 years 38 4yearsE 238
9/9/2013 9/9/2014 to Z 8/9/2023 10years F 9.370 3 years 1,704 4yearsE 1,704
2/7/2014 2/7/2015 to & 1/7/2024 10years F 10.080 4 years 60 5years 168
10/9/2014 10/9/2015 to £ 9/9/2024 10years 10.080 4 years 1,792 5years & 1,792
26/6/2015 26/6/2016 to & 25/6/2025 10 years & 13.600 5years 328 byears 938
14/9/2015 14/9/2016 to £ 13/9/2025 10years F 13.600 5 years & 1,588 6years 1,588
24/6/2016 24/6/2017 to & 23/6/2026 10years F 14.792 6 years 1,392 7yearsE 1,808
6/9/2016 6/9/2017 to £ 5/9/2026 10years F 14.792 6 years & 1,420 7years 1,420
2/3/2017 2/3/2019 to £ 1/3/2027 10 years 15.440 7 years & - 8years F 326
26/6/2017 26/6/2018 to & 25/6/2027 10 years 16.296 7 years & 2,251 8years & 2,840
19/6/2018 19/6/2019 to £ 18/6/2028 10years F 25.100 8 years & 2,527 9years F 3,038
28/1/2019 28/1/2020to & 27/1/2029 10years F 30.350 9 years & 320 10years & 320
21/6/2019 21/6/2020to £ 20/6/2029 10 years 44810 9 yearsE 1,812 - -
19,794 20,742
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(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

23 Equity settled share-based transactions 23 URGANRERZRZ @

(Continued)

(@) (Continued) (a) @

Except for the options granted on 2nd March 2017 which were BR-ZE—tE=-F-_HRHZBRECERH
fully vested after two years from the date of grant and the options HEEMEREZHEBURR - —IE—
granted on 28th January 2019 which will be 50% vested after B+ N\BEREZERESERE AHEFTEE
the first anniversary from the date of grant and 50% vested after BFEEESxFERBREBHETE-BFE
the second anniversary from the date of grant, all the options are BS50%FEEI 0 MIEATFTEZBRESE DE
exercisable progressively and the maximum percentage of the SN MR AIITEBREZE o LR

options which may be exercised is determined in stages as follows: ™

Percentage of

options granted

HERBREZADL

On or after 1st year anniversary of the date of grant 25%
R HER —BFRHEE

On or after 2nd year anniversary of the date of grant another 5 25%
R BHEAWAFHHRE

On or after 3rd year anniversary of the date of grant another 5 25%
R AR =AFRHE®E

On or after 4th year anniversary of the date of grant another 5 25%

X HH R A FRER

During the year, nil options (2019: 220,000 options) were FR MEBRE (ZZ—HF : 22000078
exercised under the 2002 Share Option Scheme, and 2,196,000 BRE) RE-_SS_FEREFICETER
options (2019: 2,490,000 options) were exercised under the 2012 2,196,000 17 BE R #E (=& — AL FE : 2,490,000 1%
Share Option Scheme. BRE) RE-—Z——FEREFECETE -
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(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

23 Equity settled share-based transactions

(Continued)
(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of share
options are as follows:

23 URDANRER TS @)

(b) R~ # A RIMETYTEENT

2020 2019
—EBCEF —E-NEF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
MEEFITEE BREIHE MEFTOTEE BREZHE
$ T '000 F A% $T '000 F A%
Outstanding at 1st April 13.811 20,742 11.715 20,260
M A — B ARITE
Exercised during the year 15.145 (2,196) 12.711 (2,710)
RERNTTE
Granted during the year 44810 1,964 25.592 3,418
RERNEH
Forfeited on termination of employment of
eligible participants or lapsed during the year 25.731 (716) 17.334 (226)
He&ERSHEERBMRERZIER KN
Outstanding at 31st March 16.307 19,794 13.811 20,742
R=A=+—BERTE
Exercisable at 31st March 13,597 12,166

R=ZA=1+—Hu{TE

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share
options exercised during the year was $37.243 (2019: $26.897).

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share options
granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share options granted
is measured based on a binomial lattice model. The contractual life
of the share optionis used as aninput into this model. Expectations
of early exercise are incorporated into the binomial lattice model.

BITEZERERFERZITEA B2 MEFLEIR
EA 372438 (ZE—NEF : 268977t)

() BEREZARERER

AEE R HBR RS 2 RE 2 ARE Y
SECRHBREZ AAENE - DEHBRE
ZEHAREN BN BEEN B - BREZ
ENEHRFZERZ ERASE - BERT
TEZEBMEHASERBBEL A
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

23 Equity settled share-based transactions

(Continued)

Fair value of share options and assumptions
(Continued)

Fair values of share options and assumptions:

(c)

23 LR ANRER TS @)

(c) BREZAABERER @

BREZAARBERRR :

Date of grant
REAH
8/9/2011 31/8/2012 28/6/2013  9/9/2013  2/7/2014 10/9/2014 26/6/2015 14/9/2015 24/6/2016  6/9/2016  2/3/2017 26/6/2017 19/6/2018 28/1/2019 21/6/2019

Fairvalue at
measurement date $06057T  $1.0437m  $18277  $2244:  $21507m  $20827  $30387  $22487  $27957m 936397  $34487m  §3323;w  $5914;  $7.339m  $7.4077
RERBZARE
Share price $54907  $6.6207  $9.3707  $9.9507 $10.0807w  $9.9207 $136007 $118407 $137007% $152207 $154407 $16.0807 $25.1007 $30.3507 $38.7507
RE
Exercise price $6.3587  $64007  $9.3707  $9.3707 $10.0807 $100807 $136007 $136007 $14.7927% $147927 $154407 $16.2967 $25.1007 $30.3507  $44.8107T
e
Expected volatility 25% 26% 26% 26% 26% 26% 26% 26% 26% 26% 24% 24% 23% 25% 25%
LN
Expectedoptionlife ~ 10years®  10years® 10yearsF 10years® 10vears® 10years® 10years® 10vears® 10years® 10years® 10vears® 10yearsF 10years® 10yearsF 10yearsF
BHBRECENS
Expected dividends 5.5% 5.0% 40% 40% 35% 35% 30% 30% 25% 25% 25% 25% 20% 20% 20%
BHRE
Risk-free interest rate 1.750% 0.620% 1.720% 2.400% 1.870% 1.940% 1750% 1730% 1050% 0.950% 1.830% 1.240% 2.230% 1.850% 1490%

EmpAE

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility, adjusted
for any expected changes to future volatility based on publicly
available information. Expected dividends are based on historical
dividends. Changes in the subjective input assumptions could
materially affect the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service condition. This
condition has not been taken into account in the grant date fair
value measurement of the services received. There was no market
conditions associated with the share option grants.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

24 Income tax in the consolidated
statement of financial position

(a) Current tax recoverable/(payable)in the

24 HREVBRRRKRZFTER

(a) AHREBBMRRZEL, " (BN

consolidated statement of financial position BHIRIEMT :
represents:
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-hEF
$'000 Tt $000 Ft
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year (18,455) (37,448)
AEERBHEHEE
Provisional Profits Tax paid 37,844 35,828
2T ZTARFIEH
19,389 (1,620)
Balance of Profits Tax provision relating to prior years - 880
B FEEEZRESHBESR
Taxation outside Hong Kong 33,332 9,332
EBLIM R E
52,721 8,592
Summary =
2020 2019
—EIEF —E-hEF
$'000 T $000 Ft
Current tax recoverable 66,497 37,727
FEUR IR AR 18
Current tax payable (13,776) (29,135)
FE{S IR HAR 1E
52,721 8,592
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(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

24 Income tax in the consolidated 24 HEBMBERRRZAEH @
statement of financial position (continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised: b) EERIETREEE  (BF)

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised AR RS Y FERIEEE  (81)
NPT Ry = R 7Y 21 _RE = I=
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the SR B R S BT

movements during the year are as follows:

Depreciation Fair value

allowances adjustment on

in excess tangible and

of the related Future intangible

depreciation benefit of Employee Withholding assets

BLEE taxlosses retirement taxon AR REW Cash flow

FEZHE  BiEEEZ benefits Provisions dividends EBEZAAE hedges Total
SHE ARAE  ESEMAEN BfE  REEMB FE  ReREUH @t

$000 7t $000 F 7T $000 F T $000 F T $000 F 7t $000 7t $000 F 7T $000F 1t

Deferred tax arising from:
REUTEEZELHE -
At 1st April 2018 (67,572) 30,668 2469 80,571 (15,395) (397) (905) 29,439
RZE-NEMA-H
Exchange adjustments 830 (219) - (4,186) - 14 - (3,561)
BN A%
(Charged)/credited to

profit or loss (51,660) (1,142) 45 10,902 (4,057) 413 - (45,499)
REE (GIB) /FA
Credited to reserves - - 1,001 - - - 808 1,809
BT A

At 31st March 2019 (118,402) 29,307 3515 87,287 (19,452) 30 (97) (17,812)
RZE-NF=A=t-H

Deferred tax arising from:

KREUTREZETHE -

At 1st April 2019 (118,402) 29,307 3,515 87,287 (19,452) 30 (97) (17,812)
R=Z-AEMA-A

Exchange adjustments 4619 (536) - (5,011) - - - (928)
ESAE

Credited/(charged) to
profit or loss 11,192 3,948 (11) (3,192) 993 (30) - 12,900

RERHA/ (1K)

Credited to reserves - - 1,872 - - - 156 2,028
WRETA

At 31st March 2020 (102,591) 32,719 5376 79,084 (18,459) - 59 (3,812)
R=Z-ZF=A=+-H
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(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

24 Income tax in the consolidated

statement of financial position (continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised:
(Continued)

24 HEMBERRRZAEH @

(b) BRRELHIHEE  (AF)
()

Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial REBBM R R R
position
2020 2019
= —
$'000 Tt $'000 F 7t
Net deferred tax assets
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position 97,653 81,169
REFE MR RER ZIELERIEE EFE
Net deferred tax liabilities
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position (101,465) (98,981)
NP B R RERZIELHEEEFHE
(3,812) (17,812)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(r), the
Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of tax
losses and other temporary differences of $337,741,000 (2019:
$524,648,000) as it is not probable that future taxable profits
against which the losses and other temporary differences can
be utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdictions and
entities.

Included in unrecognised tax losses is an amount of $77,995,000
(2019: $78,895,000) which can be carried forward up to twenty
years from the year in which the loss originated. The remaining
balance of $259,746,000 (2019: $445,753,000) does not expire
under current tax legislation.

() RERZELEHEEE

RBMEE LU A2 E5TEBR  AEELEER
R EEBEEREMERFEZRE337,741,000T (=
Z— ALF : 524,648,0005t) ZIEEREEE -
REREREBRRERLZEEERER T AIREE
ERRERFEF LRGSR EHBRERE
fERFER o

ABERREBIEFTET77,995000T (ZE—H
% :78,895000T) KA EEBEELEZFERE
EEZ 18 - H££259,746,000T (Z&—H
% 1 445,753,000 T) AT EREBERTEEE
o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

25 Capital, reserves and dividends 25 EXR - #FERRE
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) HERAMIBHRZEE

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of ~ ANEBEARERRSHEMIN 2 FNEFREHRZ
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out HIREN GRS ER - AN FERERIARK
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of HORFNRFERZEBFFHIIMT :

the changes in the Company’s individual components of equity

between the beginning and the end of the year are set out below:

The Company b/ /AT
Share-based
compensation
Share Capital General reserve Hedging Retained Total
capital reserve reserve ROER reserve profits equity
R B —fRE wERE HiiE REEA ERag
(Note)
(ftzE)

Note fifzE $000Fx  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000Fw

Balance at 1st April 2018 857,335 38,785 2,261 31873 4,580 1,305,910 2,240,744
RZB-NFRA-BEH

Changes in equity for the year:
REEVRREET

Transfer from capital reserve to

retained profits 25(d)(i) - (3,609) - - - 3,609 -
BEAREERZREET
Shares issued on exercise of share options 25(c)(ii) 41626 - - (7,180) - - 34446
ATEEREMRTRE
Equity settled share-based transactions - - - 13,521 - - 13,521

NROBARER 2R S
Final dividend approved in respect

of the previous year 25(b)(ii) - - - - - (333,191) (333,191)
HEBRE-FE2RARE

Interim dividend declared in respect

of the current year 25(b)(i) - - - - - (40,324) (40,324)
ERAEE2HHRE
Total comprehensive income for the year 9 - - - - (4,088) 774,234 770,146
REEREWGEE
Balance at 31st March 2019 898,961 35,176 2261 38,214 492 1,710,238 2,685,342

RZE-REZA=1-REsH

Note: BT -
The Company has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1st April 2019 using the EEER - NEFEENA—HERER(EBUBEREE

modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative Al) 165 - REBHALEITNEREL  KBREENRE
information is not restated. See note 1(c). 5l o FEBERMIEE 1(c) ©
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(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

25 Capital, reserves and dividends (continved) 25 EZA - EERKRE @

(a) Movements in components of equity (Continued) (a) RERAMIBHRZEE (&)
The Company (Continued) KR A] (&)
Share-based
compensation
Share Capital General reserve Hedging Retained Total
capital reserve reserve ROER reserve profits equity
i Exii —RiEE RRGEE B REEA EReE
Note fifE $1000 T $000 T $000 T $000 T $000 T $000 T $000 Tt
Balance at 31st March 2019
and 1st April 2019 898,961 35,176 2,261 38,214 492 1,710,238 2,685,342
RZB-AEZA=t-BR=F-h%
MA-REH
Impact on initial application of HKFRS16 - - - - - (3,258) (3,258)
BRER (BRMBREER) £165%2
ve
Adjusted balance at 1st April 2019 898,961 35,176 2,261 38,214 492 1,706,980 2,682,084
RcEnEmA-aEmEEM
Changes in equity for the year:
rEEVRELSD
Transfer from capital reserve to
retained profits 25(d)(i) - (1,218) - - - 1,218 -
HEAGEEREREEN
Shares issued on exercise of share options 25(c)(ii) 40,367 - - (7,109) - - 33,258
RTRBREMBTRE
Equity settled share-based transactions - - - 12,686 - - 12,686
HRBANTHER 225
Final dividend approved in respect
of the previous year 25(b)(ii) - - - - - (404,181) (404,181)
HEBRL-FE 2 RBRE
Interim dividend declared in respect
of the current year 25(b)(i) - - - - - (40,424) (40,424)
ERREE2HHRE
Total comprehensive income for the year 9 - - - - (790) 302,512 301,722
AEEREUNEEE
Balance at 31st March 2020 939,328 33,958 2,261 43791 (298) 1,566,105 2,585,145

W-B-Z5=A=1-B&H
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(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

25 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(b) Dividends

(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the year

25 BEX - FEERE @)
(b) BRE
(i) BEAIFELIGREFBEAZETFERE

2020 2019
—B-EF =F-NF
$'000 F 7T $'000 F T
Interim dividend declared and paid of 3.8 cents per
ordinary share (2019: 3.8 cents per ordinary share) 40,424 40,324
EERREXMZHERE -SREER3.81L
(ZE—N15F : SREBER3.81L)
Final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting
period of 28.4 cents per ordinary share
(2019: 38.0 cents per ordinary share) (note 25(e)) 302,132 403,574
RERAERERZRBRE - SREBER 28.4 14
(ZZ—NF  SREER 38.01L) (FIFF 25(e))
342,556 443,898

The final dividends proposed after the end of the reporting period
arebasedon 1,063,843,500 ordinary shares(2019: 1,062,037,500
ordinary shares), being the total number of issued shares at the
date of approval of the financial statements.

The final dividends proposed after the end of the reporting period
have not been recognised as liabilities at the end of the reporting
period.

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the previous financial year,
approved and paid during the year

NERBBER2ARBRE DR ETBHRRE
HE 3 TIRMNAEE 1,063,843,500 REER (==
—hE 1 1,062,037,500 R @R) TE o

REHRH 2K RARSNERB AL RERR
afE-

(i) BRE—RIRFE  ERFAAER
N FALAREFEAZEMKE

2020 2019
—T-FF =F-NF
$’000 F 7t $'000 F 7t
Final dividend in respect of the previous financial year,
approved and paid during the year of 38.0 cents per
ordinary share (2019: 31.4 cents per ordinary share) 404,181 333,191

BN E—PBRFE  WAFAHRERSNZ
AR E - EREFER 3801 (ZF-NF : BREBRKR31.410)
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(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

25 Capital, reserves and dividends (continved) 25 EZA - EERKRE @

(c) Share capital (o) B=&
(i)  Issued share capital (i) BEBITRAK
2020 2019
—EBCEF —E-NEF
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
R EE ox-l IR & B x|
'000 F A% $'000 F T ‘000 F & $000 F 7t

Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid:
ERTREHMEEZER

At 1st April 1,061,582 898,961 1,058,872 857,335

RUA—AH

Shares issued on exercise of share options 2,196 40,367 2,710 41,626

AT IRFEM 1T R

At 31st March 1,063,778 939,328 1,061,582 898,961
A=A=+—H

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as ZERZEFEATBRTRERZRKRE TR
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share ARz RS LRERBROHEZE —ERERE - 3
at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with RATZEGBEENS  FESBER=ZERERE
regard to the Company’s residual assets. F o

(i)  Shares issued under share option schemes (i) RIZBREBIZRITZRG

During theyear, options were exercised to subscribe for 2,196,000 F RN AEE219008 (=8 — h F:
(2019: 2,710,000) ordinary shares in the Company. The net 2,7100008) A A E @R 2B REE T
consideration of $33,258,000 (2019: $34,446,000) was credited ff o REEE 533258000 (ZEE—HAF:
to share capital. $7,109,000 (2019: $7,180,000) was transferred 34,446,000 7t) W EHE A ° 7,109,000 7T (=
from the share-based compensation reserve to the share capital T — L 17,180,000 7T) B R IEMEE 1(q)(iv) AT
account in accordance with the policy set out in note 1(q)(iv). HeBXERMNERHEERERARKRE -
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(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

25 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)  Capital reserve

As part of the restructuring of the Group in February 1994, the
Company disposed of a property to a former subsidiary and
consideration was received in the form of cash and another
property. A total gain, representing the difference between
the historical carrying value of the property disposed of and
the fair value of the consideration received, resulted from such
transaction.

The gain arising from this transaction was divided into realised
and unrealised portions in the ratio of the amount of cash and the
fair value of the property received (“the property”). The unrealised
gain was taken to capital reserve and is realised on depreciation
of the property. During the year, $1,218,000 (2019: $3,609,000)
was transferred from capital reserve to retained profits.

(ii)  Surplus reserve

The surplus reserve has been set up by Shenzhen Vitasoy, Vitasoja
(Macau) Limitada, Vitasoy Foshan, Vitasoy Wuhan and Vitasoy
Shanghai in accordance with regulations in the PRC and Macau
respectively.

(iii) Other reserve

The other reserve arose from the equity transactions with non-
controlling interests of Shenzhen Vitasoy in 2011 and Vitasoy
Dongguanin 2019.

(iv) Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the
cumulative net change in the fair value of hedging instruments
used in cash flow hedges pending subsequent recognition of
the hedged cash flow in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for cash flow hedges in note 1(t).

(v) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of
subsidiaries and joint venture outside Hong Kong and the foreign
exchange differences arising from translation of monetary items
that in substance form part of the net investment in subsidiaries
outside Hong Kong. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policy set out in note 1(v).

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]

25 EX - BEREKRE @

(d) FREEZHERAE

(i) EXFHE
EBAEER—ANNE= BT EE > — 5
B AATE—-EAMELDHE—EYE &
BUBLRE—EYMLEXN  HEARXBELR
Wk o BNFFHEE % > I S BRE S S LB A
BT EEE o

ARz WHmREWRERME ([WXE]) 2
REZEHIBESRRRERIMBH - RERW
BOFTAEREE LN EMHETERER -
RER 1,218,000 (=& —NF : 3,609,000
) BENRABERZREER o

(i) BEFGHEAE

BB ERRY ML - A CRFY) BRQ
B BhILAEMY - BURMEAM R Dig4EM D B
RIE AP BN RPT 2 EIRRRAL ©

(i) Bbf#E

HinfFBEE B RINEMD R REMTI D B
CE—EFEREFE-NFHFEREZIERR
% °

(iv) $ilEs

i ERERERSFERRIBME 1t P8
BeRBHHFRAZ ST BREIYIRERE
ZBREREBYHZEHHATEN DI ARERTFEE
ZEBREG o

(v) ERF#E
ERREESHRETBUMEZMBARRE
ERNRAZMBHRRELEZABEMNEE X ZERIE
HEEBUIMECHBRAREEEHIRE FE—
BOEWEEEE ZIMNEE X5 - ZRHEHE
RIBMIEE 1v) Rz SETERER -



Notes to the Financial Statements
S py S EL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

25 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(vi) Share-based compensation reserve

Share-based compensation reserve comprises the fair value of the
actual or estimated number of unexercised share options granted
to employees of the Group recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share-based payments in note 1(q)

(iv).

(e) Distributability of reserves

At 31st March 2020, the aggregate amounts of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company, as calculated under the provisions of Part 6 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, was $1,568,366,000 (2019:
$1,712,499,000).

After the end of the reporting period the directors proposed
a final dividend of 28.4 cents per ordinary share (2019: 38.0
cents per ordinary share), amounting to $302,132,000 (2019:
$403,574,000) (note 25(b)(i)). These dividends have not been
recognised as liabilities at the end of reporting period.

(f) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to
finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings
and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practices, the Group monitors its capital
structure on the basis of a debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. For this
purpose, the Group defines debt as the total of bank loans and
lease liabilities, and adjusted capital as all components of equity
less unaccrued proposed dividends.

25 EX - BEREKRE @

(d) REZMHERAZE @)

(i) BREGEEGEEE
ROEMBERELSETAEEES > BER
EEBE 2 RTEBREZARE  BEBR
ETARIBIIEE 1(q)(iv) RSt LR B LR > 43K
R B R TR o

(e) At IRfEE
RZZB-ZEF=A=+—H0  RESB(AEMHK
Bl 5 6 E 2R LETE 2 AT 5 K F AR D B IR FE
BEAZ#EHEEEE 1,568,366,0007T (ZF—H
1 1,712,499,000 %) °

REHRBEZ ESEBREARARESRIER
2844 (ZZE—h&F : SREBR38.0M) - £
#(% 302,132,000 7t (Z=ZF— 1% : 403,574,000
7)) (MisE25(b)(i) ° ZER ERER A L ARER
RBE-

() BEXEE

FEETEREAK cEEZERBREAEERE
FREENED  EBSERRRBNERTR
HEREBNKTFRESENASHERE  EH
RAEBRSRREHEHRRSEMANSHEALE
R

AEEEEREHHERRBETRNRER
DAERSRREBUEMTRSEEKTFERER
BERRR TR ZBERREFNGFE » LEE
HBRRBZB{CHERRBELAR -

REXERNES  AEBUEEHERHBERLR
ERERHERERZEE - HILAEN - AEH
BEEREARTERRBERBZRE  &H
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25 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)
(f) Capital management (Continued)

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach. Under this approach, the Group
recognises right-of-use assets and corresponding lease liabilities
for almost all leases previously accounted for as operating leases
as from 1st April 2019. This caused a significant increase in the
Group’s total debt and hence the Group’s debt-to-adjusted capital
ratio rose from 1% to 10% on 1st April 2019 when compared toits
position as at 31st March 2019.

The Group’s strategy, which was unchanged from the year ended
31st March 2019, was to maintain the debt-to-adjusted capital
ratio below 30%. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
issue new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group’s debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at the end of the current
and previous reporting periods and at the date of transition to
HKFRS 16 was as follows:

25 BEXR - #FERERE @
() BEXREE @)
AEECKALETRMEIERER(ERBUME
HEER) B 165 o BIBUL L RNEEFEA
BE-Z-NFNA-HEBARAKEHEZR/K
BAHERIAFAREEREEHRESE - 1B
BAKEE - EEAEAEEMN  REKAEER
“E-NFNA-BzABEHKHEERL R
RZE-AE=A=1+—AZHRRMEEHE1% L
HZE10% o
FEBzRBEEZE-_T-NF=A=+—HL
FERBTE  BEBYHLEHARERLREZN
30% LT - AREFHAREBL R AEERE
FERBRRRGZBRESEE - BITHRMD - AR
REEER SEHEEMESHEEGELURK
afE-
REBREHRBEERBURBES (FBH
BMEER) F16EEA BB EHARERL
EMT -

31st March 2020 1st April 2019 31st March 2019
—T-%F =F-NEF =F-NF
=H=+—H MA—H =A=+—AH
(Note) (HizE) (Note) (FffzE)
$'000 F T $'000 F 7t $'000 F 7T
Current liabilities:
TEEE
Bank loans (note 20) 241,424 44,508 44,508
BITER (FiFE20)
Lease liabilities (note 21) 89,957 71,627 -
HEEE (MEFE21)
331,381 116,135 44,508

Non-current liabilities:
FrBER
Lease liabilities (note 21) 153,617 187,632 -
HEEE (MiFE21)
Total debt 484,998 303,767 44,508
SEH8%
Total equity 3,418,104 3,463,734 3,469,560
FER4A%E
Less: Proposed dividends (note 25(b)(i)) (302,132) (403,574) (403,574)
A BURARE (K EE 25(b)())
Adjusted capital 3,115,972 3,060,160 3,065,986
BAEER
Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio 16% 10% 1%
EEHCHERERLE
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25 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)
(f) Capital management (Continued)

Certain of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to fulfilment
of covenants which include maintaining the Group’s debt-to-
adjusted capital ratio below a certain amount and maintaining the
Group’s net worth ratio above a certain amount. Except for the
above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject
to externally imposed capital requirements.

Note:

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective
approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1st April 2019 to recognise
lease liabilities relating to leases which were previously classified as operating
leases under HKAS 17. Under this approach, the comparative information is
not restated. See note 1(c).

26 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group’s
exposures to these risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the Group to manage these risks
are described below.

(a) Creditrisk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its
contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the Group.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other
receivables. Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposure to this credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

The Group’s cash and bank deposits are placed with financial
institutions with sound credit ratings, and the management
consider the Group’s exposure to credit risk is low.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which would expose
the Group to credit risk.

25 EX - BEREKRE @

() EXREE @)
AEEETFRITESBEHLRE  BEEAEE
T EBEWEREE AL RESNETRENTR
BAEE FEELRERAE THREML - B
PEFrs  AATREEAME A DEBEY
FONBHEIN 2 B A

MiEE -

AEECHRALETENEE XER (BBMBRSER)
FBLERABRN-Z-NENA— B 2D URER
HEAMBE(EBSHEN 17 R/ BALERECHA
ERBECAEEE  RELRAE  KBEBRLEKRE - R
MiEE 1(c) ©

26 BIEREERESMTAZA

RE
AEEE-REKBEPFEGE  RABES -
FZEREERE - NEBHR 2 EBRRERARE
BREEZERRMEA VKRR EERERE
EHIERRIT o

(a) EER
FERBRERGHERESGNEIMEINAE
B TSRS 18 2 R o

JiE]

FEBZFERBREERERERT R HBRK
R EEEHREFERR  MATHRZEBEER

BB EZ R -
FEBEZRERBITERDERRNE RIFEER
R TRiE  EEERRATEEERZEER
PRARIE

AEBYERREAESAEEEREERR 2
R e
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26 Financial risk management and fair

values of financial instruments (continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

Trade debtors and bills receivable (which are included in
trade and other receivables)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer rather than the
industry or country in which the customers operate and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when the
Group has significant exposure to individual customers. At the end
of reporting period, 15.4% (2019: 16.9%) and 35.5% (2019: 37.1%)
of the total trade and other receivables was due from the Group’s
largest customer and the five largest customers respectively.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic environment in
which the customer operates. Trade debtors and bills receivables
are generally due within one to three months from the date
of billing. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade debtors and bills
receivable at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss
experience does not indicate significantly different loss patterns
for different customer segments, the loss allowance based on
past due status is not further distinguished between the Group’s
different customer bases.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]

26 HEEAKREEREMITASA
AE @
(a) FERR @)
FBREZREREZR (EGFRERERFR
HtEWRFA)
AEEHEZEERRFESSEF2ERER
MIEFREEBRMEZTEREARTE -
o BEAEREERBRIENAEEERERNE
PrERAEARELEE -RERBE  AEBHRAE
FREREF 2R 5 Blih BRI R H b FELR
MR 2 154% (ZE— NF : 16.9%) & 35.5%
(ZZF—NF :37.1%) °

FBERBARECESH TP AETER
FEE - ZSFHEETREFBEZIHERN
REENREENEED  YEEREF 2B EER
UREBEFEEME2EBRE - BURMRR
FREE-—RRBEREF—ZE=EARZIH -
—RME - AEEFSREFIGETR -

REBRBWERT K B RE 2 BREE —RIZEE
ERAERFHRZABEEEE (RARHEE
MEtE) ST E - ARNAKEBEFERE
ERITEBRNTREFIB2BREXNFEEX
ER  HUREBEHRR T EE BB AR EE A
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26 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

The following table provides information about the Group’s
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade debtors and bills

receivable:

26 BIEREEREMTAZA

RE @
(a) EEREBR (@)

TREHBRASEE R EW IR R ERESE

Rz EEREREAEREEBREZEN

2020
—p-f

Gross carrying

2019
—E-NEF

Gross carrying

amount Loss allowance amount  Loss allowance
IREZAE BiEREE EREZE BB
'000 F 7T $'000 T '000 F 7T $000 F 7t
Current (not past due) 624,247 - 634,852 -
BNER (R3EHR)
Less than one month past due 56,124 (889) 64,474 (626)
BHROR—EA
One to three months past due 21,157 (518) 13,000 (163)
BE—Z=1EA
More than three months but less
than twelve months past due 7,462 (356) 5,241 (400)
BHEB=EAEBLR+=MEA
More than twelve months past due 808 (348) 135 (88)
BHREE+ 8B
709,798 (2,111) 717,702 (1,277)
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(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

26 Financial risk management and fair

values of financial instruments (continued)
(a) Credit risk (Continued)
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade
debtors and bills receivable during the year is as follows:

26 BiREREEREMIAEZA
RAE @)

(a) 1=EREBE @)

FEWBES T BN E S > FERERRERN 22T

T

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-hEF
$'000 F 7T $'000 F 7T
Balance at 1st April 1,277 1,022
RO A — B 4&ek
Exchange adjustments (98) (18)
B 5 SRR
Impairment losses recognised 977 316
HRREEE
Uncollectible amounts written off (45) (43)
FA] Uk [l & B8 2 i EH
Balance at 31st March 2,111 1,277

R=B=+—H#%&

(b) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for
their own cash management for daily operation, including placing
short term cash deposits and raising of loans to cover expected
cash demands, subject to approval by the parent company’s
board when the borrowings exceed certain predetermined
levels of authority. Cash surplus over operating needs are
closely monitored and managed by the Group’s central cash and
treasury management system. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long
term. The Group’s exposures to the liquidity risk and its policies
for managing such risk were unchanged from the year ended 31st
March 2019.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]

(b) RBETER
AEEEANEEERREHREEFZREE
B SEFHENREERREAERURZEE
HREFR - EMEEBBETHELEE 2BE
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26 Financial risk management and fair

values of financial instruments (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities at
the end of the reporting period of the Group’s financial liabilities,
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the

earliest date the Group can be required to pay:

26 BiEBREEREMIAZA
AE @)

(b) REESRER (8

THREIAEE> SHEBRERDZHT AN
HIRR » WRBANRMBESHE (BERS
HAE  RIETEIRERABET AR E
FIEAR) URAEEEMESHERXEZREH
HRAE AT -

2020
i
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
RHATRR SR
More than More than
Within 1 year but 2 years but
1yearor less than less than After Carrying
on demand 2 years 5years 5years Total Amount
-FR®  FR-FE  ZRWEE
REX HRWE HREE nE# At fREE
$000 Tt $000 Tt $'000 ¥ $'000 1 $000 Tt $000 7
Trade and other payables (excluding receipts in advance
and customer deposits) 1,635,803 - - - 1,635,803 1,635,803
SN
(FERRUREREFRE)
Bank loans 242,191 - - - 242,191 241,424
RITEH
Lease liabilities (Note) 91,337 70,993 87433 19,052 268,815 243574
HESE (W)
1,969,331 70,993 87433 19,052 2,146,809 2,120,801

Annual Report 2019/2020 FE &

233



234

Notes to the Financial Statements
S py S EL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

26 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

26 BIEREEREMTAZA
RE @
(b) RBESERE @)

2019
—E-NEF

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

BHRTRBESRE

Within
1yearor Carrying
on demand Total amount
—FRFIRER FEH IRHEE
$000 F 7t $'000 Tt $'000 F 7t
Trade and other payables (excluding receipts
in advance and customer deposits) 1,543,744 1,543,744 1,543,744
FEAT RN R HAth FEAS TR
(TEEARREREFZE)
Bank loans 44591 44,591 44,508
RITER
1,588,335 1,588,335 1,588,252
Note: Mzt -

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective

approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1st April 2019 to recognise

lease liabilities relating to leases which were previously classified as operating

leases under HKAS 17. Lease liabilities include amounts recognised at the

date of transition to HKFRS 16 in respect of leases previously classified as

operating leases under HKAS 17 and amounts relating to new leases entered

into during the year. Under this approach, the comparative information is not

restated. See note 1(c).

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]

AEECRALETEMNEERER (BBVEREEN)
BLOFAARNR_ZT—NEMA — A ZHNEER - UHER
BERIRIE(EBETTER) B17 R BEALEREZH
EHECHEEE HEEEEENBEZ(EBHER
HER) F 167 E AR EFRIE (BREFHER) 81758
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(BRSEHRBAI » LUBEEHE)
26 Financial risk management and fair

values of financial instruments (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

26 BIEREEREMTAZA
RE @
(b) RBESERE @)

2020 2019
—g-E —E-NE
Contractual undiscounted cash Contractual undiscounted cash
(outflow)/inflow (outflow)/inflow

BRRFRAS (Rd) RA AHRFRRE CRE) RA

Within Within
1 year or 1yearor
on demand Total ondemand Total
—FRH —FRHK
RER et RER st
$'000 F 7T $'000 F 7t $'000 7t $'000 F 7t
Derivatives settled gross:
EHEEMTETRERE
Forward foreign exchange contracts
(note 26(d))
EHIMNES K (KL 26(d)
- Outflow (45,371) (45,371) - -
- A
- Inflow 46,235 46,235 - -
- A

(c) Interestraterisk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from interest-
bearing borrowings. The Group monitors the level of its fixed rate
and variable rate borrowings. The Group’s interest rate profile as
monitored by management is set out in (i) below.

() F=EE
NEEBRESHTAZAAEIRKRSRER
B SRER D TRD 2 AR -

FEEZANREREIEREBMEMEE - AEHE
RHEEBRFEMEENKY - AEEHEEREEE
ZRNZRERHN T ()18 -
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26 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)
(i) Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group’s

interest-bearing borrowings at the end of the reporting period:

26 HEEAKREEREMITASA
RAE @)

(c) RIZEEPE @)

(i) FIREHR

THREAEMUYNELRENERD A =S

p S

2020 2019
—BCEF —E-NF
Effective Effective
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
BERI=R &8 BRF= G
% $'000 F 7t % $'000 F 7t
Fixed rate borrowings:
EEMEE :
Lease liabilities (Note) 3.48 243,574 - -
HEEE (M)
Variable rate borrowings:
FEEE
Bank loans 242 241,424 2.95 44,508
BITEM
Total borrowings 484,998 44,508
BEHEE
Note: MiEE -

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective
approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1st April 2019 to recognise
lease liabilities relating to leases which were previously classified as operating
leases under HKAS 17. Under this approach, the comparative information is

not restated. See note 1(c).

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]
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26 Financial risk management and fair

values of financial instruments (continued)
(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)
(ii)  Sensitivity analysis
At 31st March 2020, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would have decreased/increased the
Group’s profit after taxation and retained profits by approximately
$1,946,000 (2019: $312,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group’s profit after taxation and retained profits in respect
of the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating
rate instruments held by the Group at the end of the reporting
period. The impact on the Group’s profit after taxation and
retained profits is estimated as an annualised impact on interest
expense of such a change in interest rates. Management assumed
that certaininterest-bearing borrowings maturing during the next
reporting period will be rolled over upon the maturing for daily
operation purposes.

The Group does not account for any fixed rate borrowings at fair
value through profit or loss, and the Group does not use derivative
financial instruments to hedge its debt obligation. The fixed rate
instruments of the Group are insensitive to any change in market
interest rate. A change in interest rate at the end of the reporting
period would not affect profit or loss.

The analysis has been performed on the same basis for the year
ended 31st March 2019.

(d) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales,
purchases and borrowings which giverise to receivables, payables,
cash balances and lease liabilities that are denominated in a
foreign currency, i.e. acurrency other than the functional currency
of the operations to which the transactions relate. The currencies
giving rise to this risk are primarily United States dollars (“USD”),
Australian dollars (“AUD”), Singapore dollars (“SGD”), Philippines
Peso (“PHP”), Renminbi (“RMB”), European dollars (“EUR”) and
New Zealand dollars (“NZD").

26 BIRAMEERESHMIAZA
AE @

(c) =@ (@)

(i) BT

RZBEZZF=ZA=+—HB GsAERZE

R THR-—EREEE  EAEEMGAUSEBRERE

RETEZERT  NEBERBEEF KRB E

A E LB 04 1,946,000 T (ZZ2—H

£ 1 312,0007T) °

TSRS B RARERER B 2F8
MERTASIFAKEERRSRENRAM 2R

BENRREBRNAZE  HRANREHHUFE
Xz EECFEMET - EEBERNT —EH
EHERE THESEERBIPRAGHEEUE
AEEEZHA -

REBIEEEMESMEERDAEFTELFTA
B5n BASETEERTESRT A TERS
BEME - AEE2ESTESEAT SR RES
WA - EHRA 2R REFH WAL ERE o

BE_ZE-—NF=RA=1+—HILEEEZDIWNIEZ
IBAEEEEELT -

(d) E¥EE
FEEHRzENRBETERBEEEREEM
EEZRU - BN  RefBpREEEE
ZEBB TN (RGP EB ZEER
LU E%) sHE - EXRRERBCEREIER
Ex(MExl) - Bx ([Bx]) K (MK
7Tl) FERBRER (TR ARB (TAR
1) B (TExl) R¥AMT ([HEHR
JTl) e
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26 Financial risk management and fair

values of financial instruments (continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

For group entities whose functional currency is Hong Kong dollars
(“HKD"), all sales and purchases are denominated in either HKD
or USD, except for certain transactions with group entities and
purchases that are denominated in AUD, SGD, PHP, RMB, EUR
and NZD. Given the HKD is pegged to the USD, management
does not expect that there will be any significant currency risk
associated with such USD denominated transactions.

For group entities whose functional currency is a currency
other than HKD, except for certain sales and transactions with
group entities and certain borrowings from group entities that
are denominated in HKD, most of the other transactions are
denominated in their functional currencies.

The Group’s policies for managing such risk were unchanged from
the year ended 31st March 2019. During the year ended 31st
March 2020, the Group uses bank balances to hedge its currency
risk arising from the purchase of raw materials and machineries
that are denominated in foreign currency and classifies these as
cash flow hedges as set out in note 18(a).

The Group has also used forward exchange contracts to manage
its currency risks.

Changes in the fair value of forward exchange contracts that
economically hedge monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in other comprehensive
income. The net fair value of forward exchange contracts used by
the Group as economic hedges of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at 31st March 2020 was
assets of $501,000 (2019: Nil), recognised as derivative financial
instruments.

In respect of other trade receivables and payables denominated
in foreign currencies, the Group ensures that the net exposure is
kept to an acceptable level, by buying or selling foreign currencies
at spot rates where necessary to address short-term imbalances.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]
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) DERIBITEESHMTA -

BESNEFHE 2 A BUERA R BN RS
FEEEEEERRNBEREEING - UEE
BHIREER - BARFRE TR R A AKX
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26 Financial risk management and fair

values of financial instruments (continued)
(d) Currency risk (Continued)
(i)  Exposure to currency risk
The following table details the Group’s significant exposure at
the end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the entity to which they relate.
For presentation purposes, the amounts of the exposure are
shown in HKD, translated using the spot rates at the year end
date. Differences resulting from the translation of the financial
statements of subsidiaries and joint venture outside Hong Kong
into the Group’s presentation currency, the exposure arising
from the borrowings from group entities that in substance form
part of the net investment in subsidiaries and the bank balances
that are designated as a hedge of the Group’s foreign currency
risk of highly probable forecast transactions or committed future
transactions are excluded.

26 BiEBREEREMIAZA
AE @)

(d) E¥mEk (@

() AEZEEEE
THREAEBMAERAUGHEEE > e s
PN S E Y DR SRR EEE S
AEBER - BERMEREZSENRELAS
ENEAE R E R B 252 A o MEE B
WEMBATRAEATAZHBRERANED
SHEMMEEL2E RAEEBSE Y
(BEHRANBARZREFEZ—87) A
B o URISE ARSI E MR AT AT
RBREEBETZRRR S 2 IMEER 2 8R1T
Y TEEER o

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in HKD)

NERRAE (L84S

2020 2019

8% “$-15
usb EUR SGD HKD RMB PHP AUD NZD usb EUR SGD HKD RMB PHP AUD NZD
£ Br 47 B AR MR Wi WENR %% Bn  4n #% ARE 4R Wi ¥EER

$000 T7 $000 T $000 T $000 T $000 T $000 T $000 T $000F7% $000Fx $000Fx $000Fx $000FA $000FA $000FA $000FT §000FT

Cashand bank deposits 37,303 1 - 104879 50717 - 190 -
RERBIER

Amount due from/{to)
group companies 4349 - 2159 (18019) 5770 - 8018 -
El/ (Eff) SBHED

AR

Loanto joint venture - - - - - 53305
IRER AL ER

Trade and other
receivables - - - -

BURAR AR

Tradeand other payables  (18,854)  (13,257) (314) - (4190 - (608)

EHRIREMRAT

4793 1 478 981 51331 = 6

5999 - 2508 10460 21,202 - 12158

33,638

23201 S e e . S

(22371) (1553 (258) - (3822) = (92)

(Gross exposure arising
from recognised assets
and liabilities 2798 (13256) 1845 86860 52297 53305 7600

BEREERERELL
ERARLE

Notional amount of
forward exchange
contracts used as
economic hedges - 4022 - - - - - (41684
RAEEES 255
NERNEZER

11622 (1552) 2728 11441 68711 33638 12072

Net exposure arising from
recognised assets and
liabilities 2798 (9234 1845 86860 52297 53305 7600  (41,684)

EEZEERANELY
ERRsE

10622 (1552) 2728 11441 68711 33638 12072
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26 Financial risk management and fair 26 BIRAMEERESHMIAZA
values of financial instruments (continued) AE @

(d) Currency risk (Continued)
(ii)  Sensitivity analysis

(d) E¥mEp |
(i) BB EDHT

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the TRITRERBAEEREBEHERRKRZ
Group’s profit after taxation and retained profits that would EXRZAHREIEEHAEERBERZR
arise if foreign exchange rates to which the Group entities have RRBERN BN EE (BEMEEMER T
significant exposure at the end of the reporting period had changed ERRAERFTE) HUMS  DERERBBHEE
at that date, assuming all other risk variables remained constant. TTRBBEERRERE T REMEE 2T (AERE
In this respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate between the ESESEMIANERTE -

HKD and the USD would be materially unaffected by any changes

in movement in value of the USD against other currencies.

2020 2019
—BCFF —E-NF

Increase/ Increase/

Increase/ (decrease) Increase/ (decrease)

(decrease) in profit after (decrease) in profit after

in foreign taxation and in foreign taxation and

exchange rates retained profits exchangerates retained profits

BRBLER I F BREL RIS F

ERLEH RREEH ExEH RARE=F

(T&) L£H(F) (TE) L£FH (FE)

$'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t

usb 5% (290) 5% 759
E (5)% 290 (5)% (759)
EUR 5% (357) 5% (59)
BT (5)% 357 (5)% 59
SGD 5% 77 5% 135
K IT (5)% (77) (5)% (135)
HKD 5% 3,134 5% 469
potid (5)% (3,134) (5)% (469)
RMB 5% 2,108 5% 2,791
AREE (5)% (2,108) (5)% (2,791)

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]



Notes to the Financial Statements
S py S EL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRSEHRBAI » LUBEEHE)
26 Financial risk management and fair

values of financial instruments (continued)
(d) Currency risk (Continued)
(ii)  Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

26 BIEREEREMTAZA
RE @

(d) E¥mEk (@

(i) BB ()

2020 2019
—EBCEF —E-NEF

Increase/ Increase/

Increase/ (decrease) Increase/ (decrease)

(decrease) in profit after (decrease) in profit after

in foreign taxation and in foreign taxation and

exchange rates retained profits exchangerates retained profits

RELBEA BRI ERR

ERLH RARE A EELH RAREHF

(FER) LEFH (T (TE) L£H (TE)

$'000 F 7T $'000 F 7T

PHP 5% 2,665 5% 1,682
kb & (5)% (2,665) (5)% (1,682)
AUD 5% 366 5% 322
BT (5)% (366) (5)% (322)
NzZD 5% (1,459) 5% =
HFEBE T (5)% 1,459 (5% -

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table represent
an aggregation of the instantaneous effects on each of the Group
entities’ profit after taxation measured in the respective functional
currencies, translated into HKD at the exchange rate ruling at the
end of the reporting period for presentation purposes.

EREBZ AN ERBETRAEESERUEEY
BREEMITE 2 RBEERN  RERABITZER
BMERBELUME2R 2 BRASZE -
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26 Financial risk management and fair

values of financial instruments (continued)
(d) Currency risk (Continued)
(ii)  Sensitivity analysis (Continued)
The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign
exchange rates had been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk at the end of the reporting period, including inter-
company payables and receivables within the Group which are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currencies
of the lender or the borrower. The analysis excludes differences
that would result from the translation of the financial statements
of subsidiaries and joint venture outside Hong Kong into the
Group’s presentation currency, the exposure arising from the
borrowings from group entities that in substance form part of
the net investment in subsidiaries and the bank balances that are
designated as ahedge of the Group’s foreign currency risk of highly
probable forecast transactions or committed future transactions.
The analysis has been performed on the same basis for the year
ended 31st March 2019.

(e) Fair value measurement

(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
consolidated financial instruments measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1

inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]

26 BiEBREEREMIAZA
AE @)

(d) E¥ER @)

(i) BBMESH (F)
SEBMESFDBRERSHEAREHTEAE
BRERBSESAEEEHIERRZZZS
BTE SEAEEATNUERARERA
THREE MELUS ST EZ B R R EWE - 5
M EERREEEUIMENBATRAEA
AR REBAEB S 2 EWMMELE 22
B RAEEEES S (FEBARANEL T
TREFHE—BH) MELZRR  URIET
PRSP A E MR AT 2 X B RE A
ETZRRR S ZIMEERZBTREE - BE=
E-WEZA=+—ALEEZSHIRRER
EEEST o

(e) ARMEFE

(i) BAREBEZLHEEREE
ARELEE
TREVEPRERATE2AEBRZESRMT
BEQRE RB(EBUBREER) F1358 4
REFEIFREZZRDAABERBETOE -
BARENEDB2ERNLSENTHERE
FrAMASE 2 TBREREEMEAETE :

- B-RhE: EERS-REARE (R
SAEAREEERRBERNERT S ZRE
ARWE) FTEZDE -
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26 Financial risk management and fair

values of financial instruments (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs
i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not available.

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs.

The fair value of forward exchange contracts is measured using
Level 2 inputs. The fair value is determined by discounting the
contractual forward price and deducting the current spot rate.
The discount rate used is derived from the relevant government
yield curve as at the end of the reporting period plus an adequate
constant credit spread.

(ii)  Fair values of financial instruments carried at other
than fair value

All other financial instruments of the Group carried at costs or

amortised costs are not materially different from their fair values

as at 31st March 2020 and 2019.

27 Commitments
(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31st March 2020 not
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

26 BiREREEREMIAEZA
RAE @)

(e) DAREFTE (@)

(i) BARBHEBZSHREERERE (&)

RAERE (&)

- BIHMGE: ERE-RWARE (BIREE
ERE - Rz UEERRABE) BXRER
BEATUEEGAHBHAEBZARE T
TEHERABBREDSHE2BARE -

- BZRMME EREXTTEEBARE

HEZAAME -

ERMNESHN 2 ARETNRAE - R ABET
B UEBMREASNEMERRINRRENHE
REE o IR A2 BN RERER B 2 BB
BEHUERHE  SMEAZBEEEFERERT
o

(i) UHFBRAAEIIRZEMTRZAAE

R-ZBZEER-ZB-NEF=ZA=+—-0 %&
BATEH MR AR EEAAT R SR T AR
HARBEYEEREER -

27 AiE
(a) R=B=TEF=A=+-0 KENBR
KPBEZRTERRENT

2020 2019

—ECEF —E-hEF

$'000 T $000 Ft

Contracted for 347,950 522,838

[EEEY

Authorised but not contracted for 806,580 1,771,365
EREERETY

1,154,530 2,294,203

Asat 31stMarch 2020, the Groupiscommittedtocertaincontracts
for the acquisition and construction of plant and machinery and
buildings.

RIBEZEF=A=+—8  AEEFEEETS
THRENBERERESEUNET ZEH -
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27 Commitments (continued)
(b) The Group’s share of capital commitments of the joint
venture not included above are as follows:

27 EIE @)
(b) kAESALNAEEEESEATZER
EEMT

2020 2019
=8 —E-hE
$'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t

Contracted for 2,271 12,807
EHES
Authorised but not contracted for 237 7,536
EREERTH

2,508 20,343

(c) At 31st March 2019, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases were

(c) W=—=—hE=A=+—8 BEFTAH
BRrREHETRARN 2 RERSNR

payable as follows: HBEET -

Factory machinery

Properties and equipment

LIES TR R R1B

$'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t

Within one year 127,549 3,911
—FR

After one year but within five years 213,592 3,576

—FRERFR

After five years 20,757 -
HE#R

361,898 7,487

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties and
items of factory machinery and equipment under leases which
were previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17.
The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach. Under this approach, the Group adjusted
the opening balances at 1st April 2019 to recognise lease liabilities
relating to these leases (see note 1(c)). From 1st April 2019
onwards, future lease payments are recognised as lease liabilities
in the statement of financial position in accordance with the
policies set out in note 1(j), and the details regarding the Group’s
future lease payments are disclosed in note 21.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]

AEBEMRE (BB ER) F17HR0ES
HEHEZHERTZEYEUR TREERR
BIEE ZABA - REBECRAZEIEWEE
RERCEBUMBRELER) F 1655 - RIFLT
o ARECHE-_Z-NFOA-—HZHA&
g UREREZSHEREHERE (RHE
1c)) - B=Z—AFMA — B - RIBEAHMFE
1) 2 R » REAEN KRR K R
REERE  MARAREARARBENRZHE
RMIEE 21 KRR o
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28 Material related party transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere

inthese financial statements, the Group entered into the following

material related party transactions.

(a)
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Transactions with related parties

The products of the Group are distributed in Australia by a
related party (non-controlling interests of the Company’s
subsidiary) and a management fee is charged for the
provision of services. The management fee is calculated
based on a pre-determined percentage of the net sales of
products distributed by the related party. Total management
fees charged by the related party for the year amounted
to $24,632,000 (2019: $26,111,000). The amount due
to the related party as at 31st March 2020 amounted to
$6,066,000 (2019: $6,679,000).

On 29th July 2013, the Group entered into a distribution
agreement with a related party (non-controlling interests
of the Company’s subsidiaries) in New Zealand pursuant to
which the related party agreed to distribute the products
of the Group in New Zealand. A management fee is charged
for the provision of services. The management fee is
calculated based on a pre-determined percentage of the
net sales of products distributed by the related party. Total
management fee charged by the related party for the year
amounted to $7,060,000 (2019: $6,784,000). The amount
due to the related party as at 31st March 2020 amounted to
$1,739,000 (2019: $1,687,000).

The Group has entered into a distribution agreement with a
joint venture in the Philippines pursuant to which the Group
agreed to supply soya related beverages and raw materials
to the joint venture. Total sales to the joint venture for the
year amounted to $31,607,000 (2019: $40,013,000). The
amount due from the joint venture as at 31st March 2020
amounted to $4,356,000 (2019: $4,629,000).

28 EABEALRS
BRENBRRZERBELRIRESI 0 KE
BENIATEABEALRS ©

(a)
(i)

(iii)

HEEATZRS
rEEZERA—EBEEAL (RATKE
NAZIEEBRER) RBMNDEE  ZAL
MEEREUDEEER EEEHRRE
SAEECZRAEAL O HERHEEFHEZ
BALHE - FR - ZEAEATHRZE
BEHAH24632000T (=2 —h5F:
26,111,0007T) e RZE-EF=A=+—
B FRZBIEA £ 2 7B A 6,066,000 7T
(ZB—h%F : 6,679,0007T) ©

R-ZZE—Z=FtA=-+NA AEEHE—
BEBEAL (ADAMBARZFERE
B) RFRBEIT L —EoEmE Bt
ZEEATEAERHTARSHEAEEZE
Mo ZBEEAIREMRBRERNERE
A-EREBARELAEECZHAEALS
HERHBEETFHEZEILHE - FR - Z
BEATWEZEEE RS 7,060,000t
—ZE—N%F :6,784000T) c RZE=F
F=ZA=+—HENFZBEALZRE
#%1,739,000T ( =& — L F : 1,687,000
JT) e

AEECHE-BFEESE QR —E
DEHE B FXEERZEOZEER
FAHEATHBEREREME - FR - @
ZEENAMEL 2 HE#EE A 31,607,000
7T (ZZ—Hh% :40,0130007T) - A==
“EFZA=+-HEWRZEAELTAZR
144,356,000 7T (ZZE—HhF : 4,629,000
TT) °
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28 Material related party transactions

(Continued)

(a) Transactions with related parties (Continued)

(iv) The Group has entered into a loan agreement with the joint
venture pursuant to which the Group agreed to provide a
loan to finance the business activities of the joint venture.
The loan bears interest at 4.75% per annum, is unsecured
and is repayable on 30th March 2021, 30th March 2022 and
30th March 2023. The loan is expected to be rolled-over and
therefore considered to be repayable after one year from the
end of the respective reporting period. Total interest income
from the joint venture for the year amounted to $1,644,000
(2019: $471,000). The loan to joint venture as at 31st March
2020 amounted to $53,305,000 (2019: $33,638,000).

The related party transactions in respect of (i) and (ii) above
constitute continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. However, they are exempt from
the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
as they are below the de minimis threshold under Rule 14A.76(1).

(b) Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s Directors as disclosed
in note 7 and certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed in
note 8, is as follows:

28 EAXBEALIRS @)

(a) EERAEALTZRS (#)

(ivy AEBEHRGEARAIL-—BEERGZ
Bt XAEERZERE-Z28X A%E
ERNAzEBIERE  ZERRER
475%5H R MK BAR_-_ZT=—
F=A=+H -ZBE-=ZF=A=+HK
—E_=F=ZA=tHEER ZEXEH
BIEE THEREEANRSEERAZ—
FHREZ - TR RAZSELRZIE
WA 48 5E 5 1,644000T (=B — A& ¢
471000) c R=ZE=ZEF=ZA=+—
H - m&%AafEt2E%%A 53305000
7T (ZZE—HF : 33,638,0007T) °

FHABREONR()BEZHEEALRZER LT
BRAEVVAERREZIFERERS - A » B
RZERZERE 14A76() IR HEPIE - Hit
EHRRBTETRAE VAT ZRERE

(b) AREBEASZME
FEEBRERASCME (BEME7HNE
EA D R EE X 2 B ARMEE 8 IR EEE
FREFEEX 2B MT :

2020 2019

—EEF —E-hEF

$'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t

Short-term employee benefits 42,472 44817
EHESER

Post-employment benefits 1,230 1,254

BEEERA

Equity compensation benefits 8,066 9,703
IR A< #H (B 1R A

51,768 55,774

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 5(b)).
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29 Equity transaction with non-controlling
interests

On 31st December 2018, the Group entered into an agreement
with Shenzhen GuangMing Group Co., Ltd (“Guangming”),
pursuant to which the Group agreed to sell, and Guangming
agreed to purchase, 15% equity interest in Vitasoy Dongguan
at a consideration of RMB50,250,000, which was determined
with reference to the registered capital of Vitasoy Dongguan of
RMB335,000,000.

On 1st January 2019, the Group disposed of 15% equity
interest in Vitasoy Dongguan to Guangming at a consideration
of RMB22,500,000 (equivalent to approximately $25,618,000),
which was determined with reference to the paid up capital
of Vitasoy Dongguan of RMB150,000,000 at that time. At 1st
January 2019, the carrying amount of Vitasoy Dongguan’s net
assets amounted of $168,251,000 and the disposal has resulted
in an increase in non-controlling interest of $25,238,000 and an
increase in other reserve of $380,000.

On 27th February 2019 and 19th March 2019, the Group
and Guangming contributed additional capital totaling
RMB66,000,000 (equivalent to approximately $76,033,000) to
Vitasoy Dongguan in proportion to their shareholding of 85% and
15% in Vitasoy Dongguan respectively, of which RMB9,900,000
(equivalent to approximately $11,405,000) was contributed by
Guangming and was presented as capital contribution from a non-
controlling interest in the consolidated cash flow statement.

Duringtheyearended 31st March 2020, the Groupand Guangming
contributed additional capital totaling RMB119,000,000
(equivalent to approximately $137,254,000) to Vitasoy Dongguan
in proportion to their shareholding of 85% and 15% in Vitasoy
Dongguan respectively, of which RMB17,850,000 (equivalent
to approximately $20,588,000) was contributed by Guangming
and was presented as capital contribution from a non-controlling
interest in the consolidated cash flow statement.

29 EFERERZERRS

RZZB-NF+ZA=+—H  AEBELRIIH
KXAKEERAT ([XBE]) FTM - 15
it ARERSHEMAARSBEERTELY
15% PRiEREs - ER ARY 50,250,0007T @ J5
SRR HEM ) 2 E M E AR ARE 335,000,000
TEERE °

RZZ—NF—A—B FAEERXHEERS
#Efh 15% RAERER - REA AR 22,500,000
7T (FHE M #256180007T) @ I B BERE= 4
MER 22 RAARY 150,000,000 TEE -
R-ZEBE-NF-—A—B RE@BMPzFEE
ZIREE A 168,251,000t * BEHESHEE S H
ERAER R 25238000 t RS HibfEEER
380,000 7T °

R-E-—NEFE-AZ+tAR=ZF—HIEF=A
+hA > AEERKACDBIRERREE M
Z IR I85% K 15% S SN B R = 4 35 &
A AR# 66,000,000 7T (HHE R # 76,033,000
7)) Hih AR #99000007 (18 & R &
11,405,0007T) AHA BT EL NGERERER
RURBFERER ZFELY -

BE-Z-SF=-A=+—HLEE X&EEH
RAXBEARIZEERREHE T 2 3F R L HI
85% R IS% BB MREHEMPIETESHARYE
119,000,000 7T (8 E 1 #137,254,0007T) » H
F AK#17,850,0005t (HHEH%20,588,0007T)
AAFIETREEESHRERTLUREIFFER
R ETEEY -
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30 Company-level statement of financial

position

2020
—g-%g

$'000 F 7T $'000 F T

30 ATFEBMEZMEAMRR T

2019
—E-hE
(Note)
(Fft&E)

$'000 F T $000 F 7t

Non-current assets

FREBEE

Property, plant and equipment

M - BERRE

- Investment properties

-REWE

- Right-of-use assets

-EREEE

- Other property, plant and equipment
-HtE - RERRE

Interest in subsidiaries

NI ENGIP s £

Deposits for the acquisition of
property, plant and equipment

BEWE BERREZITE

Current assets

RENEE

Inventories

171

Trade and other receivables
FEUWR AR TR & EL A FE UL R
Amounts due from subsidiaries
FEW KB A BlFIE
Current tax recoverable
FEUR R HAF 18

Cash and bank deposits
RERBITER

Current liabilities

REEE

Trade and other payables
FEATRRAA R H A FE (T 5R
Bank loan

RITER

Amounts due to subsidiaries
P B A T EE

Lease liabilities

HEEE

Current tax payable

S BRBHE

Net current assets
BREBEE
Total assets less current liabilities

REERRBAE

3,502
154,431

606,334

764,267

1,721,300

51

2,485,618

166,949
455,446
402,704

17,496

124,249

1,166,844

550,689
190,000
67,644

55,600

863,933

302,911

2,788,529

3,628

505,594
509,222

1,600,707

1,185

2,111,114

182,551
479,130

168,877

497,338

1,327,896

514

682,504

645,392

2,756,506
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30 Company-level statement of financial

pOSitiOl’l (Continued)

Note KffzF

2020
—E-%F

$'000 F T

30 AREBHEZMEMRRET @

2019
—E-hF
(Note)
(FftsE)

$'000 Tt

$°000 F T $000 F 7t

Non-current liabilities

FRBEE

Lease liabilities

HEEE

Employee retirement benefit liabilities
EERNEFEE

Deferred tax liabilities

BEERIBAE

NET ASSETS
FEE

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
BEARR G

Share capital

[N

Reserves

it

25(a)

TOTAL EQUITY
R AR

115,469

27,956

59,959

18,533

52,631

203,384
2,585,145

71,164
2,685,342

939,328 898,961

1,645,817 1,786,381

2,585,145 2,685,342

Note:

The Company has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1st April 2019 using the
modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative

information is not restated. See note 1(c).

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

19th June 2020.

Winston Yau-lai LO
BRE

Director

EFE

MiEE -

FEECR-Z-NFHA - ARABEBITENEERE
ACEBPBHELR) B 165 - RIBFUFTE - LBRER
WAREZ o RHFEE1(c) °

“ECEFAATARRESSHELRER

o

E i

Roberto GUIDETTI
FEEE
Director

EF
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Notes to the Financial Statements
S py S EL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

31 Non-adjusting events after the

reporting period
Since the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic in early 2020, ongoing
prevention and control measures have been carried out by
the Chinese Government and Hong Kong Government. These
measures have affected the Group’s business and are expected to
continue to adversely impact the Group’s financial performance in
the coming financial year.

Given the evolving nature of the COVID-19 and the
unpredictability of future developments, it is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of the impact of the pandemic on
the Group’s financial performance. The Group will closely monitor
and respond to the development of the COVID-19 and will
continue to assess its impact on the Group’s financial position and
operating results.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Directors
proposed a final dividend. Further details are disclosed in note
25(b)(i).

32 Comparative figures

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1st April 2019 using
the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the
comparative information is not restated. Further details of the
changes in accounting policies are disclosed in note 1(c).

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]

31 BREHARERBRER

BI#HEBRAS] RER-S-SFMRELU
R FEBFEEBBAC —BEHETHERBR
ZHIiER - 2SR CHEREEXBALRHR
T-UBRFEFEHAEE BB RBPELTF

E/
-7

ERIHETRHES | MESBERREREL
R SEMATRBEHAKREMERR BT
TAT - AEBA R EZE R EY [ 3 EERE
B 28R UHEFEVEESFRETBRR

EENERAREBRBERBRE - E—D&FE
TRABRE 25(b) (i) IR ER ©

32 LhEBRE T
AEEER-ZZE-IEFENAE—BRALETEY
FTERER(EBUBBREER)D £ 1658 - RIE
WHEE LhBEELAES - BEESTBERZE
B2 — L EFIERMIEE 1(c) PIRE -



Notes to the Financial Statements
S py S EL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

33 Possible impact of amendments, new 33 BEEMERARBE-ZS_-F
standards and interpretations issued F=A=1T—HLEFEERZ
but not yet effective for the year ended 183] - FRI BRI R R E RS
31st March 2020 B 2 55 &

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA BEZSUKHRTE A  EBSTHARE
has issued a number of amendments and a new standard, HKFRS EHEE—E_EFE-A=T—HLEFEERE
17, Insurance contracts, which are not yet effective for the year ¥ TEEZEVEREREAZEEEITIR—E
ended 31st March 2020 and which have not been adopted in these FETZER  (BEBMERELER) FE 175 [REEE

financial statements. These developments include the following Al BERBIET PR B AR 2 18E] ©
which may be relevant to the Group.

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RT5I B
W2 EBERZ
AL

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of business 1st January 2020
(CEEBMBMEER) F 39 [FH2TE | 2185 —E-EH—-F—H
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8, Definition of material 1st January 2020
(BESTEA) F1XR(EEBSTER) E85R [ EEMTESH | 2187] —E-EF—HA—H

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the AEBEFEZEEITREXEANE RS
impact of these developments is expected to be in the period of Z-.HABEABL  RAZEETERFIZEHAR

initial application. So far the Group concluded that the adoption EEREVERREEEATE -
of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements.
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Five Year Summary

IFEMBHRE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LUB#5HE)

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—ECRFE E-hE ZEB-NFE EZ—+tHF CZEZT-—XRE
Note [z $'000 Tt $'000 F 7t $'000 FJt $'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t
Results
4
Revenue 2 7,232,641 7,526,495 6,464,525 5,406,090 5,551,898
LON
Profit from operations 1,2 707,433 977,160 822,248 848,034 603,352
1R
Finance costs 1,3 (10,932) (2,086) (1,700) (3,730) (4,044)
Share of losses of joint venture (17,433) (19,236) (17,814) (627) =
Frid & D aEE
Profit before taxation 679,068 955,838 802,734 843,677 599,308
BRELANRR
Income tax 1,2,3 (109,477) (208,143) (160,679) (190,383) (34,064)
Fris®i
Profit for the year 569,591 747,695 642,055 653,294 565,244
IR A
Attributable to:
THIALREA :
- Equity shareholders of
the Company 535,878 695,907 585,774 618,372 530,616
- AARREFE A
- Non-controlling interests 33,713 51,788 56,281 34,922 34,628
- JEIERR RS
Profit for the year 569,591 747,695 642,055 653,294 565,244
RE A
Assets and liabilities
EERAE
Property, plant and equipment 1 3,712,005 2,939,306 2,348,875 2,053,276 2,186,972
Other non-current assets 181,288 163,852 173,144 97,027 144,082
HittIERBEE
Net current (liabilities)/
assets 1 (185,794) 488,007 737,116 823,069 383,392
FRE (BE) BE
Total assets less current
liabilities 1 3,707,499 3,591,165 3,259,135 2,973,372 2,714,446
HEERRBEE
Non-current liabilities 1 (289,395) (121,605) (89,989) (283,666) (302,583)
FEREBEE
NET ASSETS 3,418,104  3469,560 3,169,146 2,689,706 2,411,863
FEE
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Five Year Summary
hTEMBERE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LUB#5HE)

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—E_EF ZE-hF ZEBE-NF ZEZE—tF IZE—REF
Note [z $'000 Tt $'000 F 7t $'000 FJt $'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t
Capital and reserves
BEAXR#E
Share capital 939,328 898,961 857,335 774,246 733,722
&N
Reserves 2,3 2,189,062 2,266,451 2,052,422 1,697,123 1,466,013
R
Total equity attributable to
equity shareholders of
the Company 3,128,390 3,165,412 2,909,757 2,471,369 2,199,735
AABRERFE A
FEfh e 40 %R
Non-controlling interests 289,714 304,148 259,389 218,337 212,128
FEERERS
TOTAL EQUITY 3,418,104 3,469,560 3,169,146 2,689,706 2,411,863
R
Earnings per share
FREF
- Basic 504 centsfli 65.6centsfill  55.5centsfli 589centsfill  50.9 centsdil
-BAR
- Diluted 499 centsfill  650centsfli 550centsfill 584centsfli  50.4centsll
- s
Notes to the five year summary AEREREEWS

1

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 16, Leases, with effect from 1st
April 2019, the Group has changed its accounting policies in respect
of the lessee accounting model. In accordance with the transitional
provisions of the standard, the changes in accounting policies were
adopted by way of opening balance adjustments to recognise right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities as at 1st April 2019. After initial
recognition of these assets and liabilities, the Group as a lessee is
required to recognise interest expense accrued on the outstanding
balance of the lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use
asset, instead of the previous policy of recognising rental expenses
incurred under operating leases on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Figures in years earlier than 2020 are stated in accordance with
the policies applicable in those years.

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers, with effect from 1st April 2018, the Group changed its
accounting policies in respect of revenue recognition. Figures in years
earlier than 2019 are stated in accordance with the policies applicable
in those years.

HREAE-Z-AENA - BRERZ(EEY
BHELER) F16R[HE] XEBREHHK
HASTERN ZEEEEK - REBZER 2 BEMRF
X B BRZEDERERM 2T ARBBBNEER
AEZAAUERNR-ZE-NFOA-H2ERAR
BERHESE RISHARSEEREER
REE (FREABEAN) AREIEEREREEERE
EZFREBERAREAREENE  MAERBBEZ
BERUESAEERRAEPALEHEEE2ES
BA —CEZFUAINBFREERFENER
BERES -

HREME-Z-N\ENA - BRERERZ (BB
BBREEA) F15R[FLPEHKRA L AEBARE
BFRBRARRZEHEE - —2-NFUANET
RIBEBFENERAREZY -
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Five Year Summary
hTEMBERE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LUB#5HE)

Notes to the five year summary (Continued)

3 The Group adopted HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including
the amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment features with negative
compensation, from 1st April 2018. As a result, the Group changed its
accounting policies in relation to financial instruments. As allowed by
HKFRS 9, the Group did not restate information relating to prior years.
There was no difference in the carrying amounts of the financial assets
and financial liabilities resulting from the adoption of HKFRS 9. Figures
in years earlier than 2019 are stated in accordance with the policies
applicable in those years.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. ZE b 3B FR @ AR A 7

FEMBHERE (5)

FEBE-Z2-N\FOA-BERRA(EBIBR
SEADFIRILMTA |- BE(EBUBREE
) B9 EBAFERIMEZFANHIE] ZIEFT °
Hit AEECHEFHESRMTANSEE - B
B(EBUBBELER) 95 FAEBAEETE
RFEECEN - RM(EBUBRELR) F95%
VEEHETHEENEHEBEZRAEHRER -
—E-NAFHUANEZREABEFENERARKZ
5 -



®

\itasey

The Soy Experts

www.vitasoy.com

Vitasoy International Holdings Limited
1 Kin Wong Street, Tuen Mun
The New Territories, Hong Kong

BB EE AR A F
BB A BPIREA —5

Tel E5F : (852) 2466 0333
Fax {8 E : (852) 2456 3441

MIX
Paper from
responsible sources
gw%:?g FSC™ C111999




	Cover
	Global Markets
	Contents
	Directors and Corporate Information
	Financial Highlights
	Chairman's Statement
	Group Chief Executive Officer's Report/Business Review
	Awards and Recognitions
	Corporate Governance Report
	Directors and Senior Management
	Report of the Directors
	Independent Auditor's Report
	Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
	Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
	Notes to the Financial Statements
	Five Year Summary
	Back Cover



